ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA)
LIMITED

REVISED PETITION TOWARDS: -

True-up of Annual Revenue
Requirement for FY 2022-23 & FY
2023-24; Provisional True-up of ARR
for FY 2024-25 and Projection of
Aggregate Revenue Requirement for
FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30

FILED WITH:-

MAHARASHTRA ELECTRICITY
REGULATORY COMMISSION



Trite lIn &. MAYT Poatitinn - ATII

BEFORE THE MAHARASHTRA ELECTRICITY REGULATORY COMMISSION, MUMBAI

Case No. 181 of 2024

IN THE MATTER OF

Revised Petition for True-up of ARR for FY 2022-23 & FY 2023-24, Provisional True-up
of ARR for FY 2024-25 & Projection of ARR for FY 2025-26 to 2029-30 for Adani
Transmission (India) Limited (ATIL); under the provisions of Section 61 and Section 62
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Facts of the Case

ATIL (formerly known as Adani Power Maharashtra Limited (Transmission
Business)) was granted Transmission Licence No. 2 of 2009 by Maharashtra
Electricity Regulatory Commission (hereinafter referred to as the “Hon'ble
Commission” or "MERC") vide its Order dated 06.07.2009 in case No. 138 of 2008.
The said license was amended by Commission vide its order dated 30.03.2011.
Subsequently, to ring fence the licensed business of Transmission from other
Business of APML, APML-T filed a petition for assignment of its Transmission
License to ATIL. Vide Order dated 8.12.2014 in Case no. 189 of 2014, the
Commission approved assignment of the aforementioned license to ATIL. The said
License was further amended by MERC vide Order dated 09.07.2015 in Case no. 136
of 2014 to include 2X80 MVAR Bus Reactor along with associated bays at the
Tiroda Sub-station.

2. The Hon’ble Commission approved the ARR and Tariff for the Control Period from
FY 2012-13 to FY 2015-16 vide its Multi Year Tariff (MYT) Order dated 10.01.2013 in
Case No. 44 of 2012, The Hon'ble Commission approved the True-up of ARR for FY
2012-13, Provisional True-up of ARR for FY 2013-14 and revised projection of ARR
for FY 2014-15 and FY 2015-16, vide its Order dated 03.07.2014 in case No. 190 of

2013,
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3. The Hon'ble Commission by its order dated 28.06.2016 in Case No. 07 of 2016
allowed True-up for the year 2012-13 to 2014-15, Provisional True-Up for the year
2015-16 and Approval of the Tariff for the Control Period FY 2016-17 to 2019-20.

4. The Hon'ble Commission by its order dated 12.09.2018 in case No. 170 of 2017
passed the Order for True-up of ARR for FY 2015-16 & FY 2016-17, Provisional True-
up for FY 2017-18 and approved revised ARR for FY 2018-19 & FY 2019-20.

5. The Petitioner aggrieved by the Order of Hon'ble Commission dated 12.09.2018 in
case No. 170 of 2017 filed Appeal before Hon'ble APTEL registered as Appea! No.
402 of 2018 for the following issues:

i. Non-allowance of actual Operation and Maintenance claimed by the
Appellant for FY 2015-16 and FY 2016-17 including the O&M cost towards
2X80 MVAR bus reactors, along with associated bays at Tiroda Substation;

ii. Non-allowance of additional capitalization claimed for initial spares for FY
2016-17;

iii. Reduction of the quantum of Working Capital and resultant non-allowance
of Interest on Working Capital (IoWC) claimed by the Appellant for FY 2015-
16, and consideration of 1oWC for FY 2016-17 as efficiency gain;

iv. Consideration of Delayed Payment Surcharge (DPC) as non-tariff income;

V. Non-allowance of contribution towards contingency reserve;

Vi, Non-allowance of actual long-term interest on [oan;

vii, Disallowance of Carrying cost and reduction in incentive availability;

6. The Hon'ble Commission by its order dated 30.03.2020 in case No. 289 of 2019
passed the Order for True-up of ARR for FY 2017-18 & FY 2018-19, Provisional True-
up for FY 2019-20 and projection of ARR for Fourth Control Period from FY 2020-
21 to FY 2024-25. In the same Order, the Hon'ble Commission directed recovery in
instalments which is claimed in this Petition.

The Petitioner aggrieved by the Order of Hon’ble Commission dated 30.03,2020 in
case No. 289 of 2019 filed Appeal before Hon'ble APTEL registered as Appeal No.

154 of 2020 for the following issues:
i. Non-allowance of actual interest rate of long-term loan

8. The Hon'ble Commission by its order dated 31.03.2023 in case No. 238 of 2022
passed the Order for True-up of ARR for FY 2019-20, FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22,
Provisional truing up of ARR for FY 2022-23 and Revised ARR for FY 2023-24 to FY
2024-25.,

9. The Petitioner aggrieved by the Order of the Hon'ble Commission dated 31.03.2023
in case No. 238 of 2022 filed Review Petition before Hon'ble Commission registered
as Petition No. 100/RC/2023. Hon'ble MERC vide Order dated 07.11.2023 decided
that review Petition is not maintainable as per the provisions of the Regulation 28
of the MERC (Transaction of Business and Fees and Charges) Regulations, 2022 and
Order 47 of the Civil Procedure Code, 1908,
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10. The Petitioner aggrieved by the Order of Hon’ble Commission dated 31.03.2023 in
case No. 238 of 2022 filed Appeal before Hon'bie APTEL registered as Appeal No.

649 of 2023 for the following issues:
i. Non-allowance of actual interest rate of long-term loan

ii. Reduction in actual O&M expenses for FY 2019-20 to FY 2021-22
ii. Reduction in quantum of actual loWC for FY 2019-20 to FY 2021-22

11. The Petitioner would like to respectfully submits that above three appeals viz
Appeal No. 402 of 2018, Appeal No. 154 of 2020 and Appeal No. 649 of 2023 are
pending before Hon'ble APTEL for consideration and this MYT Petition being filed
before the Hon'ble Commission is without prejudice to its rights, contentions as well
as outcome of all three pending appeals. Without prejudice to autcome of three
pending appeals, the Petitioner hereby has worked out ARR considering Capital
Cost as approved by the Hon'ble MERC in its Order in case no. 238 of 2022 dated
31 March, 2023 for recovery from the TSUs.

12. The Petition includes following Chapters:
a) Chapter 1 contains the Executive Summary of this Petition
b) Chapter 2 contains Introduction to this Petition
c) Chapter 3 contains True-up of ARR for FY 2022-23 & 2023-24
d) Chapter 4 contains Provisional True up of ARR for FY 2024-25
e) Chapter 5 contains Forecast of ARR for FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 and

f) Chapter 6 contains Prayers to this Hon'ble Commission
Prayers to the Hon'ble Commission:

The Petitioner respectfully prays that the Hon’ble Commission may be pleased to: -
(3) Admit the present Petition.
(b) Allow Additional Capital Cost claimed in this Petition.

(c) Approve the true-up of ARR along with additional Return on Equity and
carrying cost for FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24

(d) Approve the provisional true-up of ARR for FY 2024-25 as indicated in this
Petition

(e) Approve the Forecast of ARR for FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 as indicated in
this Petition

(f) Allow recovery of the impact of the above prayers from the TSUs along with
applicable carrying cost

(g) Condone any inadvertent omissions/errors/shortcomings and permit ATIL to
add/change/modify/alter this filing and make further submissions as may be
required at a future date.

(h) Allow any other relief, order or direction, which the Hon'ble Commission
deems fit to be issued
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(i) Pass such further orders, as the Hon'ble Commission may deem fit and
appropriate, keeping in view the facts and circumstances of the case.

For Adani Transmission (India) Limited

Place: Ahmedabad Prashant Kumar
Date: 25/11/2024 Authorized Signatory
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CHAPTER - 1
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Introduction

1.1

ATIL (formerly known as Adani Power Maharashtra Limited (Transmission
Business)) was granted Transmission Licence No. 2 of 2009 by Maharashtra
Electricity Regulatory Commission (hereinafter referred to as the "Hon'ble
Commission” or "MERC") vide its Order dated 06.07.2009 in case No. 138 of 2008.
The said license was amended by Commission vide its order dated 30.03.2011.
Subsequently, to ring fence the licensed business of Transmission from other
Business of APML, APML-T filed a petition for assignment of its Transmission
License to ATIL. Vide Order dated 8.12.2014 in Case no. 189 of 2014, the
Commission approved assignment of the aforementioned license to ATIL. The said
License was further amended by MERC vide Order dated 09.07.2015 in Case no.
136 of 2014 to include 2X80 MVAR Bus Reactor along with associated bays at the
Tiroda Sub-station.

Statutory Provisions

1.2

13

1.4

The Petitioner, being a Transmission Licensee endeavours to operate under the
stipulated regulatory regime. The Transmission Business is governed and
regulated under following Act, Palicy and Regulations:

e Electricity Act 2003;

¢ National Electricity Policy;

e National Tariff Policy;

e MERC (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2019 and

e MERC (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2024

The Hon'ble Commission has notified MYT Regulations, 2024 for determination of
tariff for Generation, Transmission and Distribution on 19.08.2024:

a) Truing-up for FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24 to be carried out under the
Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff)
Regulations, 2019:

b) Provisional Truing-up for FY 2024-25 to be carried out under the
Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff)
Regulations, 2019;

c) Aggregate Revenue Requirement for each year of the Control Period
under these Regulations;

In view of the above, ATIL submits the following:

a) Petition for True-up of ARR for FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24 as per
provisions of MYT Regulations, 2019.

b) Petition for Provisional True-Up of ARR for FY 2024-25 as per
provisions of the MYT Regulations, 2019.

15
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c) Forecast of ARR for FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 as per provisions of the
MYT Regulations, 2024,

Basis for Computation of True-up, Provisional True-up & Forecast of ARR

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Without prejudice to outcome of all three pending appeals, based on the closing
capital cost approved for FY 2021-22 by the Hon’'ble Commission in case No. 238
of 2022 dated 31 March, 2023, True-up of ARR for FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24,
provisional true-up of ARR of FY 2024-25 and Forecast of ARR for FY 2025-26 to
FY 2029-30 has been determined by the Petitioner. Audited Annual Accounts of
ATIL (Consolidated) for FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24 are submitted at Annexure 1
& Annexure 2 respectively. Audited Annual Accounts of ATIL (MERC Assets) for
FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24 are submitted at Annexure 3 & Annexure 4
respectively.

The Petitioner has carried out the True-up, Provisional True-up and Forecast of
ARR on the following basis:

(38) True-up of ARR for FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24 based on closing capital cost
approved for FY 2021-22 by the Hon'ble Commission in case no. 238 of 2022
dated 31 March, 2023 as per provisions of MYT Regulations, 2019 and other
Regulations.

(b) Provisional True up for ARR for FY 2024-25 based on closing Capital Cost
approved for FY 2021-22 by the Hon'ble Commission in case no. 238 of 2022
dated 31 March, 2023 and additional Capital cost for 2022-23 & 2023-24 as
provisions of MYT Regulations, 2019 and other Regulations.

(c) Revenue Gap/ (Surplus) has been determined as per provisions of the MYT
Regulations, 2019 for FY 2022-23, 2023-24 and 2024-25,

(d) Carrying cost for recoveries during FY 2025-26 as follows:

e Carrying cost for difference in approved ARR & actual Revenue ‘
Requirement after adjusting gain (Loss) for delay in approval of
recovery in FY 2022-23.

e Carrying cost for difference in approved ARR & actual Revenue
Requirement after adjusting gain (Loss) for delay in approval of
recovery in FY 2023-24.

(e) Determination of ARR for the FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 projected as per
the provisions of MYT Regulations, 2024 and other Regulations.

The Petitioner has filed an appeal before Hon'ble APTEL challenging order dated
12.09.2018 of Hon'ble Commission in case No. 170 of 2017. This Appeal has been
registered with Hon'ble APTEL as Appeal No. 402 of 2018.

The Petitioner aggrieved by the Order of Hon'ble Commission dated 30.03.200 in
case No. 289 of 2019 filed Appeal before Hon'ble APTEL registered as Appeal No.
154 of 2020.

The Petitioner has filed an appeal before Hon’ble APTEL challenging order dated
31.03.2023 of Hon'ble commission in case No. 238 of 2022. This Appeal has been
registered with Hon’ble APTEL as Appeal No. 649/2023.

16
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1 AR gnuweu agilel LUy Up dilu pust snarnng or a 27,0V
gains/losses
Past Period Gap approved in MTR Order Case 238 42.72
2 b
of 2022
3 ARR allowed after truing up and post sharing of c=a+b 140.32
gains/losses and past recoveries
4 Less: Revenue as per InSTS Order d 139.55
5 Revenue Gap/ (Surplus) for computation of e=c-d 0.77
Carrying Cost/(Holding) Cost

115 The Petitioner has not claimed any carrying cost for FY 2024-25 in the present

Petition.

1.16
following table:

Projected estimate of ARR for the FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 is provided in the

Table 1-6: Aggregate Revenue Requirement - FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 (Rs. Crore)

UV LApSIIasS 1<+, 71 12,03 10.22 17.Uc 1/7.01
Depreciation 38.03 7.18 7.18 718 7.18
Expenses

Interest on Loan 1.85 0.10 - - -
Capital

Interest on Working 2.33 1.77 1.78 1.80 1.81
Capital

Income Tax

Contribution to 1.78 1.83 1.83 1.83 1.83
contingency

reserves

Total Revenue 58.91 26.48 27.09 27.83 28.63
Expenditure

Add: Return on 40.72 41,26 41.26 41.26 41,26
Equity Capital

Aggregate Revenue 99.63 67.73 68.34 69.08 69.89
Requirement

Less: Non-Tariff 1.19 1.29 1.40 1.50 1.60
Income

Less: Income from

Other Business

Less: Income from

Open Access

charges

Aggregate Revenue 98.44 66.44 66.95 67.58 68.29
Requirement from

Transmission

20
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1.17 The Petitioner would like to submit that the Cumulative ARR for FY 2025-26 to FY
2029-30 (incl of Revenue Gap/ (Surplus)) is as below:
Table 1-7: Cumulative ARR for FY 2025-26 to 2029-30 (Rs Crore)

_1 Faregcdst Ul ARKK (1 J0.449 DO. 44 0D.¥3 D/.20 Do.£2Y
present Petition

, | Revenue Gap/ (Surplus) 3.45
for FY 2022-23
Carrying cost on 1.07

3 Revenue Gap/ (Surplus)
for FY 2022-23

4 Revenue Gap/ (Surplus) 6.52
for FY 2023-24
Carrying cost on 1.35

5 | Revenue Gap/ (Surplus)
for FY 2023-24

Revenue Gap/ (Surplus) 0.77
fnr EY 2N2A.0R

Prayers to the Hon’ble Commission

In view of the above facts and circumstances, the Petitioner prays to the Hon'ble
Commission that it may be pleased to:

(3) Admit the present Petition.
(b) Allow Additional Capital Cost claimed in this Petition.

(c) Approve the true-up of ARR along with additional Return on Equity and
carrying cost for FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24

(d) Approve the provisional true-up of ARR for FY 2024-25 as indicated in this
Petition

(e) Approve the projections of ARR for FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 as indicated
in this Petition

(f) Allow recovery of the impact of the above prayers from the TSUs along with
applicable carrying cost

(g) Condone any inadvertent omissions/errors/shortcomings and permit ATIL to
add/change/modify/alter this filing and make further submissions as may be
required at a future date.

(h) Allow any other relief, order or direction, which the Hon'ble Commission
deems fit to be issued

(i) Pass such further orders, as the Hon'ble Commission may deem fit and
appropriate, keeping in view the facts and circumstances of the case.
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CHAPTER-2
INTRODUCTION
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2. INTRODUCTION

Background

2.1 ATIL (formerly APML-T) was granted Transmission Licence No. 2 of 2009 by the
Hon'ble Commission vide its Order dated 06.07.2009. ATIL's Transmission system
was commissioned on 26.08.2012. The Hon'ble Commission approved Multi Year
Tariff ("MYT") vide Order dated 10.01.2013 in Case No. 44 of 2012. The Hon'ble
Commission issued Order on Mid Term Performance Review ("MTPR") on
03.07.2014 in Case No. 190 of 2013 including true-up of ARR for FY 2012-13 and
revised estimates for FY 2013-14 to FY 2015-16. In the said Order Hon'ble
Commission inter-alia observed that the additional 2 (two) bays highlighted by
APML (T) which belongs to the bays for bus reactors have not been considered at
this moment as presently the said bays are not part of APML-T Transmission
License. The Commission however agreed to consider it at the time of final truing
of the MYT Period. The Commission instructed the Petitioner to initiate process
for amendment of Transmission License to reflect addition of two bays for bus
reactors at Tiroda SS.

2.2 Incompliance with the above direction of the Hon'ble Commission, the Petitioner
filed Petition with Hon'ble Commission on 16.07.2014. The same was registered
as Case No. 136 of 2014.The Hon'ble Commission approved such amendment of
License by its order dated 09.07.2015.

Objective of present Petition

2.3 The Hon'ble Commission has notified MERC (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2024
(hereafter referred to as “MYT Regulations, 2024") for determination of tariff for
Generation, Transmission and Distribution in August, 2024. In accordance with
the provisions of Regulation 5.1 (a8) of the MERC MYT Regulations, 2024, the
Licensee has to file a Petition before the Hon'ble Commission for truing-up of FY
2022-23 and FY 2023-24 in accordance with the principles of MERC MYT
Regulations, 2019, Provisional True-up for the year 2024-25 as per the principles
of the MYT Regulations, 2019. Further projection of ARR for the control Period i.e.
2025-26 to FY 2029-30 is to be worked out in accordance with MERC MYT
Regulations, 2024.

State Level Regulatory Framework
2.4 The present Petition is filed in accordance with the following relevant Sections of
the Electricity Act, 2003 and MYT Regulations, 2019 & 2024

a) Sections 86, Section 62 read with Section 61 and Section 64 of the
Electricity Act 2003

b) Regulation 5.1 (c) read with Regulation 3, 4, 9 to 11, Part B, Part D, Part
F of the MYT Regulations, 2019
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c) Regulation 5.1 (38) read with Regulations 3, 4, 6, 9 to 10, Part B, Part D,
Part G of the MYT Regulations, 2024

2.5 The referred Regulations specify the scope, the terms and conditions on which

the ARR is to be determined, filing methodology, relevant to the present Petition,

MERC (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2024

2.6 The Hon'ble Commission has published Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory

2.7

I

Commission (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2024 (MYT 2024) Regulations on
19.08.2024. These Regulations are applicable for the period from April 1, 2025 to
March 31, 2030.

Following is Regulation No. 5.1 (3) requiring licensees to file Petition by November

"5.1 The Petitions to be filed in the Control Period under these
Regulations are as under:

a) Multi-Year Tariff Petition, which is complete in all aspects as per
these Regulations, shall be filed by November 1, 2024 by
Generating Companies, Transmission Licensees, ESSD, MSLDC and
STU, and by November 30, 2024, by ODistribution Licensees,
comprising.

i Truing-up for FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24 to be carried out under
the Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi Year
Tariff) Regulations, 20189.

Provided that the Commission may, if it considers appropriate,
carry out the Truing-up for years prior to FY 2022-23 under the
Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff)
Regulations, 2018, along with the Truing-up for FY 2022-23, in
case such Truing-up is yet to be completed.

/. Provisional Truing-up for FY 2024-25 to be carried out under the
Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (Multi Year Tariff)
Regulations, 2019;

iii, Aggregate Revenue Requirement for each year of the Control
Period under these Regulations,

iv. Revenue from the sale of power at existing Tariffs and charges

and projected revenue gap for each year of the Control Period
under these Regu/ations;
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V. Proposed category-wise Tariff or Fees & Charges for each year
of the Control Period under these Regulations.”

2.8 Without prejudice to outcome of all three pending appeals, the Petitioner is filing
the current petition for True-up of ARR for FY 2022-23 & FY 2023-24, Provisional
True-up of ARR for FY 2024-25 and forecast of ARR for FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-
30 as per closing capital cost approved for FY 2021-22 by the Hon’ble Commission
in its Order dated 31.03.2023 in case no. 238 of 2022.

2.9 The Petitioner has submitted Board Resolution for Authorised Signatory as an
Annexure 9,

2.10 The Petitioner requests the Hon'ble Commission to approve tariff as per the
actuals presented herein by the Petitioner for the true-up and forecast data of
ARR submitted for the MYT Control Period.
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CHAPTER -3

TRUE-UP OF ARR FOR FY 2022-23 & FY 2023-
24
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3. TRUE-UP OF ARR FOR FY 2022-23 & FY 2023-24

3.1 The Petitionerinits MTR Petition had submitted the provisional true-up of ARR for
FY 2022-23 and revised forecast of ARR for FY 2023-24. The same was approved
by the Hon'ble Commission vide its Order dated 315 March, 2023 in case No. 238
of 2022. The present chapter outlines the actual performance of the Petitioner for
FY 2022-23 & FY 2023-24 based on audited annual accounts. In line with the
provisions of the MYT Regulations 2019, the Petitioner hereby submits the True-
up of ARR comparing the actual audited expenses vis-a-vis approved expenses. The
True-up has been determined based on the Capital Cost claimed and other Project
related parameters without prejudice to outcome of all the three Appeals filed
before Hon'ble Appellate Tribunal.

3.2 The True-up of ARR for FY 2022-23 & FY 2023-24 has been computed based on
audited annual accounts.

Accounting Statement for the Licensed Transmission Business

3.3 The Accounting Statements and extracts of books of accounts for FY 2022-23 and
FY 2023-24 for the Transmission business under the scope of Licence No. 2 of
2009 has been carved out fram the audited accounts of ATIL as a8 whole (Including
the Mundra-Mohindergarh HVDC Transmission system and Mundra-Dehgam AC
Transmission System). The Carved out Audited Annual Accounts of ATIL (as a
whole) along with ATIL — Tirora Warora for FY 2022-23 & FY 2023-24 on standalone
basis are attached herewith and marked as Annexure 3 & Annexure 4 respectively.

3.4 It may be noted that the standalone audited accounts for FY 2022-23 & FY 2023-
24 includes all the details of revenues, costs, assets, liabilities, reserves and
provisions pertaining to transmission business as necessitated under Regulation
16.2 of the MERC (Transmission Licensee Conditions) Regulations, 2004.

3.5 It may further be noted that majority of expenses for transmission business has
been booked on actual basis as incurred for the transmission segment while
balance common expenses have been allocated based on Turnover.

Operations and Maintenance Expenses

3.6 Regulation No. 61.6 of the MYT Regulation 2019 provides year-wise norms of O&MW
forthe FY 2020-21to FY 2024-25 for New Transmission Licensees. The term "New
Transmission Licensee” is defined as explanation to Regulation 61.6 to mean that
for which Transmission Licence is granted by the Commission prior to or after the
date of coming into effect of these Regulations, and for whom the O&M norms
have not been specified in Regulations 61.2 to 61.5. The Petitioner has been
granted Transmission License by the Hon'ble Commission in 2009, however, No
Oe&M norms have been specified in Regulations 61.2 to 61.5, and hence the
Petitioner shall be governed by O&M Norms for the FY 2020-21 to FY 2024-25
Specified at Regulation No. 61.6 of MYT Reguiations, 2018.

3.7 The Hon'ble Commission by its Order dated 31.03.2023 in case No. 238 of 2022 has
approved Rs 13.26 Crore & Rs 13.74 Crore as O&M Expenses for the FY 2022-23 &
FY 2023-24 respectively considering applicable Norms applicable to New
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Calculation of Interest on loan. Regulation No. 30.2 of MERC MYT Regulations,
2019 provides that the Normative loan outstanding as on 01.04.2020 shall be
worked out by deducting the cumulative repayment as admitted by the Commission
up to 31.03.2020 for the Gross Normative Loan. Regulation No. 30.3 provides that
the repayment during each period of the Control Period FY 2020-21to FY 2024-25
shall be deemed to be equal to the depreciation allowed for that year.

3.21 The Petitioner reproduce herein below Regulation No. 30.5 of MERC MYT
Regulations, 2019 providing for considering weightage average rate of interest
computed on the basis of actual loan portfolio of the year shall be allowed on
Normative loan:

"30.5 The rate of interest shall be the weighted average rate of interest
computed on the basis of the actual loan portfolio at the beginning of each year:

Provided that at the time of Truing-up, the weighted average rate of interest
computed on the basis of the actual long-term loan portfolio during the
concerned year shall be considered as the rate of interest:”

3,22 In term of the above regulations, the weighted average rate of interest computed
on the basis of the actual loan portfolio during the concerned year shall be
considered as the rate of Interest. The Petitioner has worked out the Interest on
loan in accordance with above applicable Regulatory Provisions of MERC MYT
REGULATIONS, 2019 for True-Up of FY 2022-23 & FY 2023-24,

3.23 The weighted average rate worked out in Form 5 of the Tariff Format. Accordingly,
weightage average rate of Interest works out to 13.25% for the FY 2022-23 & FY
2023-24, which the Petitioner requests Hon'ble Commission to allow in terms of
applicable regulations. Auditor Certificate for the actual weightage average rate of
interest of 13.25% is provided as an Annexure 8.

3.24 The Petitioner has worked out the normative loan and corresponding interest
expense based on actual loan portfolio as per the above referred Regulation for the
FY 2022-23 & FY 2023-24. Further, Interest on normative loan portfolio has been
worked out based on weightage average Interest Rate on actual loan portfolio in
accordance with Regulation 30 (5) of MERC MYT Regulations, 2019 for the FY
2022-23 & FY 2023-24.

3.25 it is to submit that the Petitioner has filed three Appeals which are pending before
Appellate Tribunal as discussed in earlier section of this Petition with reference to
approval of actual interest rate of 13.25%.

3.26 ATIL has incurred financial charges of Rs, 0.03 Crore and Rs. 0.03 Crore for FY
2022-23 and FY 2023-24 respectively and same has been claimed as part of
interest expense.

3.27 The computation of weighted average rate of interest along with the details of
year-wise and bank-wise opening loan balance and the applicable rate of interest
is shown in Form 5 of the formats attached at Appendix | to this Petition. The
interest expense is provided in the table below for the approval of the Hon'ble
Commission:

30






Trite lln & MYT Petitinn - ATII

actual Revenue from Transmission Charges excluding incentive, if any
and other components of working capital approved by the Commission in
the Truing-up before sharing of gains and losses;

(b) Rate of interest on working capital shall be on normative basis and
shall be equal to the Base Rate as on the date on which the Petition for
determination of Tariff is filed, plus 150 basis points:

Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, interest on
working capital shall be allowed at a rate equal to the weighted average
Base Rate prevailing during the concerned Year plus 150 basis points. ”

3.30 The Petitioner respectfully submits the Hon'ble Commission, that quantum of

3.31

3.32

333

Working Capital based on above regulations on normative basis and worked out
rate of interest on normative basis as provided by the above regulation.

[t is submitted that the Petitioner is engaged in the business of transmission of
electricity and such business involves higher expenditure towards Operation and
Maintenance costs. In order to maintain the system, including maintenance of
availability of the transmission system of more than 99% in a year, the Petjtioner is
required to maintain sufficient quantum of spares for smooth functioning of the
system.

Based on the above, the Petitioner respectfully submits the Hon’'ble Commission,
to approve quantum of Working Capital based on above regulations on normative
basis and also to allow rate of interest on normative basis as provided by the above
regulation, which has been claimed by the Petitioner.

In accordance with above provision, the Petitioner has considered rate of interest
on working capital as 9.30% & 10.07% based on the weighted average Base Rate
prevailing during the concerned Year plus 150 basis points for FY 2022-23 & FY
2023-24 respectively which is applied on the working capital to arrive at the
interest on working capital as given below:

Tahla 3.8: Winrkina Canital AceiimnFinne

VLIV CAPELISED I vionecn
Assumptions for Stores: Annual Expenses | 1% of GFA
Revenue 1-1/2 Month ARR

3.34 The Petitioner has considered 9.30% & 10.07% worked out as Weighted Average

Rate for the FY 2022-23 & FY 2023-24 respectively. Detailed working of rate of
interest worked out is as per table hereunder:
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equity capital determined in accordance with Regulation 27 for the assets
put to use, at the rate of up to 15.5 per cent per annum in Indian Rupee
terms, and for the Retail Supply Business, Return on Equity shall be
allowed on the amount of equity capital determined in accordance with
Regulation 27 at the rate of up to 17.5 per cent per annum in Indian Rupee
terms:

Provided that Return on Equity shall be allowed in two parts viz. Base
Return on Equity, and Additional Return on Equity linked to actua/
performance.

Provided further that Additional Return on Equity shall be allowed at time
of truing up for respective year based on actual performance, after
prudence check of the Commission

29.2 Base Return on equity for the Generating Company, Transmission
Licensee, Distribution Wires Business and MSLOC shall be allowed on the
equity capital determined in accordance with Regulation 27 for the assets
pUt to use, at the rate of 14 per cent per annum in Indian Rupee terms,
and for the Retail Supply Business, Return on equity capital shall be
allowed on the amount of equity capital determined in accordance with
Regulation 27 at the rate of 15.5 per cent per annum in Indian Rupee
terms.

Provided that in case the Generation Company or Licensee or MSLDC
claims Return on Equity at a rate lower than the normative rate specified
above for any particular year, then such claim for lower Return on Equity
shall be unconditional:

Provided further that such claim for lower Return on Equity shall be
allowed subject to the condition that the reduction in Return on Equity
shall be foregone permanently for that year and shall not be allowed to
be recouped at the time of Mid-Term Review or true-up as applicable.

29.3 The Base Return on Equity shall be computed in the following
manner:—

(3) Return at the allowable rate as per this Regulation, applied on the
amount of equity capital at the commencement of the Year; plus

(b) Return at the allowable rate as per this Regulation, applied on 50 per
cent of the equity capital portion of the allowable capital cost, for the
investments put to use in Generation Business or Transmission Business
or Distribution Business or MSLDC, for such Year

Provided that Base Return on Equity in respect of additional
capitalization after cut-off date beyond the original scope excluding
additional capitalization due to Change in Law or revised emission
standards, shall be computed at the weighted average rate of interest on
actual loan portfolio of the generating station or the transmission
system.”
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3.42 Further, Regulation No. 29.7 of MERC MYT Regulation, 2019 applicable for the FY
2020-21to FY 2024-25 provides for Return on Equity Capital as under:

"29.7 In case of Transmission, an additional rate of Return on Equity shall
be allowed on Transmission Availability, at time of truing up as per the
following schedule;

a) For every 0.50% over-achievement in Transmission Availability up
to Transmission Availability of 99.50% for AC System and 96.50% for
HVDC bi-pole links and HVDC back-to-back stations, rate of return
shall be increased by 0.75%,

b) For every 0.25% over-achievement in Transmission Availability
above 99.50% for AC System and 96.50% for HVDC bi-pole links and
HVDC back-to-back stations, rate of return shall be increased by
0.75%, subject to ceiling of additional rate of Return on Equity of
1.50%;

Provided that the additional rate of Return on Equity shall be allowed on
pro-rata basis for incremental Availability higher than Target Availability:

Provided further that Target Availability for additional rate of Return on
Equity shall be as per Regulation 60."

3,43 ATIL has achieved transmission availability of 99.88% and 99.84% for FY 2022-23
and FY 2023-24 respectively. Hence ATIL is eligible for 15.5% rate of return on
equity (14% of base rate of return on equity and 1.5% of additional rate of return on
equity) for FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24.

3.44 Further, Regulation No. 34.2 to 34.5 of MERC MYT Regulation, 2019 applicable for
the FY 2020-21 to FY 2024-25 provides for return on equity including additional
rate of return on equity to be grossed up with the effective tax rate for respective
financial year. Relevant part of the Regulation No. 34.2 to 34.5 of MERC MYT
Regulation, 2019 is reproduced here below:

“34.1 The Income Tax for the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC
for the regulated business shall be allowed on Return on Equity, including
Additional Return on Equity through the Tariff charged to the
Beneficiary/ies, subject to the conditions stipulated in Regulations 34.2
to 34.6:

34.2 The rate of Return on Equity, including additional rate of Return on
Equity as allowed by the Commission under Regulation 29 of these
Regulations shall be grossed up with the effective tax rate of respective
financial year.

34.3 The base rate of return on equity shall be rounded off to three
decimal places and shall be computed as per the formula given below:

Rate of pre-tax return on equity = Base rate of Return on Equity / (1-
t),
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Where “t" is the effective tax rate

34.4 The effective tax rate shall be considered on the basis of actual tax
paid in respect of financial year in line with the provisions of the relevant
Finance Acts by the concerned Generating Company or Licensee or
MSLDC, as the case may be:

Provided that, in case of the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC
has engaged in any other regulated or unregulated Business or Other
Business, the actual tax palid on income from any other regulated or
unregulated Business or Other Business shall be excluded for the
calculation of effective tax rate:

Provided further that effective tax rate shall be estimated for future year
based on actual tax paid as per latest available Audited accounts, subject
to prudence check.

34.5 In case of Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC paying
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT), t” shall be considered as MAT rate
including surcharge and cess:

/lustration.-

(3) In case of a Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC paying
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) at rate of 21.55% including surcharge and
cess:

Base rate of return on equity = 15.50/(1-0.2155) = 19.758%

(b) In case of Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC paying normal
corporate tax including surcharge and cess:

(i) Estimated Gross Income of Company as @ whole for FY 2020-21 is
Rs. 1,000 crore;

(/i) Income Tax for the year on above is Rs 240 crore;

(i) Effective Tax Rate for the year 2019-20 = Rs 240 Crore/Rs 1000
Crore =24%,

(iv) Base rate of return on equity = 15.50/ (1-0.24) = 20.395%. "

3.45 ATIL has paid income tax at prevailing MAT rate of 17.472% for FY 2022-23 and FY

2023-24 both. Hence, Rate of pre-tax return on equity will be worked out as under:

Rate of pre-tax return on equity = 15.5% / (1-17.472%)

=18.782%

3.46 Without prejudice to outcome of all three pending appeals, Return of Equity has

been computed based on the opening Capital cost of the Project as on 1% April,
2022 as approved by the Hon'ble Commission in its Order dated 31.03.2023 in Case
No. 238 of 2022. Hence the same has been computed considering 30% equity, as
the actual equity deployed for the project is more than 30% of the capital cost.

3.47 In accordance Regulation 29 & Regulation 34 of MYT Regulations, 2019, Return on

Equity of 18.782% has been considered in computing return as follows:
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average Base Rate prevailing during the concerned Year, plus 150 basis
points.

Provided that Carrying Cost or Holding Cost shall be allowed on the net
entitlement after sharing of efficiency gains and losses as approved after
true-up:

Provided further that in case of Distribution Licensees, the Incentive on
gccount of Distribution Losses, as applicable, shall be deducted from the
net entitlement, for the purpose of computing Carrying Cost or Holding
Cost.”

3.66 In line with above, carrying cost on Revenue Gap of FY 2022-23 & FY 2023-24 is
worked out as under:

Table 3-15: Carrying Cost on Revenue Gap of FY 2022-23 (Rs. Crore)

ITUINg Up Kevenue VAdp 1Tui Fr1T cucc-£o

Carrying cost for FY 2022-23 9.30% Half Year 0.17
Carrying cost for FY 2023-24 10.07% Full Year 0.36
Carrying cost for FY 2024-25 10.45% Full Year 0.36
Carrying cost for FY 2024-25 10.45% Half Year 0.18
Total Carrying Cost 1.07

Table 3-16: Carrying Cost on Revenue Gap of FY 2023-24 (Rs. Crore)

Truing up Revenue Gap for FY 2023-24

Carrying cost for FY 2023-24 10.07% Half Year 0.33
Carrying cost for FY 2024-25 10.45% Full Year 0.68
Carrying cost for FY 2024-25 10.45% Half Year 0.34
Total Carrying Cost 1.35

3.67 The total impact of carrying cost on Revenue Gap for FY 2022-23 & FY 2023-24 as
mentioned above is Rs. 1.07 Crore & Rs. 1.35 Crore respectively.

3.68 All the above computations are provided in Sheet “Carrying Cost” of the formats
submitted along with this Petition at Appendix I.
Revenue Gap for FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24

3.69 Following table provides the summary of trued-up ARR of FY 2022-23 & FY 2023-
24 to be recovered from the consumers after incorporation of sharing of gains and
losses, incentive and carrying cost;
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Table 3-17: Trued-un ARR far FY 2N22.2% 9. FY 2N23%.24 (Re Mraro)

1 MMM QHUWED diLtel Llully Up dinu pusL d IVs.0o 1U/7.05
sharing of gains/losses

2 Past Period Gap approved in MYT Order b 25.96 39.93
Case 290 of 2019 & MTR Order Case No.
238 of 2022

3 ARR allowed after truing up and post c=a+b 134.64 147.46
sharing of gains/losses and past
recoveries

4 Less: Revenue as per INSTS Order d 131.03 140.94

5 Revenue Gap/ (Surplus) for computation e=c-d 3.61 6.52
of Carrying Cost/(Hoiding) Cost

6 Recovery allowed during Provisional f 0.16
Truing-up in Order No. 238 of 2022

7 Carrying/(Holding) Cost on account of g 1.07 1.35
Revenue Gap/ (Surplus)

8 Net Revenue gap to be recovered h=e-f+ 4,52 7.88
including carrying cost and availability 9
incentive

3.70 The Hon'ble Commission is therefore requested to approve the recovery of tariff
during FY 2025-26 in the INSTS Order.
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CHAPTER - 4
PROVISIONAL TRUE-UP OF ARR FOR
FY 2024-25
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4. PROVISIONAL TRUE-UP OF ARR FOR FY 2024-25

4.1

4.2

The Petitioner in its MTR Petition had submitted ARR for FY 2024-25. The same
was approved by the Hon’ble Commission vide its Order dated 315 March, 2023 in
case No. 238 of 2022. The present chapter outlines the half yearly actual and half
yearly estimated performance of the Petitioner for FY 2024-25. In line with the
provisions of the MYT Regulations 2019, the Petitioner hereby submits the
provisional True-up of ARR comparing the estimated expenses vis-3-vis approved
expenses. The provisional True-up has been determined based on the Capital Cost
claimed and other Project related parameters without prejudice to outcome of the
three Appeals filed before Hon'ble Appellate Tribunal.

The provisional True-up of ARR for FY 2024-25 has been computed based on half
yearly actual and half yearly estimated performance.

Operations and Maintenance Expenses

4.3

4.4

4.5

Regulation No. 61.6 of the MYT Regulation 2019 provides year-wise norms of O&M
forthe FY 2020-21to FY 2024-25 for New Transmission Licensees. The term "New
Transmission Licensee” is defined as explanation to Regulation 61.6 to mean that
for which Transmission Licence is granted by the Commission prior to or after the
date of coming into effect of these Regulations, and for whom the O&M norms
have not been specified in Regulations 61.2 to 61,5 The Petitioner has been
granted Transmission License by the Hon'ble Commission in 2009, however, No
separate O&M norms have been specified in Regulations 61.2 to 61.5, and hence
the Petitioner shall be governed by O&M Norms for the FY 2020-21 to FY 2024-25
Specified at Regulation No. 61.6 of MYT Regulations, 2018S.

The Hon'ble Commission by its Order dated 31.03.2023 in case No. 238 of 2022 has
approved Rs 14.29 Crore as O&M Expenses for the FY 2024-25 considering
applicable Norms applicable to New Transmission Licensees according to
Regulation No. 61.6 of MYT Regulations, 2019.

Since, it is provisional truing-up, the Petitioner considers Normative O&M expenses
for FY 2024-25 in line with the approach adopted by the Hon'ble Commission in
the past Order. Normative O&M expenses for 2024-25 submitted by the Petitioner
is as under:

Tahla A_9: AMAarmakiuva MDA Cuvanana Loma TV AN A AE P Moo

11QHIIN11331uvi [y N - - N, ™I Ugaaia

438 438
(Average)
Applicable 0&M  Cost Norm  for

0.98 .98
Transmission Line (Rs. Lakh / Ckt. Km.) 0
0O&M Expense (Transmission Line) - (Rs 4.29 4.29

Crore)
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Interest on Long Term Loan

413

414

4.15

416

417

418

419

Regulation No. 30.1 read with Reguiation No. 27.1 of the MERC MYT Regulations,
2019 applicable for provisional True-Up of FY 2024-25 provides that the 70% of
Capital Cost of Project Cost shall be considered as Gross Normative Loan for
Calculation of Interest on loan. Regulation No. 30.2 of MERC MYT Regulations,
2019 provides that the Normative loan outstanding as on 01.04.2020 shall be
worked out by deducting the cumulative repayment as admitted by the Commission
up to 31.03.2020 for the Gross Normative Loan. Regulation No. 30.3 provides that
the repayment during each period of the Control Period FY 2020-21 to FY 2024-25
shall be deemed to be equal to the depreciation allowed for that year.

The Petitioner reproduce herein below Regulation No. 30.5 of MERC MYT
Regulations, 2019 providing for considering weightage average rate of interest
computed on the basis of actual loan portfolio of the year shall be allowed on
Normative loan.

“30.5 The rate of interest shall be the weighted average rate of interest
computed on the basis of the actual loan portfolio at the beginning of each year:

In term of the above regulations, the weighted average rate of interest computed
on the basis of the actual ioan portfolio at the beginning of the year shall be
considered as the rate of Interest. The Petitioner has worked out the Interest on
loan in accordance with above applicable Regulatory Provisions of MERC MYT
REGULATIONS, 2019 for provisional True-Up of FY 2024-25.

The weighted average rate worked out in Form 5 of the Tariff Format. Accordingly,
weightage average rate of Interest at beginning of the year works out to 13.25% for
the FY 2024-25, which the Petitioner requests Hon'ble Commission to allow in
terms of applicable regulations.

The Petitioner has worked out the normative loan and corresponding interest
expense based on actual loan portfolio as per the above referred Regulation for the
FY 2024-25, Further, Interest on normative loan portfolio has been worked out
based on weightage average Interest Rate on actual loan portfolio at beginning of
each year in accordance with Regulation 30 (5) of MERC MYT Regulations, 2019
for the FY 2024-25.

It is to submit that the Petitioner has filed three Appeals which are pending before
Appellate Tribunal as discussed in earlier section of this Petition with reference to
approval of interest rate of 13.25% for Inter Corporate Deposit.

The computation of weighted average rate of interest along with the details of
year-wise and bank-wise opening loan balance and the applicable rate of interest
is shown in Form 5 of the formats attached at Appendix | to this Petition. The
interest expense is provided in the table below for the approval of the Hon'ble
Commission:
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vpening odiance ar Loan 02.6<c 05.94
Addition in Loan during the Year - -
Repayment of Loan during the Year 37.65 37.65
Closing Balance of Loan 26.17 26.29
Average Loan Balance during the Year 44,99 45,12
Interest Rate (%) 12.20% 13.25%
Interest Expense 5.49 5.98

Note. - Detailed calculation has been provided in Sheet 'F5° of Data Formats

4.20 The Petitioner requests the Hon'ble Commission to approve the Interest on Loan
expense as indicated in the table above and claimed in this Petition.

Interest on Working Capital

4.21 Interest on Working Capital (IOWC) for the FY 2024-25 is worked out in accordance
with Regulation No. 32.2 of MYT Regulation 2019 reproduced hereunder:

“32.2 Transmission.—

(3) The working capital requirement of the Transmission Licensee shall
cover.—

(i) Normative Operation and maintenance expenses for one month;

(i) Maintenance spares at one per cent of the opening Gross Fixed Assets
for the Year; and

(7ii) One and a half month equivalent of the expected revenue from
transmission charges at the Tariff approved in the Order for ensuing
year/s;

minus

(iv) Amount held as security deposits in cash, if any, from Transmission
System Users:

Provided further that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, the
working capital requirement shall be re-computed on the basis of the
values of revised normative Operation & Maintenance expenses and
actual Revenue from Transmission Charges excluding incentive, if any
and other components of working capital approved by the Commission in
the Truing-up before sharing of gains and losses,

(b) Rate of interest on working capital shall be on normative basis and
shall be equal to the Base Rate as on the date on which the Petition for
determination of Tariff is filed, plus 150 basis points.
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Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, interest on
working capital shall be allowed at a rate equal to the weighted average
Base Rate prevailing during the concerned Year plus 150 basis points.”

4,22 The Petitioner respectfully submits the Hon'ble Commission, that quantum of
Working Capital based on above regulations on normative basis and worked out
rate of interest on normative basis as provided by the above regulation.

4,23 Based on the above, the Petitioner respectfully submits the Hon'ble Commission,
to approve quantum of Working Capital based on above regulations on normative
basis and also to allow rate of interest on normative basis as provided by the above
regulation, which has been claimed by the Petitioner.

4.24 In accordance with above provision, the Petitioner has considered rate of interest
on working capital as 10.45% based on SBI 1-year MCLR as on date of filing of
present Petition plus 150 basis point for FY 2024-25, which is applied on the
working capital to arrive at the interest on working capital as given below:

Tahle 4-4: Warkina Caniral Acciimntinne

OE&M Expenses 1 Month

Assumptions for Stores: Annual Expenses | 1% of GFA

Revenue 1-1/2 Month ARR

4.25 Detailed working of rate of interest worked out is as per table hereunder:

Tahle 4-5: Narmative Interast nn Winrkinn Canital far EY 92N24.95 (De Mrara)

UpEIgUIUID agllu vigllilelidiice ExXperises 1ol L1 LY
one month

Maintenance Spares @ 1% of the opening 713 713
GFA for the year.

One and a half month equivalent of the 17.44 17.44

expected revenue from transmission charges
at the tariff approved in the Order for ensuing
year/s

Less: Amount of Security Deposit from - -
Transmission System Users

Total Working Capital Requirement 27.76 27.76
Interest Rate (%) 9.45% 10.45%
Interest on Working Capital 2.43 2.69

Note:- Calculation has been provided in Sheet F6 'of Data Format
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4.26 The Petitioner requests the Hon'ble Commission to approve the Interest on
Working Capital Expense as indicated in the table above and claimed in this
Petition,

Contribution to Contingency Reserves

4,27 Regulation No. 35.1 of MERC MYT Regulation, 2019 applicable for the FY 2020-21
to FY 2024-25 provides as under for Contingency as under:

“35.7 Where the Licensee has made a contribution to the Contingency
Reserve, a sum not less than 0.25 per cent and not more than 0.5 per cent
of the original cost of fixed assets shall be allowed annually towards such
contribution in the calculation of Aggregate Revenue Requirement:
Provided that where the amount of such Contingency Reserves exceeds
five (5) per cent of the original cost of fixed assets, no further
contribution shall be allowead:

Provided further that such contribution shall be invested in securities
authorised under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 within a period of six months
of the close of the Year”

4.28 Accordingly, the contribution to contingency reserves for FY 2024-25 of 0.25% of
GFA is considered below for the kind consideration of the Hon’ble Commission:

Tahle 4-6: Contrihution ta Cantinaencev Reserve Exnense for FY 2024-25 (Rs. Crore)

vpening odighce ur Cuniiiygency Keseives 15,10 15.04
Opening Gross Fixed Assets 713.04 713.23
. - ”

Openlng Balance of Contingency Reserves as % 5 549% > 61%
of Opening GFA
Contribution to ingency Reserves duri

ntribution Contingency Reserves during 1.78 1.78
the year
Utilisation of Contingency Reserves during the )
year
Closing B [ R %

osing . alance of Contingency Reserves as % 5 79% > 86%
of Opening GFA
Closing Balance of Contingency Reserves 19.91 20.42

Note:- Calculation has been provided in Sheet ‘F10’ of the Data Format

Return on Equity

4,29 Regulation No. 29.1,29.2 & 29.3 of MERC MYT Regulation, 2019 applicable for the
FY 2020-21to FY 2024-25 provides for Return on Equity Capital as under:

29,1 Return on Equity for the Generating Company, Transmission
Licensee, Distribution Wires Business and MSLDC shall be allowed on the
equity capital determined in accordance with Regulation 27 for the assets

-

put to use, at ' 7 T T pee
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terms, and for the Retail Supply Business, Return on Equity shall be
allowed on the amount of equity capital determined in accordance with
Regulation 27 at the rate of up to 17.5 per cent per annum in Indian Rupee
terms:

Provided that Return on Equity shall be allowed in two parts viz. Base
Return on Equity, and Additional Return on Equity linked to actual
performance:

Provided further that Additional Return on Equity shall be allowed at time
of truing up for respective year based on actual performance, after
prudence check of the Commission

29.2 Base Return on equity for the Generating Company, Transmission
Licensee, Distribution Wires Business and MSLDC shall be allowed on the
equity capital determined in accordance with Regulation 27 for the assets
put to use, at the rate of 14 per cent per annum in Indian Rupee terms,
and for the Retail Supply Business, Return on equity capital shall be
alflowed on the amount of equity capital determined in accordance with
Regulation 27 at the rate of 15.5 per cent per annum in Indian Rupee
terms.

Provided that in case the Generation Company or Licensee or MSLOC
claims Return on Equity at a rate lower than the normative rate specified
above for any particular year, then such claim for lower Return on Equity
shall be unconditional:

Provided further that such claim for lower Return on Equity shall be
allowed subject to the condition that the reduction in Return on Equity
shall be foregone permanently for that year and shall not be allowed to
be recouped at the time of Mid-Term Review or true-up as applicable.

29.3 The Base Return on Equity shall be computed in the following
manner.—

(3) Return at the allowable rate as per this Regulation, applied on the
amount of equity capital at the commencement of the Year, plus

(b) Return at the allowable rate as per this Regulation, applied on 50 per
cent of the equity capital portion of the allowable capital cost, for the
investments put to use in Generation Business or Transmission Business
or Distribution Business or MSLDC, for such Year

Provided that Base Return on Equity in respect of additiona/
capitalization after cut-off date beyond the original scope excluding
additional capitalization due to Change in Law or revised emission
standards, shall be computed at the weighted average rate of interest on
actual loan portfolio of the generating station or the transmission
system.”
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4,30 Further, Regulation No. 34.2 to 34.5 of MERC MYT Regulation, 2019 applicable for
the FY 2020-21 to FY 2024-25 provides for return on equity including additional
rate of return on equity to be grossed up with the effective tax rate for respective
financial year. Relevant part of the Regulation No. 34.2 to 34.5 of MERC MYT
Regulation, 2019 is reproduced here below:

“34,2 The rate of Return on Equity, including additional rate of Return on
Equity as allowed by the Commission under Regulation 29 of these
Regulations shall be grossed up with the effective tax rate of respective
financial year.

34.3 The base rate of return on equity shall be rounded off to three
decimal places and shall be computed as per the formula given below:

Rate of pre-tax return on equity = Base rate of Return on Equity / (1-
t),

Where “t” is the effective tax rate

34.4 The effective tax rate shall be considered on the basjs of actual tax
paid in respect of financial year in line with the provisions of the relevant
Finance Acts by the concerned Generating Company or Licensee or
MSLDC, as the case may be:

Provided that, in case of the Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC
has engaged in any other regulated or unregulated Business or Other
Business, the actual tax paid on income from any other regulated or
unregulated Business or Other Business shall be excluded for the
calculation of effective tax rate:

Provided further that effective tax rate shall be estimated for future year
based on actual tax paid as per latest available Audited accounts, subject
to prudence check.

34.5 In case of Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC paying
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT), "t” shall be considered as MAT rate
including surcharge and cess.

lllustration:-

(a) In case of a Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC paying
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) at rate of 21.55% including surcharge and
cess:

Base rate of return on equity = 15.50/(1-0.2155) = 19.758%

(b) In case of Generating Company or Licensee or MSLDC paying normal
corporate tax including surcharge and cess:

(1) Estimated Gross Income of Company as a whole for FY 2020-21is
Rs. 1,000 crore;

(/i) Income Tax for the year on above is Rs 240 crore;
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(i) Effective Tax Rate for the year 2019-20 = Rs 240 Crore/Rs 1000
Crore = 24%,

(iv) Base rate of return on equity = 15,50/ (1-0.24) = 20.395%."

4,31 ATIL has considered income tax at prevailing MAT rate of 17.472% for FY 2024-25.
Hence, base Rate of pre-tax return on equity will be worked out as under:

Base Rate of pre-tax return on equity = 14.0% / (1-17.472%)
=16.96%

4.32 Without prejudice to outcome of three pending Appeals, Return of Equity has been
computed based on the closing equity of the Project as on 31 March, 2024 as
worked out in present Petition along with additional capitalisation in FY 2024-25.
Hence the same has been computed considering 30% equity, as the actual equity
deployed for the project is more than 30% of the capital cost.

4,33 In accordance Regulation 29 & Regulation 34 of MYT Regulations, 2019, Return on
Equity of 16.96% has been considered in computing return as follows:

Tahio 4-7: Roriirn an Ennirv far EV 2N2A4A.98 De Mraea)

ILyuluLuly  Lywily OL LIS USYliiny vl uig c12.71 12,97
year
Capitalisation during the year - -
Equity portion of capitalisation during the - -
year
Reduction in Equity Capital on account of - -
retirement / replacement of assets

Regulatory Equity at the end of the year 213.91 213.97
Rate of Return on Equity 14.00% 14.00%
Tax Rate A 17.472% 17.472%
Rate of pre-tax Return on Equity 16.96% 16.96%
Return on Regulatory Equity at the beginning 36.29 36.30
of the year

Return on Equity portion of capitalisation - -
during the year

Total Return on Regulatory Equity 36.29 36.30

Note.- Detail calculation has been provided in Sheet 'F7’ of the Data Format

Non-Tariff and other Business Income

4.34 The Hon'ble Commission has approved the non-tariff income of Rs. 1.10 Crore for
FY 2024-25 earned out of investment of contingency reserves. ATIL is estimating
income from contingency reserves of Rs, 1.09 Crore based on investment of
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1 ARK dlOweOo arcer ruing up anad post snaring or 5 ¥/.0V
gains/losses
Past Period Gap approved in MTR Order Case 238 42.72
2 b
of 2022
3 ARR allowed after truing up and post sharing of c=a+h 140.32
gains/losses and past recoveries
Less: Revenue as per InSTS Order d 139.55
Revenue Gap/ (Surplus) for computation of =c-d 0.77
Carrying Cost/(Holding) Cost e=c-

4,40 The Hon'ble Commission is therefore requested to approve the recovery of tariff
during FY 2025-26 in the InSTS Order.
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CHAPTER -5

Forecast of ARR for FY 2025-26 to FY
2029-30
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51 The Forecast of Aggregate Revenue Requirement of ATIL has been determined in
accordance with the provisions of the MYT Regulations, 2024, The components of

ARR are:

€)) Operation and Maintenance Expense

(b) Depreciation

(c) Interest on Loan Capital
(d) Interest on working capital and deposits from Transmission System
Users

(e) Contribution to contingency reserves

) Return on Equity Capital & Additional Return on Equity Capital

(@) Non-Tariff Income

(h) Income from Other Business, to the extent specified in the Regulations

Operation and Maintenance Expense

5.2 Regulation No. 80.6 of the MYT Regulation 2024 provides Norms for O&M
expenses for Adani Transmission (India) Limited. Hence, the Petitioner shall be
governed by O&M Norms for the FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 specified at Reguiation

No. 80.6 of MYT Regulations, 2024,

5.3 Normative O&M expenses for 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 submitted by the Petitioner

is as under:

Table 5-1: Narmative OfM Fxnenc<e far Contrnl Parind fRe Crara)

11 aISIIS3IUI LIE — UKL, 420 4530 4585 458 458
Km. basis (Average)

Applicable O&M Cost 0.85 0.89 0.93 0.97 1.02
Norm for Transmission

Line (Rs. Lakh / Ckt. Km.)

0&M Expense 3.72 3.90 4.07 4,25 4.47
(Transmission Line) - (Rs

Crore)

Number of Bays (Average) 6 6 6 6 6
Applicable O&M Cost 186.51 194.89 203.64 212.78 222.33
Norm for Bays (Rs. Lakh /

Bay)

O&M Expense (Bays) - (Rs 11.19 11.69 12.22 12.77 13.34

Crore)
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27 and accordingly, depreciation rates are calculated based on remaining
depreciation to be claimed and remaining useful life.

5.9 The Petitioner has considered opening GFA of FY 2025-26 same as of closing GFA
of FY 2024-25. The depreciation computation is provided in the table below:
Tahle 5.2 Nanraciatinn F¥noneoa far Pantrnl Darind /De Crara)

vpeliy ura 112,22 /2¢.£5 12&,¢5 /2.2 124,45
Additions during the 19.00 - - - -

year

Retirement  during - - - - -
the year

Closing GFA 732.23 732.23 732.23 732.23 732.23
Depreciation 38.03 7.18 7.18 7.18 7.18

5.10 Detailed computation of depreciation has been provided at Format F4 of the

formats provided along with this Petition at Appendix |.

Interest on Long Term Loan

51

5.12

513

Regulation No. 30.1 read with Regulation No. 27.1 of the MERC MYT Regulations,
2024 applicable for FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 provides that the 70% of Capital
Cost of Project Cost shall be considered as Gross Normative Loan for Calculation
of Interest on loan. Regulation No. 30.2 of MERC MYT Regulations, 2024 pravides
that the Normative loan outstanding as on 01.04.2025 shall be worked out by
deducting the cumulative repayment as admitted by the Commission up to
31.03.2025 for the Gross Normative Loan. Regulation No. 30.3 provides that the
repayment during each period of the Control Period FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30
shall be deemed to be equal to the depreciation allowed for that year.

The Petitioner reproduce herein below Regulation No. 30.5 of MERC MYT
Regulations, 2024 providing for considering weightage average rate of interest
computed on the basis of actual loan portfolio of the year shall be allowed on
Normative loan:

"30,5 The rate of interest shall be the weighted average rate of interest
computed on the basis of the actual loan portfolio at the beginning of each year:

”

in term of the above regulations, the weighted average rate of interest computed
on the basis of the actual loan portfolio at the beginning of the year shall be
considered as the rate of Interest. The Petitioner has worked out the Interest on
loan in accordance with above applicable Regulatory Provisions of MERC MYT
REGULATIONS, 2024 for FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30.

5.14 The weighted average rate worked out in Form 5 of the Tariff Format. Accordingly,

weightage average rate of Interest at beginning of the year works out to 13.25% for
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the FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30, which the Petitioner requests Hon'ble Commission
to allow in terms of applicable regulations.

5.15 it is to submit that the Petitioner has filed three Appeals which are pending before
Appellate Tribunal as discussed in earlier section of this Petition with reference to
approval of actual interest rate of 13.25%.

5.16 The computation of weighted average rate of interest along with the details of
year-wise and bank-wise opening loan balance and the applicable rate of interest
is shown in Form 5 of the formats attached at Appendix | to this Petition. The
interest expense is provided in the table below for the approval of the Hon'ble

Commission.
Table 5-4: Interest an Laan far Cantral Perind (Rs. Crare)

vpening odidnce or Lodn 0. 1.00 - - -
Addition in Loan during the 13.30 - - - -
Year

Repayment of Loan during 38.03 1.56 - - -
the Year

Closing Balance of Loan 1.56 - - - -
Average Loan Balance 13.93 0.78 - - -
during the Year

Interest Rate (%) 13.25% | 13.25% | 13.25% | 13.25% | 13.25%
Interest Expense 1.85 0.10 - - -

Interest on Working Capital

5.17 Interest on Working Capital (IOWC) for the FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 is worked
out in accordance with Regulation No. 32.2 of MYT Regulation 2024 reproduced
hereunder:

"32.2 Transmission.—

(3) The working capital requirement of the Transmission Licensee shall
cover :—

(i) Normative Operation and maintenance expenses for one month;

(i) Maintenance spares at one per cent of the opening Gross Fixed Assets
for the Year; and

(iii)) One and a half month equivalent of the expected revenue from
transmission charges at the Tariff approved in the Order for ensuing
year/s;

minus
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(Iv) Amount held as security deposits in cash, if any, from Transmission
System Users:

Provided further that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, the
working capital requirement shall be re-computed on the basis of the
values of revised normative Operation & Maintenance expenses and
actual Revenue from Transmission Charges excluding incentive, if any
and other components of working capital approved by the Commission in
the Truing-up before sharing of gains and losses;

(b) Rate of interest on working capital shall be on normative basis and
shall be equal to the Base Rate as on the date on which the Petition for
determination of Tariff is filed, plus 150 basis points:

Provided that for the purpose of Truing-up for any year, interest on
working capital shall be allowed at a rate equal to the weighted average
Base Rate prevalling during the concerned Year plus 150 basis points.”

518 The Petitioner respectfully submits the Hon'ble Commission, that quantum of
Working Capital based on above regulations on normative basis and worked out
rate of interest on normative basis as provided by the above regulation.

5.19 Based on the above, the Petitioner respectfully submits the Hon'ble Commission,
to approve quantum of Working Capital based on above regulations on normative
basis and also to allow rate of interest on normative basis as provided by the above
regulation, which has been claimed by the Petitioner.

5.20 In accordance with above provision, the Petitioner has considered rate of interest
on working capital as 10.45% based on SBI 1-year MCLR plus 150 basis point as on
date of filing of present Petition for FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 which is applied on
the working capital to arrive at the interest on working capital as given below:

UGV EXpenses 1 Month

Tahle B.&: \WWarkina Manikal Aceiimakrianes

Assumptions for Stores: Annual Expenses | 1% of GFA

Revenue 1-1/2 Month ARR

5.21 The computation of Interest on Working Capital is provided in the table below:

Tahile B.A: Intarack an Winrbina Canital far Cankeal Daciad fMa AaooaN\

el el A RN PN

Maintenance  Expenses
for one manrh

[SIN1Y) .20 .42
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Projections of Aggregate Revenue Requirement for Control Period

5.33 Based on the above parameters, the projection of Aggregate Revenue Requirement
for ATIL for the FY 2025-26 to 2029-30 is summarized in the Table below:

Table 5-10: Aggregate Revenue Requirement - FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 (Rs.

Crara)
vpEIgLivit o 14,71 12,02 10.£7 17.UL 17,51
Maintenance
Expenses
Depreciation 38.03 7.18 7.18 7.18 7.18
Expenses
Interest on Loan 1.85 0.10 - - -
Capital
Interest on Working 2.33 1.77 1.78 1.80 1.81
Capital and on
Consumer Security
Deposits
I[ncome Tax
Contribution to 1.78 1.83 1.83 1.83 1.83
contingency
reserves
Total Revenue 58.91 26.48 27.09 27.83 28.63
Expenditure
Add: Grossed up 40.72 41.26 41.26 41.26 41.26
Return on Equity
Capital
Aggregate Revenue 99.63 67.73 68.34 69.08 69.89
Requirement
Less: Non Tariff 1.19 1.29 1.40 1.50 1.60
Income
Less: Income from
Other Business
Less: Income from
Open Access
charges
Aggregate Revenue 98.44 66.44 66.95 67.58 68.29
Requirement from
Transmission

Transmission Tariff Recovery for Control Period

5.34 Since the transmission system forms an integral part of the State Transmission
Network, ATIL shall recover monthly transmission charges in line with Regulation



Triie lIn &- MAYT Petitinn - ATII
83 of MYT Regulations 2024, as amended from time to time as was being done for
the previous Control Period.

5.35 ATIL Proposes to recover the following tariff recovery in FY 2025-26 to 2029-30:

Table 5-11: Tariff Recovery - FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 (Rs. Crore)

1 rFulgldsl Ul ARK T J0.449 D0.44 ©0.¥D 0/.20 0o.£Y
present Petition

2 | Revenue Gap/ (Surplus) 3.45
for FY 2022-23

3 | Carrying cost on 1.07

Revenue Gap/ (Surplus)
for FY 2022-23

4 | Revenue Gap/ (Surplus) 6.52
for FY 2023-24
5 | Carrying cost on 1.35

Revenue Gap/ (Surplus)
for FY 2023-24

6 | Revenue Gap/ (Surplus) 0.77

fnr CV 2N2A_DK
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CHAPTER - 6
PRAYERS
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6. PRAYERS

In view of the above facts and circumstances, the Petitioner prays to the Hon'ble
Commission that it may be pleased to: '

(a)
(b)
(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

Admit the present Petition.
Allow Additional Capital Cost claimed in this Petition.

Approve the true-up of ARR along with additional Return on Equity and
carrying cost for FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24

Approve the provisional true-up of ARR for FY 2024-25 as indicated in this
Petition

Approve the projections of ARR for FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 as indicated
in this Petition

Allow recovery of the impact of the above prayers from the TSUs along with
applicable carrying cost

Condone any inadvertent omissions/errors/shortcomings and permit ATIL to
add/change/modify/aiter this filing and make further submissions as may be
required at a future date.

Allow any other relief, order or direction, which the Hon'ble Commission
deems fit to be issued

Pass such further orders, as the Hon'ble Commission may deem fit and
appropriate, keeping in view the facts and circumstances of the case.

For Adani Transmission (India) Limited

Place: Ahmedabad Prashant Kumar
Date: 25/11/2024 Authorized Signatory
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ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
MYT Petition Formats - Transmission

L |JAggregate Kevenue Kequirement - Summary Sheet rorm 1

2 |Summary of Operations and Maintenance Expenses Form 2

3 |Operation and Maintenance Expenses -Normative Form 2.1
4  |Transmission Network Details Form 2.2
5 |Employee Expenses Form 2.3
6 |Administration & General Expenses Form 2.4
7 |Repair & Maintenance Expenses Form 2.5
8 |Summary of Capital Expenditure and Capitalisation Form 3

9 |Capital Expenditure Plan Form 3.1
10 |Capitalisation Plan Form 3.2
11 |Capital Work-in-Progress Form 3.3
12 |Assets & Depreciation -Summary Form 4

Assets & Depreciation - Existing Schemes (CoD on or before the March 31,
13 {2025 or Assets in-principally approved before the notification of MERC MYT |Form 4.1 (E)
Regulations 2024)

14 |Assets & Depreciation - New Schemes (not covered under Existing Assets)  [Form 4.1 (N)
15 |Interest on Loan Capital Form §
16 |Interest on Working Capital and Security Deposits Form 6
17 |Return on Regulatory Equity Form 7
18 [Non-tariff Income Form 8
19 |Income Tax Form 9
20 |Contribution to Contingency Reserves Form 10
21 |Income from Transmission Charges Form 11
22 |Payment Efficiency Form 12
23 [Truing Up Summary Form 13
32 |Depreciation Schedule of Assets Form 15

Note: * Applicable only for new Transmission Project for which Provisional/Final tariff approval is being sought
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ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
MYT Petition Formats - Transmission
Form 13: Truing-up Summary

FY 2022-23
1 Operation & Maintenance Expenses 13.26 13.26 13.15 ©.11) ©.11) - 13.19
2 Depreciation Expenses 37.75 3775 37.75 0.00 0.00 37.75
3 Interest on Long-term Loan Capital 14.68 15.98 15.98 130 1.30 15.98
4 Inlere§t on Working Capital and on security 233 229 . @33 @29 ©.04) 0.76
deposits
5 Income Tax - - - - - -
6 Contribution to Contingency reserves 1.78 1.29 1.29 (0.49) (0.49) 1.29
7 Total Revenue Expenditure 69.80 70.57 68.18 (1.62) {2.39) 0.78 68.97
8 Retumn on Equity Capital 36.29 40.18 40.18 3.89 3.89 40.18
9 Aggregnte Revenue Requirement 106.09 110.75 108.36 2.27 (2.39) 4.67 109.15
10 Less: Non Tariff Income 0.86 047 0.47 (0.39) (0.39) 0.47
11 Less: Income from Other Business - - - - - -
12 |Aggregate Revenue Requirement from 105.23 110.28 107.89 2.66 (239) 5.06 108.68
Transmission Tariff
13 Revenue from tr ission tariff
a Long-term TSUs incl Distribution Licensees
b Medium Term OA Users
c Short-term OA Users
14 Revenue Gap/(Surplus)
FY 2023-24
1 Operation & Maintenance Expenses 13.74 13.74 13.48 (0.26) (0.26) - 13.57
2 Depreciation Expenses 17.65 37.65 37.65 0.00 0.00 37.65
3 Interest on Long-term Loan Capital 10.08 11.00 11.00 0.92 0.92 11.00
4 Inler5§t on Working Capital and on security 245 261 439 1.94 178 .16 330
deposits
35 Income Tax - - - - - -
6 Contribution to Contingency reserves 1.78 2.79 2.79 1.01 1.01 2.79
7 Total Revenue Expenditure 65.70 67.79 69.31 3.61 1.52 2.09 68.21
8 Retum on Equity Capital 36.29 40.19 40.19 3.90 3.90 40.19
9 Aggregate Revenue Requirement 101.99 107.98 109.50 7.50 1.52 5.98 108.39
10 Less: Non Tariff Income 0.98 0.86 0.86 0.12) (0.12) 0.86
11 Less: Income {rom Other Business - - - - - -
1z |Aeeregate Revenue Requirement from 10101 107.12 108.64 7.62 152 6.10 107.53
Transmission Tarifl
13 Revenue from tr ission tariff
E Long-term TSUs incl Distribution Licensees
b Medium Term QA Users
c Short-term OA Users
14 Revenue Gap/(Surplus)

Naote: Please give detailed explanation separately for the deviations on account of uncontrollable factors
*In case MTR Order is yet to be issued, then MYT Order values to be captured under this column
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_ Annexure 1
Deloitte

k' II LLP S.G. Highway
Ahmedabad-380
Has Ins & Se s Gu?;reat,al:dia o

Tel: +91 79 6682 7300
Fax: +91 79 6682 7400

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To The Members of Adani Transmission (India) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Adani Transmission (India)
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash
Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“"Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and
its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date. )

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing ("SAs") specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

e The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

e Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

« If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Page 1 of 14
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to

do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financia! control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are aiso responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

/\\\sl(l G \\
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the econpgmic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial

statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

We are not statutory auditors of majority of the other Adani group companies and therefore
the scope of our audit does not extend to any transactions or balances which may have
occurred or been undertaken between these Adani group companies and any supplier,
customer or any other party which has had a business relationship with the Company during

the year.

Our opinion on the financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

Page 3 of 14
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b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by iaw have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS  specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (@) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the Note 44A(i) to the financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly iend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, securlty or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Benef"crarles
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vi.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowiedge and
belief, as disclosed in the Note 44A(ii) to the financial statements, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behaif of the Uitimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e),
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
proposed final dividend for the year.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining
books of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2023, and
accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Hardik Sutaria

(Partner)

Place: Ahmedabad (Membership No. 116642)
Date: May 29, 2023 (UDIN:23116642BGWGBF7240)
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Adani
Transmission (India) Limited ("the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements based on the internal control with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controis,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial
control with reference to financial statements established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

oy

Ny
o
-

Hardik Sutaria

(Partner)

Place: Ahmedabad {(Membership No. 116642)
Date: May 29, 2023 (UDIN:23116642BGWGBF7240Q)
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our

knowledge and belief, we state that:

iy a)

b)

)

A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work in
Progress and relevant details of Right of use assets.

B) The Company has maintained proper records of showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which
all fixed assets are verified in a phased manner, over a period of three years. In our opinion,
this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets were
physically verified by the Management during the year. Accarding to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

With respect to immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee) disclosed in the financial statements included in property, ptant and equipment,
according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the examination
of the registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to us, we report
that, the title deeds of such immovable properties are held in the name of the Company as
at the balance sheet date, except for the following:

1

Description| Gross Carrying | Held in| Whether | Period| Reason for not being
of Property | carrying value as| name of | promoter, | held held in name of
value a at March director Company

at Marcl., 31, 2023 or their
31, 2023 (Rs- In relative
(Rs. Ir' <rores) or
crores) employee
86 Freehold | 25.41 25.41 Adani No From | The title deeds are in the
lands at Power April name of predecessor
various Limited 01, Company, from which the
locations 2014 | transmission business
was demerged into the
Company under section
391 to 394 of the
Companies Act, 1956 in
terms of the approval of
the Honourable Hig
Court of judicature.
(Refer Note 5 to the

financial statements)
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d)

e)

(ii) a)

b)

In respect of immovable properties that have been taken on lease and disclosed in the
financial statements as right-of use asset as at the balance sheet date, the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company, except for the following:

Description| Gross { Carrying | Held in| Whether | Period| Reason for not being held
of Property carryingi value as| name | promoter,| held in name of Company
value as; at March; of director
at March! 31, 2023 or their
I 31, '(Rs. In relative |
2023 ] crores) or '
(Rs. In employee
crores) I
2 Leasehold; 8.78 | 6.40 Adani No From | The title deeds are in the name
lands ! Power . April of predecessor Company, from
! Limited 01, which the transmission

the Company under section
391 to 394 of the Companies
Act, 1956 in terms of the
approval of the Honourable
High Court of judicature.
(Refer Note 5 to the financial;
statements)

2014 | business was demerged intoi
)
]

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including Right
of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable
intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of
10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical
verification of inventories when compared with books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time
during the year, from banks on the basis of security of current assets of the Company and
other entities. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the quarterly returns or statements comprising stock statements, debtors / receivables
and creditors / payables filed by the Company in respect of current assets held by it and
offered as security with such banks are in agreement with unaudited books of account of
the Company of the respective quarters ended June 30, 2022, September 30, 2022, and
December 31, 2022. The Company is yet to submit the return/ statement for the quarter
ended March 31, 2023, with the banks.
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iiii)

a)

b)

c)

The Company has provided security and granted unsecured loans to companies and any
other parties during the year, in respect of which:

The Company has provided loans and security during the year and details of which are given

below:
(Rs. in Crores)

(P—a;rt’icurlars o Inter corpor;té deposit; Security (Refer Note 43
in nature of loans* of the Financial
Statements)#

A. Aggregate amount granted/
provided during the year:

- Holding Company (Adani 325.56 -
Transmission Limited)

- Others~ 0.08 -
B. Balance outstanding as at balance

sheet date:

- Holding Company (Adani 286.64 4,001.77

Transmission Limited) (first pari
passu charge)

- Intermediate Holding Company** - 4,001.77
(Adani Transmission Step-One
Limited) (first pari passu charge)

- Fellow Subsidiary** (Maharashtra - 3,168.89
Eastern Grid Power Transmission
Company Limited) (first pari passu
charge)

- Others~ 0.0¢ -

*Includes interest accrued on Inter Corporate Deposit ("ICD"), which have been converted
to Inter Corporate Deposit (Refer Note 46 to the financial statements)

~Employee loans

#Does not include securities given for borrowings taken by the Company

** Carrying value of the assets of the Company which are given as security in respect of
borrowings availed by the Intermediate Holding Company and Fellow Subsidiary

The security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of the above-mentioned
intercorporate depaosits in the nature loans provided during the year are, in our opinion,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

The Company has not made investments and provided any guarantee to any other entity
during the year.

In respect of the above intercorporate deposits in the nature of loans, provided by the
Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been

stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and interest due, if any, during the
year have been regular as per stipulations.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

d)

e)

f)

a)

b)

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed, in respect of intercorporate deposits in the nature of loans by the Company,
there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed
or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same

parties.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during
the year. Hence, reporting under ciause 3(iii}(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees, and securities

provided, as applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits from the public to which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India
and the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014, as amended, would apply. Accordingly,
clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the books of account
maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules,
2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records
under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie,
the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the Company. We have,
however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

In respect of statutory dues:

Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Income-tax,
cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have been regularly
deposited by it with the appropriate authorities in all cases during the year. We have been
informed that the provisions of the Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 are not applicable

to the Company.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident
Fund, Income-tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited
on account of disputes as on March 31, 2023.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered
or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)

during the year.

I
TSI N
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(ix)

(x)

(xi)

a)

b)

d)

e)

f)

a)

b)

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other
borrowings, or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year, except as
under:

Nature of | Name of | Amount | No. of | Amount Amount paid | Remarks, if

Borrowing | lender not paid | days Remaining | till the date | any

Including on due | delay or junpaid as|of

Debt date unpaid at the report

Securities during Balance

L the year Sheet date

Inter Adani Rs. 1 day NIL NIL Loan tenure

corporate | Transmissi | 51.67 extended to

deposit in | on  Step- | Crores May 02,

nature of | One 2025, vide

loans Limited Addendum
dated
January 01,
2023

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company
were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were
obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for Jong-term purposes
by the Company.

The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year and
hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year and
hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.
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(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv) a)
b)

(xv)

{xvi) a)

b)
(xvii)

(xviil)

& SelisLLP

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year. We have taken into consideration the Short Seller Report
referred to in Note 44B of the financial statements while determining the nature, timing and
extent of audit procedures.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

We have considered the internal audit observations of the Company presented to the Audit
Committee on quarterly basis, for the period under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the
year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies

Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting under
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
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‘On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial

assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) during the current financial year and accordingly, there are no unspent CSR amount
for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act
or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the
said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the
year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Hardik Sutaria

(Partner)

Place: Ahmedabad (Membership No. 116642)
Date: May 29, 2023 (UDIN:23116642BGWGBF7240)
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ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED

(CIN :U40101GJ2013PLCO77700)

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

adani

Transmission
 in Crores)

. As at As at
P
articulars NOEeS  34st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 5 2.725.51 2,967.94
Right-of-Use Assets SA 6.40 8.99
Capital Work-In-Progress 5D 23.02 5.54
Intangibie Assets 5B 1.53 1.48
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 6 13,98 10.58
(i) Loans 7 286.64 .
(iiiy Other Financial Assets 8 32.62 51.47
Income Tax Assets (Net) 9 15.29 56.20
Other Non-current Assets 10 449.86 44323
Total Nen-Current Assets 3,554.85 3,543.43
Current Assets
Inventories 1 36.20 29.07
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 12 0.10 0.62
(i) Trade Receivables 13 347,40 104,45
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 14 7.15 1.58
(iv) Loans 15 0.08 0.02
(v) Other Financial Assets 16 49.81 32.70
Other Current Assets 17 6.18 2.85
Total Current Assets 446.92 171,29
. Total Assets 4,001.77 3.714,72
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share Capital 18 110.05 110.05
Other Equity 19 2,714.01 2,396.39
Total Equity 2,824.06 2,506.44
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
() Borrowings 20 417.23 302.74
Provisions 21 139 17.60
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 22 446.09 442.02
Total Non-Current Liabilities 864.71 762.36
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 23 98.95 250.94
(i) Trade Payables
- Total outst?ndmg dues of micro enterprises and 1.03 0.59
small enterprises 24
- Total outsténdmg dues of creleors other than 62.47 23,38
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iif) Other Financial Liabilities 25 123.48 152.20
Provisions 21 15.98 0.44
Other Current Liabilities 26 11.09 18.37
Total Current Liabilities 313.00 445,92
Total Liabilities 1,177.71 1,208.28
Tatal Equity and Liabilities 4,001.77 3,714,72

See accompanying nates forming part of the financial statements

As per our reports attached of even date
FOR DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants

HARDIK SUTARIA

Partner

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29th May, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED

Rohit Soni 5
Whole-time Director
DIN: 09336186

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29th May, 2023

{

r p/
litin Patel

hief Financial Officer
lace : Ahmedabad

ate : 29th May, 2023

J

—~

Director

DIN: 06860381
Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29th May, 2023

YT
Krutarth Thakkar
Company Secretary

Place : Ahmedabad
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ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED

(CIN :U40101GJ2013PLC077700)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023

ade

Jransmission

( in Crores)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Notes  3ist march, 2023 31st March, 2022
Income
Revenue from Operations 27 784.70 769.64
Qther Income 28 12.69 32.03
Total Income 797.39 801.67
Expenses
Operating Expenses 29 42.01 41.41
Employee Benefits Expense 30 .7.48 8.12
Finance Costs 31 73.46 138.44
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 5C 261.54 257.21
Other Expenses 32 28.00 22.18
Total Expenses 412.49 467.36
Profit Before Tax and Deferred Asset recoverable / adjustable for the 384.90 334.31
year
Tax Expense: 33
Current Tax 67.26 58.38
Deferred Tax 4.07 (29.17)
Total Tax Expenses 71.33 29.21
Profit After Tax but before Deferred Asset recoverable / adjustable for 313.57 305.10
the year
Deferred Asset recoverable / adjustable 4,07 (29.17)
Profit After Tax for the year 317.64 275.93
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Remeasurement gain / (loss) of Defined Benefit Plan (0.02) (0.08)
-Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss - 0.02
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year (Net of Tax) (0.02) (0.06)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 317.62 275.87
Earnings Per Equity Share (EPS) (in )
(Face Value ¥ 10 Per Share)
Basic Earnings Per Share 34 28.86 25.07
28.86 25.07

Diluted Earnings Per Share

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

As per our reports attached of even date

FOR DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

HARDIK SUTARIA
Partner

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29th May, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED

Rohit Soni 5
Whole-time Director
DIN: 09336186

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29th May, 2023

sial Officer
iedabad

-

May, «

“ilditanyao B-T-1lele]
Director

DIN: 06860381

Place : Ahmedabad
Date :29th May, 2023

" o Tvossd®”

Krutarth Thakkar
Company Secretary
Place : Ahmedabad
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ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
(CIN :U40101GJ2013PLCO77700)

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31st March, 2023

a 3ni

Transmission

® in Crores)

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

A, Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Finance Costs
Unclaimed Liabilities / Excess provision written back
Exchange rate difference - Unrealised
Loss on sale/discard of Property, Plant and Equipment
Interest income
Operating profit before working capital changes
Movement in Working Capital:
(Increase) / Decrease in Assets :
Loans, other financial assets and other assets
Inventories
Trade Receivables
Increase / (Decrease) in Liabilities :
Other financial liabilities, other liabilities and provisions
Trade Payables
Cash generated from operations
Taxes paid (net of Refunds)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Payment for acquisition of property plant and equipment
(including capital advance and CWIP)
Interest received (Including Delayed Payment Charges of ¥ 5,22 Crores (P.Y: T 20.75 Crores)

Sale / (purchase) of Current Investments (Net)
Non current loan given
Non current loan received back

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities (8)

C. Cash fiows from financing activities
Proceeds from Long-term borrowings
Repayment of Long-term borrowings
Proceeds / (Repayment) from Short-term borrowings (net)
Finance Costs paid
Net cash used in financing activities (C)

Net Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivaients at the end of the year (Refer note 14)

Cash and Cash Equivalents Includes (Refer note 14)

Balances with 8anks
In Current Accounts
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

".\5‘5 I

384.50 33431
261.54 257.21
73.46 138.44
. (0.00)
(0.00)
0.18 4.07
(10.57) (24.63)
709.51 709.40
(19.24) 11.35
(7.12) (3.49)
(242.95) 90.86
(12.20) 89.28
39.53 10.22
467.53 907.63
(26.35) (114.83)
441.18 792.80
(42.83) (54.36)
7.76 21.58
(2.26) (0.62)
(322.00) -
37.42 .
(321.91) (33.39)
14157 162.76
(47.76) (815.56)
(151.99) 0.94
(55.52) (106.39)
(113,70) (758.25)
5.57 116
1.58 0.42
7.15 158

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

7.15

1.58

7.15

1.58
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ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
(CIN :U40101GJ2013PLCO77700) a - anl

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31st March, 2023 Transmission

Notes to Statement of Cash Flows:

1) The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the Indirect methad as set out in Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".

2) Disclosure under Para 44A as set out in ind AS on cash flow statements under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2017 (as amended) is
given below:

3) interest accrued on Inter Corporate Deposit ("ICD") taken from related parties amounting to ¥ 20.68 Crore (Previous year - Nil), have been converted to
Inter Corporate Depaosit as on the reporting date as per the terms of Contract.

4) Interest accrued on Inter Corporate Deposit ("ICD") given to related parties amounting to 2 3,56 Crore (Previous year - Nil}, have been converted to
Inter Corporate Depaosit as on the reporting date as per the terms of Contract,

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

® in Crores)
Particulars 1st April, 2022 Cash Flows (Net) Others 31st March, 2023
Long-term Borrowings 302,74 93.81 20.68 417.23
Short-term Borrowings 250.94 (151.99) . 98.95
Total 553,68 (58.18) 20.68 516.18
@ in Crores)
{Particulars 1st April, 2021 Cash Flows (Net) Others* 31st March, 2022
0Ng-term Borrowinys 1,205.54 (652.80) (250.00) 302,74
Short-term Borrowings - 0.94 250.00 250.94
Total 1,205.54 \651.86) - 553.68

* On account of change in terms of foan from long term to short term

See accompanying notes forming part of the f'~~~~'~| statements

As per our reports attached of even date

FOR DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
HARDIK SUTARIA Rohit Soni Chaitanya Sahoo
Partner Whole-time Director Director
DIN: 09336186 DiN: 06860381
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad

Date : 29th May, 2023 Date :29th May, 2023 V\/

Krutarth Thakkar

cial Officer Company Secretary
medabad Place : Ahmedabad
Place : Ahmedabad
Date :29th May, 2023 h May, 2023

—
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ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
(CIN :U40101GJ2013PLCO77700)
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2023

adani

Transmission

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars Na. Shares  in Crores)

Balance as at 1st April, 2021 11,00,50,000 110.05
Issue of shares during the year - -

Balance as at 31st March, 2022 11,00.50,000 110.05
Issue of shares during the year - -

11.00.50,000 110.05

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

B. Other Equity
For the year ended 31st March, 2023

{2 in Crores)

Reserves and Surplus

Particulars Capital Redemption Contingency Total

Retained Earning

Reserve Reserve

Balance as at 1st April, 2022 958.01 1.425.00 13.38 2396.39
Add: Prafit for the year 317.64 . - 317.64
Add: Other Comprehensive Income/{Loss) For the year (Net of tax) (0.02) (0.02)
Add/(Less): Transfer from Retained Earning to
Contingency Reserve (1.78) 178
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 1,273.85 1,425.00 15.16 2,714.01

For the year ended 31st March, 2022

{¢in Crores)

Reserves and Surplus

Particulars o . . Total
Retai . apital Redemption Contingency
etained Eaming
Reserve Reserve

Balance as at 1st April, 2021 683.92 1,425.00 11.60 2,120.52
Add: Profit for the year 275.93 . - 275.93
Add: Other Comprehensive income/(Loss) for the year {Net of tax) (0.06) (0.06)
Add/(Less): Transfer from Retained Earning to Contingency Reserve (1.78) 1.78
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 958.01 1.425.00 13.38 2,396.39
See accampanying notes forming part of the financial statements
As per our reports attached of even date
FOR DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
HARDIK SUTARIA Rohit Soni Chaitanya Sahoco
Partner Whole-time Director Director

DIN: D9336186 DIN: 06860381

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29th May, 2023

Date : 29th May, 2023

Date : 29th May, 2023

al Officer
'dabad

Aay, 2023

Krutarth Thakkar
Company Secretary
Place : Ahmedabad
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1

Corporate information
Adani Transmissian (India) Limited {*The Company") is a public limited company incorperated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at Adani Corporate House,

Shantigram, Near Vaishno Davi Circle, S G.Highway, Khaodiyar, Ahmedabad Gujarat, 382421 India The principie activity of company is to establish, commission, aperate and
maintain Transmission Systems,

The company is having a dedicated transmission line from Mundra tc Dehgam, Mundra to Mahindergarh and Tiroda to Warara with total circuit length of approximately
3834 ckt km located in the states af Gujarat, Maharashtra and Haryana The Campany's main source of revenus is electricity transmissian tariffs where the tariffs are set on
“cost plus-basis" by the reguiators i e. Central Electricity Regulatary Cammission(CERC) & Maharashtra Electricity Reguiatory Commission(MERC). The “cost-ptus basis" tariff
is determined based on a number of compenents that are aggqregated into an Annuai Transmission Charges which is paid to us by Maharashtra State Electricity
Transmission Company Limited (MSETCL) & Power Grid Corporation of India Limited (PGCIL)

The Company has entered in to new business opportunities through OPGW fibres on transmissian lines with the ambition of expanding its telecom solutions to Telcos,
Internet service providers and long distance communication aperators . The commercialization of the network shall be dane through leasing out spare capacities to patential
communication players

Significant accounting policies

Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements af the company have been prepared in accordanca with Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) netified under the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and presentation requirements of Division || of Sehedule [(i ta the Companies Act, 2013, (ind AS compliant Schedute Iif}, as applicable
to the standalone financiai statement.

Basis of preparation and presentation
The financial statements of the company have been prepared on an accrual basis under the histarical cost convention except for certain financial instruments that are

measured at fair values or amortized cast at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies stated hereunder

The Function currency of the Company is Indian Rupee{NR) The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest Crores (Transactions
befow ¥ 50,000.00 denaoted as T 0 0Q Crares), unless otherwise indicated.

Current versus Non Current Classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sald ar cansumed in narmal operating cycle; or

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading: or

- EXpected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- Cash or cash equivalent uniess restricted from being exchanged or used to settie 3 liability for at feast twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; or

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

- It is due to be settied within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There 1s no uncanditional right to defer the settfement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferrad tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for precessing and their reaiization in cash and cash equivatents. The Company has identified twelve
months as its operating cycte

Foreign Currency
In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency are recognised at the rate of exchange

prevailing an the date of the transactions

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise except for:
Exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating ta assets under construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when
thay are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings.

Revenue Recagnition
Revanue from contracks with custamers
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to

which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange For those goads or sarvices

Power transmission services

Revenue fram contracts with customers comprises of revenue from power transmission services rendered India to Long Term Transmission Customers (LTTCs) pursuant to
the respective Transmission Services Agreements (TSAs) executed by the Company with LTTCs for periods of 35 years. The Campany is required to ansure that the
transmission assets meet the minimum availability criteria under the respective TSAs, The Company's performance obligation under the TSAs is to provide power
transmission services.

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as the customers receive and consume the benefits pravided by the Company's performance as the Company performs
Accordingly, the revenue from power transmission services is recognised over time based an the transmissian asset availabilities and the tariff charges approved under the
respective regulatory tariff orders and includes unbilled revenues accrued up te the end of the accaunting period. The payment is generally due within 30-60 days upon
receipt of monthly invaica by the LTTCs customer

Income from transmission system incentive is accounted for based on certification of availability by respective regulatory nominated body Where certifi~cation by the
regulatary nominated bady is nat avaitable, incentive is accounted for on provisional basis as per estimate of availabiiity by the Company and differences, if any is accounted

upon receipt of certification.
Sale of Goods:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised whan the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:
>The Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

>The amount of revenue can be measured reliably; and

>it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company;

»There is no significant judgement involved while evaluating the timing as to when customers obtain control of promised goods and services,
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Other income
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when It is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measurad

reliably Interest income is accrued on 3 time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate appiicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial assat to that asset’s net carrylng amaunt on initial recognition,

Interest on Overdue i / Delayed Pay Charges:

Power Transmission Business: Revenue in respect of delayed payment charges and interest on delayed payments leviable as per the relevant contracts are recognised on
acrual realisation or accrued based on an assessment of certainty of realization supported by either an acknowledgement From customers or on receipt of favorable arder

from regulator / authorities

f  Taxation
Tax on !ncome comprises current tax and deferred tax. These are recognised in the Statement of Prafit and Loss except to the extent that it refates to a3 business

combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income

(i) Currant Tax
Tax on income far the current period is determined on the basis on estimated taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions of the relevant

tax laws and based on the expected outcome of assessments / appeals. Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected ta be recovered fram
or paid to the taxation autharities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised autside statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in carrelation to the undertying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity Management
periodically evaluates pasitions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes

provisions where appropriate,

{ii) Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recagnised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases

used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabilities are generaily recognised for all Deductible temporary differences Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxabie profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reparting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probabie that sufficient taxabie
profits will be available ta allow all or part of the asset to be recavered,

Defarred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting pariad.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover ar settle the carrying amaunt of its assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxatian authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis,

The Company is eligible and claiming tax deductions available under sectian 80!A of the Income Tax Act, 1961 for a period af 12 years, In view of the Company availing tax
deduction under Section BOIA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, deferred tax has been recognised in respect of temporary difference, which reversa after the tax holiday period
in the year in which the temporary difference originate and no deferred tax (assets or liabilities) is recognised in respect of temporary difference which reverse during tax
holiday period, to the extent such gross total income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday period, For recognition of deferred tax, the temporary difference
which originate first are considered to reverse first

MERC tariff norms pravide the recovery of Income Tax from the beneficiaries by way of grassing up the return on equity based on effective tax rate for the financial year
shall ba based on the actual tax paid during the year an the transmission income. Accordingly, deferred tax liability provided during the periad is fully recoverable from
beneficiaries and known as “deferred assets recoverable / adjustable” in accordance with guidance given by Expert Advisory Committee of The Institute of Chartered
Accountant of India (ICAI} in its opinion on a simitar matter. The same will be recovered when the related deferred tax liability forms a part of current tax.

g Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

i. Recognition 3nd measurement
Property, plant and equipment are stated at original cast grossed up with the amount of tax / duty benefits availed, less accumuiated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any. Properties in the course of construction are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment lossas, All costs, including borrowing costs incurred up
to the date the asset is ready for its intended use, is capitalised along with respective asset.

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumnulated impairment losses, Freehold land is nat depreciated

Fixtures and equipments are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumuiated impairment losses, if any

Depreciation is recagnised based on the cost of assets (ather than land) |ess their residual values over their useful lives,

i) Depreciation in respect of assets related to electricity transmission business covered under Part B of Schedule |l of the Companies Act, 2013, has been provided an the
straight line method (considering a salvage value of 5%) at the rates and using the methadalogy as notified by the respective regulatars

Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation are complete and the asset is ready for its intended use.

ii} Estimated useful [ives of assets are as fallows:-

Type of Assets Usefut lives
Building 3 - 60 Years
Plant and Equipment 10 - 35 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 3 - 10 Years
Offica Equipment 3 -10 Years
Computer Equipment 3-6 Years
Vehicles 8 -15 Years

Temporary structure is depreciated 100% an the date of capitalisation
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecagnised upen dispasal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued yse of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceads and the carrying

amount of the asset and is recagnised in the Statement of Profit and Less.
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h  Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amartisation and any accumulated impairment lasses
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis aver their estimated useful lives. An intangibte asset is deracognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are

expected from use or disposal

Derecognition of Intangible assets
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised in stacemant of profit and loss

when the asset is derecognised

Useful life
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be

impaired The amortisation period and the amortisation methad for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at |east at the end of each reporting period
Changes in the expectad useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future econamic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation
period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates, The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recagnised in the
statemnent of profit and loss uniess such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset

Estunated useful hves af tne ntangible assets are as fo

Type of asets Useful lives

Computer Software 5-5 years

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting periad, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to detarmine the extent of the impairment
losses (if any). When it is not possibla to astimate the recoverable amount of an individual assat, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset bejongs When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individuai cash-generating units,
or atherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash- genarating units for which a reasonable and consistent aliocation basis can be identified

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash fiows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not bean adjusted

If the recovarable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit or joss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that woutd have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
{or cash-generating unit) in prior years A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directiy attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of tima
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale Interest
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of weighted average cost or net realisable value, Costs include ali non-refundable duties and ali charges incurred in bringing the goods to
their present location and condition Net realisable value represents the astimated selling price for inventories lass all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to

make the sale

Unserviceable/damaged stores and spares are identified and written down based on technical avaluation,
Costs incurred that relate to future contract activities are recognised as "Project Work-in-Progress”,
Project work-in-prograss comprise specific contract costs and other directly attributabie overheads inciuding borrowing costs which can be allacated on specific contract

cost is, valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.
Net Realizable Value in respect of stores and spares is the estimated current procurement price in the ordinary course of the business,

Employee benefits

Oefined benefit plans :

The Company has an obiigation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees through Group Gratuity Scheme of Life Insurance
Corporation of India The Company accounts for the liability for the gratuity benefits payable in future based on an independent actuarial valuation carried out using
Projected Unit Credit Method cansidering discounting rate relevant to Govemiment Securities at the Balance Sheet Date.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liabitity and
the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are racognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods, Past service costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:

- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

- The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

- Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit abligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service casts, gains and losses on curtailments and non routine settlements; and
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(i)

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the eariier of whean the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity
recognises any relatad restructuring costs

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present vajue of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation invalves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its fong-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions ara reviewed at each reporting date

The parametar most subject to change is the discount rate [n determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest
rates of government bonds The mortality rate is Dased an publicly available mortality tables Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response ta
demographic changes Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates

Defined benefit costs in the nature of current and past service cost and net interest expense ar incame are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in
which they occur. Actuarial gains and Ipsses on remeasurement is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recagnised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur and is reflected immediately in retained earnings and not reclassified to profit or loss, Past service cost is recognisad in the
statement of profit and loss in the period of a plan amendment.

Defined contribution plan:

Retirement Benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund which are defined contribulion schemes are charged to the statement of profit and Joss for the
period In which the cantributions to the respective funds accrue,

Compensated Absences:

Provision for Compensatad Absences and its classifications between current and nan-current liabilities are based an independent actuarial valuation The actuarial
valuation is done as per the projected unit credit method as at the reporting date,

Current and other non-current empioyee benefits

A liability is recognised for banefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, snnual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service

Liabilities recognised n respect of current employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Liabitities recognised in respect of other non-current employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows axpected to be made by
tha Company in respact of services provided by employees up to the reporting date

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recagnised for benefits accruing to emplayees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchanga for that service, Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amaunt of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expacted to be made by the Company in respect of services pravided by employees up te the reparting
date,

Leases

Right of Use Asset
At inception of a contract, the Campany assesses whether a cantract is, ar contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract canveys the right to control

the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration

The Company recognises a right-aof-use asset and a lease llability at the lease commencement date except far leases with a term of twelve months or less {short-term leases)
and low value leases For these short-term and low value leases, the lease payments associated with these |eases as an expense in the statement of Profit and Loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease term is @ non-cancellable period together with periods covered by an option to extend the lease If the Campany is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain nat to exercise that option

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct casts incurred and an estimate of casts to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers awnership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use
asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful |ife of the underlying asset. In
addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability

Lease Liability
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be paid over the lease term at the commencement date, discounted Using the interest

rate impiicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generaily, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate as the discount rate. Subsequently, the |lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methad.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company
takes inte account the characteristics of the asset or liability at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction ta sell
the financial asset or settle the financial liability takes place eithar:

> Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

> Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company

A fair value measurement of a nan-financial asset takes into account a markat participant's ability ta generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. Fair value measurement and / ar disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for measurements that have some similarities to fair vaiue but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or
value in use in Ind AS 36,

The Company- uses valuation techniques that are apprapriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of
relevant observabie inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs

All assets and liabilities For which fair vaiue is measured or disclosed in the financial statements ara categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

(i} Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

(i) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly abservable;

{iii) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable,
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At each reporting date, the Management anaiyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the
Company's accounting policies

External valuers are invoived for valuation of significant assets such as business undertaking for transfer under the scheme and unquoted financial assets and financial
tiabilities Invalvernant of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Management and in specific cases after discussion with and approval by the respective
company’s Audit Committee, Selection criteria includes market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained, The
Management decides, after discussions with the Group's external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case

Far the purpose of fair value disclasures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or
liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above

o Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets and financia! liabilities are recognisaed when an entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition, Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company
entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

{A) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their antiraty at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

1) Classification of financial assets
A) Financial assets ak fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in aquity instruments other than investment in subsidiaries are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects en initial recognition to present
subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive incomae for investmants in equity instruments which are not held for trading

Other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprahensive income on initial
recognition The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair vatue through profit or loss are immediately recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

B) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate methaod if these financial assats are held within a business whose objective is
to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash Flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

C) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequentfy measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose cbjective I1s achiaved by bath
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount gutstanding.

On initial recognition, the Company makes an irrevocable election on an instrument-by-instrument basis to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments, other than equity investment which are heid for trading.

2) Effective interest mathod

The effective interest method is @ method of calculating the amartised cast of a financial assets and of aliocating interest income over the relevant period The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial assets, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition

Interast is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments athar than those financial assets classified as at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL}

Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss and is inciuded in the "Other income” line itam
e

3) Derecagnition of financial assets
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially alf
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

The Company has transferrad its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either {a) the Company has transferred substantially all the nisks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the 3sset, but has transferred control of the asset

QOn derecognition of a financial asset in its entiraty, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received / receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehansive incoma and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have
otherwise been recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of that financial asset.

4) Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss mode( for recognising impairment toss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, trade receivables and other
contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between ait
contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i e all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original effective interest rate The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument through the expected
life of that financial instrument

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument
has increased significantly since initiai recognitian [f the credit risk on & financial instruments has not increased significantly since initiai recognition, the Company
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-manth expected credit losses 12-moanth expected credit losses are portion of the life
time expected credit losses and reprasent the lifetime cash shortfails that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash
shortfalls that will results if defauit occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and this, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months,
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If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting
period that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initiai recognition due to improvement in credit quaiity as compared to the previous period, the Company
again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in cradit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default
occurring over tha expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses To make that assessment, the Company
compares the risk of a default occurring an the financial instrument as at the reparting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undua cost or effort, that is
indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are expedient as permitted under ind AS 109, this
expected credit Joss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward leoking

information

5) Foreign exchange gains and losses
The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and transiated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting

period

For foreign currency denominated financial assets maasured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

{B) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

1) Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument

2) Equity instruments

An aquity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs

3) Financiai liabilities

All finaneial liabillties are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL

4) Financial liabillties at FVTPL

A financial liability may be designated as at FYTPL upon initial recognition if:

{a) such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

{b) The financial /iability whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's documented risk management;

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss The net gain or (oss recognised in profit
or loss incorparates any interest paid on the financial liability.

Fair valyes are determined in the manner describad in

5) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subseguent accounting periods The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost ara determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is
not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line item

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the reievant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points pald or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition,

Trade and other payables are recognised at the transaction cost, which is its fair value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost

6) Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominatad in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting
period

The fair vatue of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined n that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting
period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss,

7) Derecognition of Financiai Liability

The Company derecognises financial liabilitias when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt
instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extingUishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability,
Simitarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition
of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Lass

a8) ification of fi ial assets and liabilities

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which
are equity instruments and financial liabilities For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for
managing those assets Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent The Company's senior management determines change in the business mode! as a
result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business mode!
occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediatety next reporting period following the change in business model The
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or [osses) or interest.

9) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised

amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simujtaneously.

¢ Derivative financial instruments and hadge accounting

> Initial r gnition and st q measurement:
- In order to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks, the Company enters into forward, Principle only Swaps (POS) and other derivative financial
instruments. The Company daes not hold derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.,

- Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at

fair value
- Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial fiabilities when the fair value is negative,

- Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit and loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow
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(i)

Giiy

> For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

- Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure ta changes in the Fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment.

- Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variavility in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability ar a
highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an uncecognised firm commitment.

- The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current assat or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is mare than 12 months; it is
classified as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months.

- At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Campany farmally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Company wishes ta apply hedge accounting

- The documentation includes the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ ecanomic relationship, the hedged item or
transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument's fair value in offsetting

> Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted far, as described below:

i) Fair value hedges

- Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately, together with
any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk

+ When an unrecagnised firm commitment is designated as a hedged itam, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the
hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in statement of profit and loss

- Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Company revakes the hedge relationship, the hedging instrument or hedged item expires or is 50ld, terminated, or exercised or
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,

ii) Cash flow hedges
- The effective portion of the gain or iass on the hedging instrument is recognised in OC! in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recagnised

immadiately in the statement of profit and loss
- Amounts recognised in OC! are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affacts profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income ar financial
expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts recognised as OC! are

transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.
- If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy). or if its designation as a hedge is
revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately in equity untit

the forecast transaction occurs or the fareign currency firm commitment is met,

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term depasits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Statement of Cash Flow comprise cash and chegues in hand, bank balances,

demand depaosits with banks where the original maturity is three months or less,

Other Bank deposits
Margin money comprise of bank deposits restricted as to withdrawal or Usage and are used to collateralize certain debt related abligations required under the Trust and

Retention Account agreement entered with the various lenders and restricted under other arrangements Margin money bank deposits are classified as current and non-
current based on management expectation of the expiration date of the underlying restrictions

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows are reparted using the indirect method, where by profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of
past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Segment Reporting

The Company's operations fail under singla segment namely “Transmission Income” hence no separate disclosure of segment reporting is required to be made as required
under {ND AS 108 'Operating Segments’

Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Pravisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outfiow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation and a reliable estimata can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a pravision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects. when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense refating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

Contingent liability
A possibie obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of ane or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the enterprise are disclosed as contingent tiability and not provided for. Such liability is not disciosed if the possibility of outflow of

resources is remote

Contingent assets
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises fram past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more

uncertain future events not wholly within the contral of the entity

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed only when an inflow of econamic benefits is prababfe

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic =arnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) attributable to the equity halders of the company by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period,

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of aquity shares
considered for deriving basic eamings per equity share and aiso the weighted average number of equity sharas that could have heen issued upon conversion of all dilutive
patential equity shares,

The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds recaivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the
outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, uniess issued at a later date, Dilutive potential equity
shares are determined independently for 2ach periad presented
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3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The application of the Company's accounting palicies as described in Note 2, in the preparation of the .Company’s financial statements in conformity with the recognition
and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, The astimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant,
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and any revisions thereto are racognized in the period in which they are revised or in the period
of revision and future periods if the revision affects both the current and future periods Actual results may differ from these estimates which could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods,

(A) Property, plant and equipment?
i) Depreciation rates, depreci d and residuai value of property, ptant and equipment?
Depreciation in respect of assets related to electricity Transmission business is provided on a straight line basis at the rates provided in Appendix Il of Central Electricity
Regulatory Commission (Terms and conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2014, In case of other Assets depreciation on fixed assets is calculated on straight-line method (SLW)
using the rates arrived at based on the useful life as specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013
ii) Impairment of property plant and equipment?
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and 2quipment to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

(B) Taxation:
i) Deferred tax assets?
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses / credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies,
Regulators tariff norms provide the recovery of Income Tax from the beneficiaries by way of grossing up the return on equity based on effective tax rate for the financial
year shall be based an the actual tax paid during the year on the transmission income Accordingly, deferred tax liability provided during the year is fully recoverable from
beneficiarias and known as "deferred assets recoverable / adjustable’ in accordance with guidance given by Expert Advisory Committee of The Institute of Chartered
Accountant of India (ICAI) in its opinion on a similar matter The same will be recovered when the related deferred tax liabitity forms a part of current tax,

(C) Fair value measurement of financial instruments?
In estimating the fair value of financial assets and financial liabiiities, the Company uses market observable data to the extent available Where such Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Company establishes appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is naot feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. Infarmation about the valuation techniques and inputs
used in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed.

(D) Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits
The present value of abligations under defined benefit plan and other long term employment benefits is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual develapment in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary escalations,
attrition rate and mortatity rates etc. Due to the compiexities invoived in the valuation and its long term nature, these obligations are highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions, All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date [nformation about the various estimates and assumptions made in determining the present value of
defined benefit obligations are disclosed.

(E) d and ement of provision and contingencies?
The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability (including litigations) requires the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be
subject to change. The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of changing facts and circumstances.
'Critical accounting judgments
 Kev sources of estimation uncertainties

4 Recant Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Aceounting Standards) Rules as issued from
time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1-Pr ion of Fi ial

The amendments require companies to disclase their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together
with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of genearal-purpose financial statements The Company does
not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

ind AS 12 ~ Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of
the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recagnition exemptien) so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognitian, give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, The Company is evaluating the impact, if any, in its financial statements.
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Ind AS 8 - ing Palicies, Changes in ing d and Errars

4

The amendments will help entities Lo distinguish between accounting palicies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been
replaced with a definition of accounting estimates., Under the new definition, accounting estimates are "monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty” Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require jtems in financial statements to be measured in 3 way that involves
measurement uncertainty The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Sacial Security Cade
The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Cade) amended and consolidated the [aws relating to sociai security with the goal to extend social security to all employees and

workers gither in the arganised or unorganised or any ather sectors

In light of the amended cade, employers are required to assess the impact of change in definition of wages on their organizations A change in the definitian af wage might
have a large impact due to enhanced provision for gratuity/leave, net pay of employees, possible anhanced provision for Provident Fund and other employee benefits
dependent on the wages

The government decided to defer the decisian ta notify the date of implementation of the code, 50 the companies are advised to include a disclosure about the impact on
transition to the new code in their financial statements. However, once the code becomes effective the entities will be required to evaiuate if the changes are a plan
amendment or change in actuarial assumption
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5A : Right-of-Use Assets

(X in Crores)

Right-of-Use Assets

Particulars Leasehold Land Total
Gross carrying value
Balance as at 1st April, 2021
On Transition to Ind AS 116 8.78 8.78
Additions during the year .
Disposals during the year - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 a8.78 8.78
Additions during the year -
Disposais during the year - .
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 8.78 8.78
Accumulated Amortisation
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 1.19 1.19
Amortisation Charge during the year 0.60 0.60
Eliminated on disposal of asset during the year - .
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 1.79 1.79
Amortisation Charge during the year 0.59 0.59
Eliminated on disposal of asset during the year - "
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 2.38 2.38
Net Carrying Value as at 31st March, 2022 6.99 6.99
Net Carrying Value as at 31st March, 2023 6.40 6.40
5B : Intangible Assets (X In Crores)

Particulars Intangible Assets

Computer Software Total

Gross carrying value
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 1.81 1.81
Additions during the year 0.56 0.56
Disposals during the year - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 2.37 237
Additions during the year 0.52 0.52
Disposals during the year - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 2,89 2.89
Accumulated Amortisation
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 0.53 0.53
Amortisation Charge during the year 0.36 0.36
Eliminated on disposal of asset during the year .
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 0.89 0.89
Amortisation Charge during the year 0.47 0.47
Eliminated on disposal of asset during the year - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 1.36 136
Net Carrying Value as at 31st March, 2022 1.48 1.48
Net Carrying Value as at 31st March, 2023 153 1.53

Notes:

i) For charge created on aforesaid assets, Refer note 43

5C : Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Depreciation / Amortisation

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

® in Crores)  in Crores)
Depreciation on Tangible Assets 260.47 256.25
Amortisation of intangible Assets 0.47 0.3¢
Amortisation of Right of Use Assets 0.59 Q.6(
Total 261.54 257.21 |
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50 Capital work-in-progress:

(€ in Crores)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
31st March, 2022

Qpening Balance 5.54 3.55
Expenditure incurred during the year 36.05 4,55
Less : Capitalised during the year (18.57} (2.57)

Closing Balance 23.02 3.54

{a) Capital-work-in progress ageing schadule:

. Amount in CWIP for a period of

Particulars Total

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years

As at 31st March, 2023
- Projects in pragress 22.61 Q17 QQ7 Q.17 23.02
- Projects temporarily suspended - . R - .

Total 22.61 0.17 0.07 0.17 23.02

As at 31st March, 2022
- Projects in progress 5.15 0.08 0.02 Q.29 554
- Projects temporarily suspended . . - . -

Total 515 0.08 0.02 0.29 5.54

Note : 'There are no project where there is averun in cost on overdue for completion,
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10

1

12

Non-Current investments - At Amortised cost

investment in Government Securities (Quoted)
Contingency Reserve Investments

Aggregate book value of quated investments
Aggregate market value of quoted investments

Non Current Financial Assets - At Amortised Cost
(Unsecured, Considered Goad)

Loan to related party

Other Non Current Financial Assets - At Amortised Cost

Security deposits
Unbilied Revenue

For charge created on aforesaid assets, Refer note 43

Income Tax Assets (Net)

Advance Income tax (net)

Other Non-current Agsets

a) Capital Advances
- Considered Good

b} Deferred Asset recoverable / adjustabie (Refer note 22(i))

inventories
{Valued at lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value)

Stores & spares

Current investments

Quoted Investmants

Ir for Contingency Reserve

Investment in Treasury 8ill
8.13% Government stock

Aggregate book value of quoted investmants
Aggregate market value of quoted investments

As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(Zin Crores) (% in Crores)
1398 10.58
Total 13.98 10.58
13.98 10,58
13.53 10.40
As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(% in Crores) (¥ in Crores)
286.64
Total 286.64 -
As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(¥ in Crores) (T in Crores)
- 0.98
32.62 50.49
Total 32.62 51,47
As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(T in Crores) (¢ in Crores)
15.29 56.20
Total _5.29 56.20
As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(% in Crores) @® in Crores)
3.77 1.21
377 1.21
446.09 442,02
Totai = a+b 449.86 443,23
As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
@ in Crores) X in Crores)
36.20 29.07
Total 36.20 29.07
As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
@® in Crores) ® in Crores)
0.10 0.62
Total 0.10 0.62
S
0.10 0.62
010 0.62
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13 Trade Receivables
(Unsecured, otherwise stated)

Unsecured, Considered Good
Credit Impaired
Less: Expected Credit Loss

Note:

Tatal

As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(€ in Croras) (¥ in Crores)
347.40 104 45
347 40 104 45
347.40 104.45

In case of transmission business, requlator approved tariff is receivable from long-term transmission customers (LTTCs) and Discoms that are highly rated campanies or government
parties. Counterparty credit risk with respect to these receivables is very minimal.

13.1 Trade Receivables ageing Schedule
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of receipt Total
Particulars Less than 6 6 months - 1
Not Due manths vaar 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
As at 31st March, 2023
3 ouUnas Tr recevadles -
(3 Ynasputed Trade recewables 11.83 23516 023 016 0.02 347.40
consigerzd good
{n) Undisputad Trade Recewvables -
which  have sigmticant incredse in -
eredii risk .
{1} Undgisputes Trage Recevables - B
credit impawed
(v)  Oispuied Trade Recewables . : -
consigered 9eod
(v} D1sputed Trage Recewables - which R
have significant increase i credit nsk
(i) Disputed Trade Recevables - credit N
impaired
Total 111.83 235.16 0.23 0.16 - 0.02 347.40
As at 31st March, 2022
() Undisputed Trade recewnvables - 2218
cansidered good 82.09 A 0.15 0.01 0.02 104.45
{n} Unadisputec Trade Recewables - - -
which have significant sncrease in
cregit fi3k
() Unaisputed Traoe Racersables - .
ceathi imparres
(v} Orsputed  Trade  Recawvables - - - -
considerad good
(v} Dhsputed Trade Recevables - whien -
Rave Significant ingraase 10 credit risk
{wi) teg Trade Recawables - credu - -
impaired
Total 82.09 22,18 0.15 0,07 - 0.02 104.45
. As at As at
14 Cash and Cash Equivaients
q 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
{€in Crores} @& in Crores)
Balances with banks
In current accounts 7.15 1.58
Total 715 1.58
As at As at
- t
15 Loans - Curren 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
® in Crores) (€ in Crores)
Loans to Employees 0.08 0.02
Total 0.08 0.02
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17

Other Current Financial Assets

Interest Receivable
Unbilied Revenue
Security deposits

For charge created on aforasaid assets, Refer note 43

Other Currant Assets

Advance to Suppliers

Balances with Government Authorities
Prepaid Expenses

Advances to Empioyees

Share Capital

Authorised Share Capital
12,00,00,000 (As at 31st March 2022 - 12,00,00,000) equity shares of ¥ 10 each

142,50,00,000 (As at 31st March 2022 - 142,50,00,000) preference shares of T 10 each.

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
11,00,50,000 (As at 315t March 2022 - 11,00,50,000) equity shares of T 10 each fully paid up

a. Raconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Tetal

Total

Totai

Tatal

As at 31st March, 2023

As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
{® in Crores) ® in Crores}
030 0.17
48.43 32.39
1.08 .14
49,81 32.70
As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(¥ in Crores) @ in Crores)
139 172
3.68 0.21
1.10 090
0.01 0.02
6.18 —
As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
@ in Crores) (X in Crores)
120.00 120.00
142500 1425.00
1,545.00 1.545.00
110.05 110.05
110.05% 110.05

As at 31st March, 2022

Equity Shares

At the beginning of the Year
Issued during the year

Qutstanding at the end of the year

No. Shares T in Crores No. Shares Tin Crores
11,00,50.000 110.05 11,00,50,000 110.05
11,00,50,000 110.05 11,00,50,000 110.05

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has oniy one class of equity shares having par value of 10 per share. Each hoider of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend if proposed by the
Board of Directors is subject to approval of the share holders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. in the event of liquidation of the Company the holders of the equity shares
will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held

by the share holders.

c. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 31st March, 2022
% holding in the

As at 31st March, 2023
% halding in the

Equity Shares of T 10 each fully paid No. Sharas No. Shares

class class
Adani Transmission Limited and its nominees (Refer . . 11.00,50,000 100%
Adani Transmission Step-Gne Limited and its nominees 11,00,50,000 100% - -
11,00,50,000 100% 11,00,50,000 100%
d. Detalls of Shareholding of Promataers
Particulars No. of % of toral shares % Change during the
shares year
As at 315t March, 2023
Adani Transmission Step-One Limited and its nominees 11,00,50,000 100% 100%
11,00,50,000 100% 100%
As at 31st March, 2022
Adani Transmission Limited and its nominees 11,00,50,000 100% -
11,00,50,000 100%
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. As at As at
19 Other Equity 31st Mareh, 2023 31st March, 2022
(% in Crores) X in Crores)

3. Capital Redemption Reserve (Refer note (i} below}

QOpening Balance 1,425.00 1,425.00

Closing Balance Total (a) 1,425.00 1,425.00

b, Retained Earnings (Refer note (ii) below)

Opening Balance 958.01 683.92

Add : Profit for the year 317 64 275.93
. - ) " (0 02) (0.06)

Add/(Less): Other Comprehensive [ncome arising from remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans

Less; Transfer ta Contingency Reserve (1.78) (178)

Closing Balance Total (b) 1,273.85 958.01

c. Contingency Reserve {Refer note {iii) below)

Opening Balance 13.38 11.60

Add: Transfer from Retained Earning 1.78 1.78

Closing Balance Total (c) 15.16 13.38

Total {a+b+c) 2,714,01 2,396,39

Nates:

i) Retained Earning represents the amount of profits of the company earned till date net of appropriation that can be distributed by the Company as dividends considering the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, No dividends are distributed by the Company.

ii) As per the provisions of MERC MYT Regulations read with Tariff orders passed by MERC, the Company being a Transmission Licensee, makes an appropriation to the
Contingency Reserve fund to meet with certain exigencies. Investments in Government Securities have been made against such reserve in preceeding year, Investments in Mutual
Funds have been made against such reserve.

20 Borrowings Non-Current Current
As at As at As at As st
31st March, 2023  31st March, 2022 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
® in Crares) in Crores) (% in Crores) {%in Crores)
Unsecured
From Related Party 417.23 302.74
Total 417,23 302.74 . .
Nota:
Borrowings Security Terms of Repayment

Inter-corparate loan of ¥ 417 23 Crore {as at 315t March 2022 -
Inter Corporate Loan from related Party Unsecurad ¥302.74 Crore) from related party is unsecured and carries interest at

the rate of 13 25% p a., repayable on 2nd May, 2025,

21  Provisions Non-Current Current
As at As at As at As at
31st March, 2023  31st March, 2022 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(X in Crores) X in Crores) (T in Crores) (X in Crores)
Net Employee Defined benefit liabilities

Provision for Gratuity 0.87 126 013 0.12
Provision for Compensated Absences 0.52 0.69 0.20 0.32
1.39 1.95 033 0.44

Provision for Stamp Duty . 15.65 15.65 .
Tatal 139 17.60 15.98 0.44
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22 Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Deferred Tax Liabilities

As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
® in Crores) ®in Crores)
446.09 442.02
Total 446.09 442.02

(i) CERC/MERC tariff norms provide the recovery of Income Tax from the beneficiaries by way of grossing up the return on aquity based on effective tax rate for the financial year
shall be based on the actual tax paid during the year on the transmission income. Accordingly, deferred tax liability provided during the period is fully recoverable from
beneficiarias and known as "Deferrad Asset recoverable / adjustabie”. The same will be recovered when the refated deferred tax liability forms a part of current tax.

iy Particulars

Daferred Tax Liabilities

Difference Between Book Base and Tax Base of Property, Plant and Equipment
Deferred Tax Liabilities (a)

Deferred Tax Asset

Provisions

Defarred Tax Asset (b)

Net Deferred Tax Assets / {Liabilities) (a + b)

{a) Movement in Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) {Net) for the Financial Year 2022-23

As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
@ in Crares) @ in Crores)

(451.56) (447.49)

(451.56) (447.49)
5.47 5.47
5.47 5.47

(446.09) (442.02)

. Opening B 2% g in profit : : Closing Balance as at |
Particulars at 1st April. 2021 and loss > Recaognised in OCI 3 stevlarch. 2022
Tax effect of items canstituting deferred tax liabilities:

Difference between book base and tax base of property, plant and equipment (447.49) {4.07) - (451.5¢.,,
Total (447.49) (4.07) - (451.56
Tax effact of items constituting deferred tax Assets:

Provisians 5.47 5.47
Total 5.47 - 5.47
Net Deferred Tax Asset/ {Liability) (442.02) (4.07) (446.09)
(b) Movement in Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) {Net) for the Financial Year 2021-22

; Opening B; as in profit : Closing Balance as at
Particulars at 1st ;pril, 2020 'and loss P Recognised in OCI 31stharch. 2029
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax llabiiities:

Difference between baok base and tax base of property, plant and equipment {475.13) 27.64 . (447.49)
Tatal (475.13) 27.64 . (447.49)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax Assats:
Provisions 3.94 1.53 5 47
Total 3.94 1,53 - 5.47
Net Deferred Tax Asset / (Liabiliky) (471.19) 29.17 - (442.02)
23 Borrowings As at As at
39st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
{®in Crores) ®in Crores)
Secured Borrowings
Frem Bank
Letter of Credit - 0.94
Cash Credit 98 95 -
98.95 0.94
Unsecured
From Related Parties 250.00
250.00
Total 98,95 250,94
Nate:
Borrowings Security Terms of Ropayment

First charge on receivables and on -Cash Credits from Banks carries an rate of

Cash Credit immovable and movable assets created |nte‘rest 7.50% As on 31st March 2023, it is
having balance of ¥98.95 Crore (as at 31st

out of project on paripassu basis

March 2022 :- Nil)

Letter of Credit

Letter of Credit are unsecured

It includes Letter

Rs 0 94 Cr)

of Credits from Banks
aggregating to Rs NIL (as on 31st March 2022
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As at As at
di
24 Trade Payables 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(T in Crores) (T in Crores)
Trade Payable

-Total outstanding dues of creditor micro enterprise and smail enterprise 1.03 0.59
-Total qutstanding dues of creditor other than micro enterprise and small enterprise 62.47 23.38
Total 63.50 23.97

The Disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to Micro and Small Enterprises have been made in the standaione Financial Statements based on the information received and

available with the company. The Company has not raceived any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet date

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(¥ in Crores) (T in Crares)
(3) the principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year 1.03 0.59
(b) interast due on principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year
{c) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year
(d) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006;
{e) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and
(f) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the intarest
dues above are actually paid to the smail enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23
of the Mirro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Note i: Trade Payables ageing schedule (R In Crares)
Particulars O 1ding for follawing periods from due date of payment Total
No due <1year 1-2years 2-3 years >3 years
As at 315t March, 2023
(a) MSME 0.03 1.00 . - 1.03
(b) Others 16.27 35.59 10 54 0.07 62.47
(c) Disputed dues - MSME - - - .
(d) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 16.30 36.59 10.54 0.07 - §3.50
As at 31st March, 2022
(a) MSME 0.59 . - . 0.59
(b) Others 6.13 16 89 0.36 0.00 23.38
(c) Disputed dues - MSME - . . -
(d) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Taotal 6.72 16.89 0.36 0.00 . 23.97
. I As at As at
25 Qther Current Financial Liabitities 31st March, 2023 315t March, 2022
@ in Crores) @ in Crores)
Interest accrued but not due an borrowings - 20.46
Refundable to customers on truing up 112.83 1876
Payabie on purchase of property, plant and equipment 8.90 12.95
Other Payables 1.75 0.03
Tatal 123.48 152,20
[P As at As at
26 Other Current Liabilities 31st Mareh, 2023 31st March, 2022
(¢ in Crores) (X in Crores)
Statutory liabilities 0.81 0.41
Advance from Customers 9.83 17.51
Other Payables 0.45 0.45
Total 11.09 18.37

(Figures below ¥ 50,000.00 denoted as ¥ 0.00 Crs)
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For the year ended

For the year ended

28

from Operations 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
X in Crores) @® in Crores)
Income from Transmission Line 784.06 768.91
Sale of Services 0.64 0.73
Total 784.70 769.64

Details of Revenue from Contract with Customer

Contract balances:

(a) The following table provides information about receivabies, contract assets and contract liabilities from the contracts with
customers.

{ in Crores)
X As at As at

Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Receivables
Trade receivables (Refer note 13) 347.40 104.45
Unbilled Revenue for passage of time 81.05 82.88
Less ; Advance from Customers (Refer note 26) 9.83 17.51
Net Receivables 418.61 169.82
Contract Assets -
Contract liabilities
Refundable to customers on truing up {(Refar note 25) 112.83 118.76
Total Contract Liabilities 112.83 118.76

Contract assets
Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract Assets are

transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional.

Contract liabilites
A Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or

an amount of consideration is due) from the customer, If the constomer pays contribution before the Company trasfers goods or
services to the customers, a contract liability is recoginised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier),
Contract liabilites are recoganised as revenue when the perforance of obligation is satisfied.

(b) Reconciliation of the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:

® in Crore=!

For the year ended

" For the year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2023 $1st March, 2022
Revenue as per contracted price 785.67 771.06
Adjustments :

Discounts (1.61) (2.15)
Revenue from contract with customers 784,06 768.91

Other Income

Interest Income
- Bank

- Contingency reserve investment

- Income tax waiver
- Others
- Delayed Payment charges

Unclaimed Liabilities / Excess provision written back

Service Income
Sale of Inventory

Insurance Claim received (net of loss on discard of asset of ¥ 477 Cr

(PY: T 4.07Cn)
Line modification Service Charges

29 Operating expenses

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

® in Crores) X in Crores)

- 0.00
0.77 0.49
. 3.35
4,57 0.04
5.23 20.75
- 0.00

0.03 -
1.56 0.97
0.17 6.43

0.36 -
Total 12.69 32.03

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

® in Crores) (T in Crores)
36.52 36.68
0.04 0.04
0.08 0.07
5.37 4,62
42.01 41.41
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30 Employee Benefits Expense

31

32

33

Salaries, Wages and Bonus
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Staff Welfare Expenses
Total

Finance costs

Interest Expense
-Long Term Loan
-Working Capita! Loan
Arrears to regulator
Bank Charges & Other Borrowing Costs
Total

Other Expenses

Short Term Lease Rental
Rates and Taxes
Legal & Professional Expenses
Directors' Sitting Fees
Payment to Auditors (Refer Note Below)
Communication Expenses
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses
Loss on sale of fixed Assets
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses (Refer note 40)
Electricity Expenses
Miscellaneous Expenses
Total

Payment to auditors

As auditeor:
Statutory Audit Fees (including GST)
Certification Fees

(Figures below ¥ 50,000.00 denoted as T 0.00 Crs)

Income Tax

Tax Expenses

Current Income Tax Charge (MAT)
Deferred Tax

Total

For the year ended

For the year ended

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
®in Crores) ® in Crores)
6.45 7.37
0.52 0.59
0.51 0.16
7.48 B8.12

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

®in Crores) ®in Crores)
48.46 113.61
7.19 6.88
17.72 17.83
0.09 0.12
73.46 138.44

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

®in Crores) ® in Crores)

0.40 0.36
0.02 0.02
9.74 4,91
0.00 0.00
0.16 0.13
Q.29 0.27
2.13 1.81
0.18 -
7.15 7.08
4.25 3.69
3.68 3.91

28.00 22.18

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

SRR

0.16

For the year ended
31st March, 2022
® in Crores)

0.13

0.16

0.13

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

® in Crores) ®in Crores)
67.26 58.38
4.07 (29.17)
71.33 29.21
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34

Accounting Profit Before Tax

Income tax using the company's domestic tax rate @ 34.944%
Tax Effect of :

i) Non deductible Expenses

- Tax Incentives and concessions

ii) Temporary Differences

iil) MAT Credit not recognised

iv) 80I1A Claim

v) Others

Tax Expense

Tax provisions :
Current tax for the year (MAT)
Net Deferred Tax Liability recognised during the year

Income tax recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss at effective rate

384.90 334,31
134,50 116.82
2.50 2.47
13.97 -
67.25 58.38
(150.96) (147.98)
4.07 (0.48)
71.33 29.21
67.26 58.38
4.07 (29.17)
7133 29.21

Unrecognised deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits
Deductible temporary differences, unused tax [osses and unused tax credits for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised are

attributable to the following:

. . As at
Unrecognised unused tax credits
o 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
®in Crores) in Crores)
Unused tax credits (MAT Credit not recognised) 642.47 575.80
642.47 575.80
The expiry of unrecognised unused tax credits is as detailed below:  in Crores)
As at As at

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

Within One Year

Greater than one year, less than five years
Greater than five years

No expiry date

642.47

575.80

Total

642.47

575.80

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders

Number of Weighted Average Equity Shares, outstanding during the
year for Basic EPS

Nominal Value of Equity Shares

Basic Earnings per Share

Number of Weighted Average Equity Shares, outstanding during the
year for Diluted EPS (50 OCRP into 1 equity share of ¥ 10 each)

Diluted Earnings per Share

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

(T in Crores)
No.
T
T

No.

317.64

11.00,50,000

10.00
28.86

11.00,50,000

28.86

275,93
11,00,50,000

10.00
25.07

11,00,50,000

25.07
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35 Contingent liabilities and commitments :

36

{i) Contingent liabilities :
(a) Related to Direct Tax

{ii) Commitments :

Estimated amaunt of contracts remaining te be executed on capital account and not provided for (Net of capital advance):

As per Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits", the disclosures are given below:
{a) Defined Benefit Plan

As at
31st March, 2023
(Tin Crores)

As at
31st March, 2022
{Tin Crares)

014

6196

0.01

767

The Company operates a defined benefit plan {the Gratuity plan) covering eligible emplayees, which provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation

or termination of employment, of an amaunt based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment.

The status of gratuily plan A% reguired ungder ing AS-1S

As at As at
Barticulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
@ in Crores) ® in Crores)
i. Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of defined benefit obligation
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the baginning of the Year 137 1.11
Current Service Cost 0.13 0.14
Past Service Cast . -
interest Cost 0.06 0.07
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising fram:
- Change in demographic assumptions 0.03 {0 10)
-Change in financials assumptions (0 04) 026
- Experiance variance (i.e Actual experience vs. assumptions) 0.04 (0 a7
Liability Transfer In - Dut {0.46) 007
Benefits paid (0.13) {011
Net Actuarial loss / (gain) Recognised . .
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the end of the Year 1.00 137
ii. Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of the Fair value of Plan assets
Fair Value of Plan assets at the beginning af the Year -
Expected return on plan assets -
Contributions -
Benefits paid
Actuarial gain/{loss) on plan assets
Fair Value of Pian assets at the end of the Year
iii. Reconciliation of the Present value of defined benefit obligation and Fair value of plan assets
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the end of the Year 1.00 137
Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of thae Year . -
Nat Asset / {Liability) recagnized in balance sheet as at the end of the year {1.00) (1.37)
iv. Gratuity Cost for the Year
Current service cost 013 0.4
Past service cost - -
Interest cost 0 0€ 007
Expected return on plan assets -
Actuarial Gain / (Lass) . .
Net Gratuity cost recognised in the statement of Prafit and Loss 0.19 0.21
v. Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (gains) / losses
- change in demagraphic assumptions 0.03 {0.10)
- change in financial assumptions (0.04) 0.26
- experience variance (i.e, Actual experiences assumptions) 0.04 (0.07)
Return an plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense . -
Components of defined benefit casts recognised in other comprehensive income 0.02 0.09
vi. Actuarial Assumptions
Discount Rate {per annum) 7.50% 6.90%
Annual Increase in Salary Cast (per annum) 10.00% 10.00%
Attrition/Withdrawal Rate (per annum) 7.69% 10 00%
Mortality Rates as given under Indian Assured Lives Mortality Ultimate 2012-2014 100.00% 100.00%

vil, Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality The sensitivity analysis below have been
datermined based an reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting periad, while hoiding all other assumptions constant

The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
@ in Crores) @®in Crares)
Dafined Benafit Obligation (Base} 1.00 1.37

160



ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED H
; adani

(CIN :U401016GJ2013PLCO7770Q)
Transmission

Notes to financia™ = “ements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
RS At 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, & ™
Particulars
- - Zin Crares) Tin Crores)
[ p— increase Decre___ Increase
Jiscount Rate (-/ + 1%) 109 Q.97 1.29
% change compared to base due to sensitivity 91% -7.9 -6 4%
Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%) 092 1.09 147
(% change compared to basa due to sensitivity) -7 8% 8.8% 6.9%
Attrition Rate {-/ + 50%) 107 096 13
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 6 8% -4 5% -4.6%
Mortality Rate (- / + 10%) 1,00 1.00 138
(% change comnpared to base due to sensitivity) 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

viil. Asset Liability Matching Strategies
The scheme is managed on unfunded basis The Scheme has been funded on a group basis and accordingly the fund balance appears in the financial statements of the Parent.

ix, Effect of Plan on Entity's Future Cash Flows
a) Funding arrangements and Funding Policy
The holding company has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity to the empioyees of the group

b) Expected Contribution during the next annual reparting periad
The Company’s best estimate of Contribution during the next year is Nil

c) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
Weighted average duration (based on discounted cash flows) - 9 years,

Expected cash flows over the next {vaiued on undiscounted basis): T in Crores}
1year 013
2 to Syears 03
6 to 10 years 049
More than 10 vears 127
The discount rate is based an the prevailing market yields of Government of [ndia securities as at the balance sneet date for the estimated term of the obligations,

The expected contributions for Defined Benefit Plan for the next financial yeaar will be in line with FY 2022-23
The actuarial liability for leave encashment and compensated absences {including Sick Leave) as at the year ended 31st March, 2023 is T 0.73 Crores (31st March 2022 ¥ 1 01 Crores.)

{b) Defined Cantribution Plan

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recognised in Statement of profit and loss and Project Development Expenditure, for the year is as under:

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(Zin Crares) {Tin Crores)

Employer's Contributian ta Provident Fund 0.32 035
Employer's Contribut’ Superannuation Fund 0.00 0.01

37 Central Electricity Regulatory Commission ("CERC") vide it's order dated January 21, 2022, has partly disaliowed certain expenses {interest and depreciation) in refation to truing up tariff
petition For the control peried 2015-19 and tariff determination petition for the control period 2020-24 fited by Adani Transmissian {India) Limited ("ATIL"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. The Management has, basis an external legal opinion, assessed that it has reasonably good case on merits in the light of the prevailing Tariff Regulations, settled principles of law
as per earlier judicial precedence and. is in the process of preferring an appeal in Appellate Tribunal for Electricity against such CERC order. Having regard to the above, the disallowances
aggregating to T108.11 Crore up to 31st March, 2023 (P.Y. ¥ 62.79 Crore) are not reckoned with in the aforementionad resuits

During the year 2022-23, Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission ( MERC) vide its order dated 31st March, 2023 has approved i) truing-up of the tariff for the period from the
financial year 2019-20, 2020-21 & 2021-22, (i) for Pravisional truing up of financial year 2022-23 and (jiii) Aggregate Revenue Requirement (ARR) for FY 2023-24 and FY 2024-25
Accordingly, based an the MERC order, the company has recorced additional revenue of T 15.76 Crores. Under the circumstances, the figures for the current year are not comparable with
the corresponding figures of the previous year, ta that extent.

38 Financial Instruments and Risk Overview
{a) Capital Management

The Company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity and healthy capitai ratios in order to support its business and provide adequate return to shareholders thraugh
centinuing growth, The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from previous year
The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and iong-term operating plans which include capital and other strategic investments,

The funding requirements are met through a mixtuce of equity, internal fund generation, borrowings The Company's palicy is to use borrawings to meet anticipated funding requirements,

As at As at
Particulars Refer Note 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
(¥ in Crares) T in Crares)

Total Borrowings 20823 516.18 553.68
Less: Cash and Bank balance 14 7.15 1.58
Less : Current Investments 12 Q.10 0862
Net Debt (A) 508,93 551.48
Total Equity (B) 18819 2,824.06 2,506.43
Total Equity and Net Detit C=(A+B) 3.332.99 3,057.91
Gearing Ratio (A)/(C) 0.15 0.18

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended as at 31st March, 2023 and as at 31st March, 2022
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(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives
The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payabies, The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's opearations/projects

.The Company's principal financial assets include loans. trade and other receivables, and cash and cash eguivalents that derive directly from its operations

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is mainly exposed to risks resuiting from exchange rate fluctuation (currency risk), intarest rate movements (interest rate risk) collectively
referred as Market Risk, Cradit Risk, Liquidity Risk and other price risks such as equity price risk. The Company's senior managemant oversees the management of these risks, It manages its
axposure to these risks through derivative financial instruments by hedging transactians.

The Company's risk management activities are subjact to the management, direction and control of Central Treasury Team of the Group under the framework of Risk Management Policy
for Currency and Interest rate risk as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Group's central treasury team ensures appropriate financial risk governance framework for
the Company through appropriate policies and procedures and that financia! risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and risk objectives. It is the

Group's policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken,

The decision of whether and when to execute derivative financial instruments along with its tenure can vary fram period to period depending on market conditions and the relative costs of
the instruments The tenure is linked to the timing of the underlying exposure, with the connection between the two being regularly manitored. The Company is exposed to losses in the
event of non-performance by the counterparties to the derivative contracts Afl derivative contracts are executed with counterparties that, in our judgment, are creditworthy The
outstanding derivatives are reviewed periodically to ensure that there is no inappropriate concentration of outstanding to any particular counterparty.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is exposed to Market risk, Credit risk, and Liquidity risk.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest

rate risk and foreign currency risk,

1) Interest rate risk
The company is exposed to changes in market interest rates due to financing, investing and cash management activities The Company is funded by the Hoiding Company. The Company is

not exposed to any interest rate risk as borrowing availed by the Campany is at fixed rate

2) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of

changes in fareign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities The Company manages its foreign currency risk by hedging transactions that are axpected to
realise in future Accordingly, as at period end the Company does not have any unhedged outstanding fareign exposure and hence the Company is not exposed to any foreign currency risk

as at period and

The dotails of foreign currency expasures nat hodged by dorivative instiumenly are 22 under :

Nature As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022

FCY in Mitlions Tin Crores EUR in Mitlicns ¥ in Crores
Trade Paybies EUR 000 003 000 Q03
Trade Paybles uso - 0o oM

Faraign Currency Risk Sensitivity

A change of 1% in Foreign currency would have following impact on profit before tax
R in Croros)

Far the Year 2022-23 For the Year 2021-22

Partlculars
1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease
Risk Sensitivity
Rupee / EUR - {Increase) / Decrease (0.00) 000 (0 00) 000
Rupee / USD - {Incraase)} / Decraase - (0.00) 000

(Figuraes below ¥ 50,000 Q0 denoted as ¥ 0.00 Crs)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a loss to the company. The Company has adapted the policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating tha risk of financial losses from defauit, and generally does not obtain any collaterai or other security on trade receivables.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in tha financial statements represents the Company's maximum expasure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements reprasents the companies maximum exposure to credit risk Since the companies is an ISTS licensees, the
responsibility for billing and collection on behaif of the Group lies with the CTU. Based on the fact that the coilection by CTU is from Designated ISTS Customers (DICs) which in majority of
the cases are state government organisations and further based on an analysis of the past trends of recovery, the management is of the view that the entire receivables are fully
recoverable Accordingly, the Group does not recognize any impairment loss on its receivables

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of shortage of funds using cash flow forecasting models. These models consider the maturity of its financial investments, committed funding and projected
cash flows from operations. The Company's objective is to provide financial resources to meet its business objectives in a timely, cost effective and reliable manner and to manage its
capital structure A balance between continuity of funding and flexibility is maintained through the use of various types of borrawings.

The table below analysis derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the reporting date to the

contractual maturity date, The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
{% in Crores}

As at 31st March, 2023 Less than 1 year 1-5 vears More than 5 years Total
Borrowings"# 55.43 477.21 . 532.64
Trade Payables 63 50 - . 63 50
Other Financial Liabilities™ 123.48 - - 123.48
{2 in Crores)
As at 31st March, 2022 Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrawings**# 275.81 426.60 . 702.41
Trade Payables 2397 . . . 2397
Other Financial Liabilities*” 152 20 - - 152.20

* Includes Non-current borrowings, current borrowings, committed interest payments on borrowings,

** Includes both Non-current and current financial liabilities

# The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial hiabilities including interest that will be paid on those liabilities upto the maturity of the
instruments, ignoring the call and refinancing options available with the Group, The amounts included above for variabie interest rate instruments for non-derivative liabilities is
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting periad
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39 Transaction with strike off companies

Name of Struck off company

Nature of transaction with struck off
company

Balance as on 31si
March. 2023 .

Jatance as on 31st
March. 2022

Relation ship with strike off company

Ashiana Infrahome Pvt Ltd

Recoverv tawards capital advances

-

033

Vendor

40 Corporate Social responsibility :

(T in Crores)

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

(ii) Amount of expenditure ingurred
(iil) Shortfall at the end of the year

(v) Reason far shortfall
{vi) Nature of CSR activities

(iv) Total of previous years {shortfall) / Excess spent

(i) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year

(vii) Details of related party transactions, e g. contribution to a trust controlled by the company in relation ta CSR
expenditure as per relevant Accaunting Standard 1

(viii) where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the
movements in the provision during the year shall be shown separately

714
7.15

NA
As per Note : 1

4.15

NA

7.1
708

004
NA
As per Note: 1

6.91

N/

5

" Reprasants contribution to Adani Foundation a contrailed trust, ta be utitised far Education, Sustainable Livetihood, Environment Sustainability, Community Health, Support to Paor. (PY -

Primary Education, Cemmunity Health, Sustainable Livelihood Development and Rural Infrastructure Deveiopment)
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42

43

The carrying value of financial instruments by

categories 3as on 31st March, 2023

{in Crores)

Fair Value through Fair Value Total Carrying Value

Particulars Other Comprehensive |through Profit or Amortised Cost . Fair Value
Income Loss in Books

Financial Assets
Investments In Government Securities 0.10 13.98 14.08 13.53
Trade Receivables - 347.40 347.40 347.40
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 7.15 7.15 7.1
Loans 0.08 0.08 0.08
Other Financial Assets . 82.43 82.43 82.43
Total - 0.10 451.04 45114 450.59
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 516.18 516.18 516.18
Trade Payables - 63.50 63,50 63.50
Other Financial Liabilities 123.48 123.48 123.48
Total - - 703,16 703.16 703.16

The carrying value of financial instruments by

categories as on 31st March, 2022

@ in Crores)

) Fair Value through Fair Value Total Carrying Value

Particulars Other Comprehensive ]through Profit or Amartised Cost A 9 Fair Value
Income Loss in Books

Financial Assets
Investments in Government Securities . 10.58 10.58 10.40
Investments in Mutual Funds 0.62 - 0.62 0.62
Trade Receivables - - 104.45 104 45 104.45
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1.58 1.58 1.58
Loans - 0.02 0.02 0.02
Other Financial Assets - - 84.17 84.17 8417
Tatal . 0.62 .20.80 201,42 201,24
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings (Including current maturities) 553.68 553.68 553.68
Trade Payabies - - 23.97 23,97 23.97
Other Financial Liabilities - 152.20 152.20 152.20
Tatal . - 729.85 729.85 729,85

(i) The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other balance with banks, trade receivables, loans, trade payables, other
financial assets and liability approximate their carrying amount largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.
(ii) The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities Is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in 8 current transaction between

willing parties. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values.
(iii) Fair value of mutual funds and Government Securities are based on the price quotations of the reporting date.

Fair Value hierarchy
Property, Piant and Equipment

R in Crores)

. As at As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2023 | 31st March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 2

Assets

Investment in Government Securities 13.53 - 10.40
Investments in unquated Mutual Funds measured at FVTPL - 0.10 0.62
Liability

Borrowings - 516.18 553.68

- Fair value of mutual funds are based on the price quatations of the reporting date.

- Fair value of Loans is equivalent to amortised

cost.

- Fair vafue of Investment in Government securities are based on the price quotations of the reporting date.

Assets Pledged as Security

(i) The Company has pledged all the assets (movable and immovable) including its current assets as security for secured borrowings availed by the
Intermediate holding company (Adani Transmission Step-One Limited } aggregating 4%, 500 million USD Bonds ~ 4,108.50 Crores (PY - 500 million USD Bonds
*3,789.63 Crores), 4.25 %, 422.50 million USD Bond ~ 3,471.68 Crores (PY - 452.5 million USD Bonds ~ 3,429.61 Crores). Apart from this, the intermediate
Holding Company has also pledged the entire share capital of the Company, held by it, as a security for such borrowings availed.

(i) The Company has created first pari passu charge on the book debts (inciuding Unbilled revenue), Inventory, Current Investments , respective projects
escrow accounts (Including cash and Deposits) and Property plant & equipment (Including of Right of use assets) for secured borrowing availed by
Maharashtra Eastern Grid Power Transmission Company Limited (Fellow Subsidiary) and Adani Transmission Limited (Holding Company).
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448

(i) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Uitimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties*), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behaif of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

During the quarter ended 31st March 2023, a short seller report was published in which certain allegations were made involving Adani Group Companies,
including Adani Transmission Limited (“ATL") and its subsidiaries. A writ petition was filed in the matter with the Hon'ble Supreme Court (*SC*), and during
hearing the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") has represented to the SC that it is investigating the allegations made in the short seller report for
any violations of the various SEB! Regulations. The SC had constitutad an expert committee for assessment of the extant of regulatory framework and voiatility
assessment on Adani stocks, as also to investigate whether there have been contraventions and regulatory failures on minimum shareholding and related party
transactions pertaining to Adani group. The expart committee, post the reporting date, issued its report on the given remit, wherein no regulatory failures are
observed, while SEBI continues its investigations.

Separately, to uphold the principles of good governance, Adani Group has undertaken review of transactions (including those for the Company and its
subsidiaries) with parties referred in the short seller's report including relationships amongst other matters and obtained opinions from independent law firms.
These opinions confirm that the Company and its subsidiaries are in compliance with the requirements of applicabie laws and regulations. Considering the
matter is subjudice at Supreme Court, no additional action is considered prolific and pending outcome of the investigations as mentioned above, the financial

stataments do not carry any adjustments.
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45 Ratio Analyses

Remark - Any change in

: " " . As at As at % change in the ratio by > 25% as
[
Financial Ratios articulars Numerator / Denominator taken I1st March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022 Ratio compared to the preceding
year.
Ratio (In times) 1.43 0.38 . )
Current Ratio Numerator  |Current Assets 44692 17129 276.32% 22;;2;.?”“9 in Trade
Denominator |Current Liabilities 313.00 44592 '
Ratio (In timas) 0.18 0.22
Total Barrowings
Debt- Equity Ratio Numerator {Including Current Maturities of Long 516.18 553.68 -18.18%
term borrowing)
Denominator | Total Equity 2.824.06 2.506.44
Ratio (In times) 5.94 Q.77
- T —
Numerator ;r::':c:;‘;': Tex + Depreciation + 719.89 729 96 o
Debt Service Coverage Ratio §71.43% Ratio s improved ‘due te
e Cost + Prinicipal P . reduction of borrowing.
Denominator |, "once ~OS rinicipal Fayments 12122 954.00
(Long Term)
Ratio (In %) 11.92% 11.65%
Return on Equity Ratio Numerator Profit for the year after tax before OCI 31764 275.93 230%
Denominator Average Total Equity 2,665.25 2.368.5C
Ratio (in times} .
Numerator Revenue from Traded Goods NA NA
Inventary Turnover Ratio - U.00%
Denominator Averag.e Tradeld Inventories excluding NA NA
stores inventories
Ratio (In times 2.55 3.10
Numerator Total Revenue from Contract with 784.70 768 91
Trade Receivables turnaver ratio Customers -17.74%
Denominator Ave@ge Trade receivables (including 307.89 247.74
Unbilled revenue)
Ratio {In times) 1.77 3,80
. Operating Expesnes, Employment Due to Increase in Trade
Trade payables turnover ratio NUmerator |50 nefit Expense and other expenses 7730 nn 3342%) b ayable
Denominator {Average Trade payables 43.74 18.87
Ratio (in times) 7.50 10.09
Numerator (T:otatlo R::enue from Contract with 78470 768.91
Net capital turnover ratio ustome -25.67%
“verage Working Capital (Current Assets
Denominato Curcent Liabilities (Excluding Current 104.59 76.23
| Borrowing))
Ratio (in %) 39.83% 34.42%
Numerator Profit after Taxes 317.64 275.93
Net profit ratio 15.73%
Denominator {Total Income 797 39 80167
Ratio (In %) 13.73% 15.46%
Numerator Profit before tax and Interest expense 458,36 472.75
Return on Capital amployed -11.18%
¢ e ploy Capital Employed
Denominator |(Capital Employed = Tangibie Net Worth 3338.71 3,058.64
+ Total Debt - Intangible Aset)
Ratio (In %) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Return en investment Numerator income From Investment NA NA
Denominator |Cost of Investment NA NA
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Note:

(i) The Holding company has pledged shares of the company against its Borrowing (Refer Note 43}

(i) Interest accrued an Inter Carparate Depasit ("ICD*) taken from related parties amounting to ¥ 20 58 Crare (Previous year - Nil), have been converted to Inter Carporate Deposit as on the
reporting date as per the terms of Contract

{iii) Interest accrued on Inter Corporate Deposit {"ICD") given to relatad parties amounting to X 3.56 Crore (Previous year - Nil), have been converted to Inter Carporate Deposit as on the reporting date as per the terms of
Contract.
{B) Balances with Related Parties

(Zin Crares)
As at As at
Nature of Transaction Name of Related Party 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Loan Given Closing Balance Adani Transmission Limited, 286.64 -
Loan taken Clasing Balance Adani Transmission Limitad. N 552.74
Loan taken Closing Balance Adani Transmission Step-One Limited a7 23 .
Accounts Payable - Closing Balance Adani Enterprises Limited 5.89 0.92
Accounts Pavable - Closing Balance Adani Ports And Special Economic Zone Ltd 005 B
Accounts Payable - Closing Balance Adani Infrastructure Management Service Ltd 45.46 17 43
Accounts Payable - Closing Balance Adani Transmission Limited, 4.87 533
Accounts Payable - Closing Balance :r:?tr:;:ower {Mundra) Limited {Amalgamated with Adani Power 009 0.00
Accounts Payable - Closing Balance Chhattisgarh-WR Transmission Limited. 0.00 N
Accounts Payabie - Closing Balance Maru Transmission Service Company Limited. 0.00 B
Accounts Pavable - Closing Balance Adani Green Energy (Up) Limited . 358
Accounts Payable - Closing Balance Thar Power Transmission Service Limited, 0.00 N
Accaunts Pavable - Closing Balance Western Transca Power Limited. 079 0.79
Accounts Payable - Closing Balance Western Transmission (Gujarat) Limited. 0.58 0.58
Accounts Payable - Clasing Balance Mundra Solar PV Limited 0 85 .
Accounts Payable - Closing Balance Adani Digital Labs Pvt Ltd 0.01
Accounts Receivable - Closing Balance Lakadia Banaskantha Transco Limited 0.00
Accounts Receivable - Closing Balance Jam Khambaliva Transco Limited 0.00
Accounts Receivable - Closing 8alance ADANI GREEN ENERGY LIMITED 0.04 N
Accounts Receivable - Closing Balance Maharashtra Eastern Grid Power Transmission Company Limited. 0.14 0.06
Accounts Receivable - Closing Balance Adani Renewable Energy Park Rajasthan Limited . 0.00
Accounts Receivable - Closing Balance Maru Transmission Service Company Limited, 0.02
Accounts Receivable - Closing Balance Fatehgarh-Bhadla Transmission Limited 001
Accounts Receivable - Closing Balance Adani Vizhinjam Port Pvt Ltd 0.03 I
(Transactions below T 50,000.C0 denased as T 0.00 Crs)

47 The chief operating decision maker evaluates the Company's performance and applies the resources to whole of the Company business viz. “Transmission income” as an integrated
utility. Hence the Company does not have any reportable segment as per Ind AS- 108 *Operating Segments",

48 Other Disclosures

(i) The Company evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior ta the approval of financial statements to determine the necessity for
recognition and/or reporting of any of these events and transactions in the financial statements. As of 29th May, 2023, there are no subseguent events to be recognized or reported

that are not already disclosed.

(i)The Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 have been approved by the Board of Directors at their meetings held on 2Sth May, 2023.

As per our reports attached of even date

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

HARDIK SUTARIA

Partner

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29th May, 2023

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED

Rohit Soni

Whole-time Director
DIN: 09336186

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29th May, 2023

Chaitanya Sahoo
Diractor

DIN: 06860381
Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29th May, 2(

e

Krutarth Thakkar

OfFficer Company Secratary
bad Place : Ahmedabad
y, 2023
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RE 11, 1st Floor,

Near Vikramnagar, Iscon, Ambli
Road, Ambli,

Ahmedabad - 380 058

Gujarat, [ndia

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Adani Transmission (India) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Adani Transmission (India) Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘'the Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘ind
AS'") specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31 March 2024, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘{CAI’)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director's Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conciude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
- of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We aiso:

s ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control;

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such contrals;

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events Lc_okdifions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern; and RANDIOES
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» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internaf control
that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 were audited by the
predecessor auditor, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, who have expressed an unmodified opinion on those
financial statements vide their audit report dated 29 May 2023.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under

section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’}) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and expianations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph 14(h)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended);

c) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f)  The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are
as stated in paragraph 14(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph
14(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended);

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company, as detailed in note 37(i) to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of
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iit.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any materiai foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024.;

iv. (@) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

note 45(i) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ('the intermediaries’), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

note 45(ii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

{c) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2024.

vi.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year

commencing on 1 April 2023, has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that, audit trail feature was

not enabled at database level for accounting software SAP S/4 HANA to log any direct data

changes, as described in note 46(ii) to the financial statements. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of
the accounting software where such feature is enabled.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registrationq\lo.: 001076N/N500013
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Neeraj Goel

Partner

Membership No.: 99514
UDIN: 24099514BKCMUI2046

N

Place: Gurugram
Date: 29 April 2024
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Adani Transmission (India) Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024

in terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress
and relevant details of right of use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right of use assets under which
the assets are physically verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment,
capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right of use assets were verified during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee) disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements are held in the name of the
Company, except for the following properties:

Description Gross Held in Whether Period | Reason for not being
of property | carrying name promoter, held held in name of
value of director or company
(Rs in their relative
crore) or employee
Land 25.41 | Adani No From 1 | The title deeds are held
Power April in the name of the
Limited 2014 predecessor Company,
from which the

transmission business
got demerged into the
Company under section
391 to 394 of the
Companies Act, 1956 in
terms of the approval of
the Honorable High
Court of judicature.

For properties where the Company is a lessee, the lease arrangements have been duly
executed in favour of the Company except in following cases:

Description Right of Location Details of Period Reason for non-
of property | Use Asset Lessor held execution of lease
Value (Rs agreement
in crore)
Leasehold 8.78 | Gujarat and | Adani Power | From 1 | The title deeds are
lands Haryana Limited April held in the name of
2014 the predecessor
Company, from
which the
transmission
business got
demerged into the
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Adani Transmission (India) Limited on the financial statements for the year ended

31 March 2024

Company under
section 391 to 394 of
the Companies Act,
1956 in terms of the
approval of the
Honorable High
Court of judicature.

(d) The Company has not revaiued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use

assets) or intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each

class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records.

(b) As disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a working
capital limit in excess of Rs 5 crore by banks or financial institutions based on the security of
current assets. The quarterly returns, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by
the Company with such banks or financial institutions and such returns are in agreement with the
books of account of the Company for the respective periods, which were subject to review.

(i#) The has not provided any guarantee or security to companies, firms, limited liability
partnership during the year. Further, the Company has made investment in and provided

loans to companies during the year, in respect of which:

(a) The Company has provided loans to Others during the year as per details given below:

Particulars Loans*
Aggregate amount provided/granted during the year (Rs. in crore):
- Others 822.13
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases
(Rs. in crore): 762.42
- Others

*includes interest accrued amounting to Rs. 16.44 crore converted in the loan balance.

(b) In our opinjon, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
investment made and terms and conditions of the grant of alt loans are, prima facie, not

prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments/receipts of principal and

interest are regular.

(d) There is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted to such companies or other parties.

(e) The Company has granted loans which had fallen due during the year and were repaid on

or before the due date. Further,
overdue loans.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Adani Transmission (india) Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, which are repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 of the Act. As the
Company is engaged in providing infrastructural facilities as specified in Schedule VI of the Act,
provisions of section 186 except sub-section (1) of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In
our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of sub-section (1) of section 186 of the Act in respect of investments,
as applicable.

(iv)

tn our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly
reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by
the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.
However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vi)

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, income-tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became

payable.

(vii)(a)

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities
on account of any dispute except for the following:

Name of the | Nature of | Gross Amount paid | Period to which | Forum  where
statute dues Amount | under Protest | the amount | dispute is
(Rs in | (Rsincrores) { relates pending
crores)
Income  Tax | Income Tax 0.00* 0.00* | AY 2018-189 CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961
Income  Tax | Income Tax 0.14 - | AY 2020-21 Commissioner
Act, 1961 of Income-tax
Entry Tax Act, | Entry Tax 5.40 - | FY 2010-11 Tribunal
1976

*represent amounts below Rs. 50,000

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books

of accounts.

(viii)

/\*m?\?

N\ C: "’*‘\{ \\

(ix) @}According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
C)epayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Adani Transmission (India) Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from
the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any money by way of term loans during the year and there has been no utilisation during
the current year of the term loans obtained by the Company during any previous years.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any funds on short term basis during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowiedge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the period covered by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section
133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv) (@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an
/Y\m\\ internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act which is commensurate with
CaANRI0R

\o the size and nature of its business.
(@]

(b\EWe have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
i’périod under audit.

S
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Adani Transmission {India) Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (@) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-iA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(b) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board
of Directors and management and based on cur examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
company as and when they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility in respect of any ongoing or other than
ongoing project as at the end of the financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Regm No. 001076N/NS00013
A
N L?_V@/L/___ GOk

Neeraj Goel

Partner

Membership No.: 99514
UDIN: 24099514BKCMUI2046

Place: Gurugram
Date: 29 April 2024
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Adani
Transmission (India) Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,

2013 (‘the Act))

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Adani Transmission (India) Limited (‘the
Company') as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal controls with reference to the financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential component of Internal Controt stated in
Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including
adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the Guidance Note’) issued by the ICAIl. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financiai
controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such

controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of Adani
Transmission (India) Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's interna! financial controls with reference to financial statements include
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,
based on the internal controls with reference to the financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential component of internal Control stated in Guidance note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration“\lo.: 001076N/N500013

\
Ne Z
Neeraj Goel
Partner

Membership No.: 99514
UDIN: 24099514BKCMUI2046

Place: Gurugram
Date: 29 April 2024
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ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED Emirgy Salutions
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024
® in Crares)

As at As at
Particuiars
Notes 31t March, 2024 31st March, 2023
ASSETS
Non-Current Asscts
Praperty, Plant and Equipment S 2,485.85 2,725.51
Capital Wark-In-Progress SA 27.89 23.02
Right-of-Use Assets 5B 580 6.40
Intangible Assets 5C 2.7 153
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 6 13,92 13.98
(i)} Loans 7 762.30 286.64
(iii) Other Financial Assets 8 21.46 32.62
Income Tax Assets (Net) ] 1517 15.29
Other Non-current Assets 10 453.40 449.86
Total Non-Current Asscts 3,788.50 3,554.85
Current Asscts
Inventories " 36.36 36.20
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 12 178 0.10
(ii) Trade Receivables 13 376.61 34740
(iify Cash and Cash Equivalents 14 1.52 7.15
(iv) Loans 15 0.12 0.08
(v) Other Financial Assets 16 29.55 45.81
Other Current Assets 17 15.39 6.18
Total Current Assets 461.33 446.92
Total Asscts 4,249.83 4,001.77
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 18 110.05 110.05
Instrument entirely in the nature of equity 19 1,200.00 -
QOther Equity 20 1,814.36 271401
Tatal Equity 3,124.41 2,824.06
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 21 467.99 417.23
Provisions 22 2.53 139
Deferred Tax Liahilities (Net) 23 441.97 446,09
Total Non-Current Liabliities 912.49 864.71
Current Liabilitles
Financial Liabilities
() Borrowings 24 2.38 98.95
(ii) Trade Payables
- Total outst.andmg dues of micro enterprises and 0.73 103
small enterprises 25
- Total outst-andlng dues of credl.tors other than 64.47 §2.47
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 26 106.58 123.48
Other Current Liabilities 28 18.77 11.09
Provisions 22 16.04 15.98
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 27 2.96 -
Total Current Liabllities 212.93 313.00
Tota! Liabilitles 1,125.42 1177.71
= ——=
Total Equity and Liabilities 4,249.83 4,001.77
Materfal Accounting Palicies 3
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
As per our reports attached of even date
For Waiker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
Firm Registration No: O{J1076N/N500013
~ B \_,-— .
N s PAVIY, /é
Neeraj Goe Rohit Soni Chaitanya Sahao
Partner Whole Time Director Director
Membership No. 99514 DIN 09336186 DIN: 06860381

Nitin Patel Krutarth Thakkar
Chief Financial Offlcer Campany Secretary

Place : Gurugram Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29 April 2024 5 Date : 28 April 2024



ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED Encrgy Solutions
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024

® in Crores)
. For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars Notes 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Income

Revenue from Operations 29 717.69 784.70

Other income 30 59.80 12.69
Totai Income 777.49 797.39
Expenses

Operating Expenses 31 47.62 42.01

Employee Benefits Expenses 32 10.38 7.48

Finance Costs 33 63.79 73.46

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 5C 262.51 261.54

Other Expenses 34 29.18 28.00
Total Expenses 413.48 412.49
Profit Before Tax and Deferred Asset recoverable for the year 364.01 384.90
Tax Expense; 35

Current Tax 63.58 67.26

Deferred Tax (4.11) 4,07
Total Tax Expenses 59.47 71.33
Profit After Tax but before Deferred Asset recoverabie for the year 304.54 313.57
Deferred Asset recoverable (4.11) 4.07
Profit After Tax for the year 300.43 317.64

Other Comprehensive {ncome
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Remeasurement gain / (loss) of Defined Benefit Plan (0.08) (0.02)
-Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year (Net of Tax) (0.08) (0.02)

Total Comprehensive income for the year 300.35 317.62

Earnings Per Equity Share (EPS) (in )
(Face Value ¥ 10 Per Share)

Basic Earnings Per Share 36 27.30 28.86
Diluted Earnings Per Share 2.29 2.42
Material Accounting Palicies 3

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

As per our reports attached of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
Firm Registration Nq;\0C1076N/N500013
N
N ok \V.YS ., MM
Neeraj Goel Rohit Sont Chaitanya Sahoo
Partner Whole Time Director Director
Membership No, 99514 DIN 09336186 DIN: 06860381
. Q/’-j:::‘ W’\/
o \)\ . @T/(\f\.
Nitin Patel Krutarth Thakkar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Gurugram Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29 April 2024 Date : 29 April 2024

A




ADAN! TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity faor the year ended 31st March, 2024

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars No. Shares X In Crores)
Balance as at 1st April, 2022 11.00,50,000 110.05
Issue of shares during the year - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 11,00,%0,000 110.05
issue of shares during the year - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 11,00,50,000 110,05
B. Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS)

Particulars No. Shares @® in Crores)
Balance as at 1st April, 2022 - -
Issued during the year - -
Balance as ot 31st March, 2023 - .
Issued during the year 1,20,00.00,000 1,200.00
Baiance as ot 31st March, 2024 1,20,00,00,000 1,200.00

C. Other Equity

® In Crores)
Reserves and Surplus

i Tatal

Particulars . Capital Redemption . ok
Retalned Earning Contingency Raeserve
Reserve

Balance as at 1st April, 2022 958.01 1,425.00 13.38 2396.39
Add: Profit for the year 317.64 - - 317.64
Add: Other Comprehensive income/(Loss) for the year (Net of tax) (0.02) - (0.02)
Add/(Less); Transfer from Retained Earning to Contingency Reserve (1.78) - 1.78 -
Balance az at 31st March, 2023 1,273.85 1,.425.00 15,16 2,714.01
Add: Profit for the year 300.43 - - 300.43
Add: Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (Nat of tax) (0.08) - - (0.08)
Add/(Less):: Transfer from Retalned Earnings on Issuance of optionally
convertible redeemable Preference Shares (Refer note 19) (1,200.00) - - (1,200,00)
Add/(Less): Transfer from Retained Earning to Contingency Reserve (1.79) . 179 R
Balance as at 31st Morch, 2024 372.41 1,425.00 16.95 1,814.36

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

As per our reports attached of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 00§ 076 N/N500013

\
N oo isst

Neeraj Goel
Partner
Membership No. 99514

Place : Gurugram
Date : 25 April 2024

Far and on behalf of the Board of Oirectars

ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED

A\
A

Raohit Sonl

Whole Time Director

DIN 09336186

{
r_fy

Paulsd

Chaitanya Sahoo
Director
DIN: 06860381

£ IVt

Nitin Patel \xrutarth Thakkar
Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer

Place : Ahmedabad

bia/tw.:ril 2024

182



ADANI TRANSMISSION {INDIA) LIMITED
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31st March, 2024

adani

Enargy Solutions

[ in Crores)

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

A.

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amartisation Expense
Finance Costs
Unclaimed Liabilities / Excess provision written back
Loss on sale/discard of Property, Plant and Equipment
Interest income
Cash flows from operations before working capltal changes
Changes in Working Capitak
(Increase) / Decrease in Assets :
Loans, other financial assets and other assets
Inventories
Trade Receivables
Increase / (Decrease) in Liabilities ;
Other financial liabilities, other liabilities and provisions
Trade Payables
Cash generated from operations
Incame Tax paid (Net)

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

Cash fiows from Investing activities

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (including capital advance)
Interest received (Including Delayed Payment Charges of ¥ 17.90 Crs (P.Y: ¥ 5.22 Crs)

Purchase of Current Investments (Net)
Non current loan given
Non current loan received back
Current Loans received back

Net cash used in investing activities {B)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from Long-term borrowings
Repayment of Long-term borrowings
Proceeds / (Repayment) from Short-term borrowings (net)
Finance Costs paid
Net cash used in financing activities (C)

Net (Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 14)

Cash and Cash Equivalents Includes (Refer note 14)

Balances with Banks
in Current Accounts

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

364.01 384,90
262.51 261,54
63.79 73.46
(0.88) -
0.04 0.18
(57.83) (10.57)
631.64 709.51
22.27 (19.29)
(0.186) (7.12)
(29.22) (242.95)
(.67 (12.20)
2.58 39.53
625.50 467.53
(60.50) (26.35)
565.00 441,18
(41.47) (42.83)
41.40 7.76
(1.68) (2.26)
(805.53) (322.00)
346.31 37.42
(0.05) -
(461.02) (321.91)
- 14157
(4.21) (47.76)
(96.57) (151.99)
(8.83) (55.52)
(109.61) (113.70)
(5.63) 5.57
7.15 1.58
1.52 7.5
As at As at

31st March, 2024

31st March, 2023

1.52

7.15

1.52

715
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ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Notes to Statement of Cash Flows:

1) The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows",
2) Disclosure under Para 44A as set out in Ind AS on cash flow statements under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2017 (as amended) is

given below:

adani

Y Solutions

3) Interest accrued on inter Corporate Deposit ("ICD*) taken from related parties amounting to ¥ 54,97 Crore (Previous year - ¥ 20.68 Crore), have been
converted to Inter Corporate Deposit as on the reporting date as per the terms of Contract.
4) Interest accrued on Inter Corporate Deposit {*ICD") given to related parties amounting to ¥ 16.44 Crore (Previous year - 23.56 Crore), have been
converted to Inter Corporate Deposit as on the reporting date as per the terms of Contract.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

@® in Crores)
Particulars 1st April, 2023 Cash Flows (Net) Non-Cash Transaction 31st March, 2024
Long-term Borrowings 417,23 (4.21) 54.97 467.99
Short-term Borrowings 58,95 (96.57) - 238
Interest accrued - (8.83) 8.83 -
Total 516.18 (109.61) 63.80 470.37

® in Crores)
Partiguiars 1st April, 2022 Cash Flows (Net) Non-Cash Transaction 31st March, 2023
Long-term Borrowings 30274 93.81 20,68 417.23
Short-term Borrowings 250.94 (151.99) - 98.95
Interest accrued (55.52) 55.52 -
Total 553.68 (113.70) 76.20 516.18
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
As per our reports attached of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
Firm Registration No:§01076N/N500013

N QT’
N@%ﬂfﬁﬁ, vyg (AN@
Neeraj Goel Rohit Soni Chaitanya Sahoo
Partner Whole Time Director Director
Membership No. 99514 DIN 09336186 DIN: 06860381
2,’./’ -
Nitin Patel Krutarth Thakkar

Place : Gurugram
Date : 29 April 2024

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Ahmedabad
Date : 29 April 2024

/////

Company Secretary
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ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year cnded 31st March, 2024

21

2.2

@

Corporate infarmation

Adani Transmission (India) Limited (*The Company") {CIN :U40101GJ2013PLCO77700) is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has
its registered office at Adani Corparate House, Shantigram, Near Vaishno Devi Circle, S.G.Highway, Khodiyar, Ahmedabad Gujarat, 382421 India. The principle
activity of company is to establish, commission, operate and maintain Transmission Systems.

The company is having a dedicated transmission line from Mundra to Dehgam, Mundra ta Mahindergarh and Tiroda to Warora with total circuit iength of
approximately 3834 ckt km located in the states of Gujarat, Maharashtra and Haryana. The Company's main source of revenue is electricity transmission tariffs
where the tariffs are set on "cost plus-basis® by the regulators i.e. Central Electricity Regulatory Commission(CERC) & Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory
Commission{MERC). The “cost-plus basis® tariff is determined based on a number of components that are aggregated into an Annual Transmission Charges
which is paid to us by Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Company Limited (MSETCL) & Power Grid Corporation of india Limited (PGCIL).

The Company's main source of revenue is electricity transmission tariffs where the tariffs are set on “cost plus-basls” by the regulators i.e. Maharashtra
Electricity Regulatory Commission (MERC). This “cost-plus basis” tariff is determined based on a number of components that are aggregated into an Annual
Transmission Charges which is paid to us by Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Company Limited (MSETCL).

Statement of Cempliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Ruies, 2017 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act’) and presentatian requirements of Division il of Schedule | to the Companies Act,
2013, (Ind AS compiiant Schedule ili).

Basis of preparatien and presentation
The financial statements of the company have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention excegt for cartain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies stated hereunder.

The Function currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (INR). The financial statements are presented in INR and ail values are rounded to the nearest Crores
(Transactions below ¥ 50,000.00 denoted as T 0.00 Crores), uniess otherwise indicated.

Materlal accounting policies infarmation

Property, plant and equipment

Al items of property, plant and equipment, including freehold land, are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and
equipment other than freehold [and are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Freghold land has an
unlimited useful life and therefore is nat depreciated.

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Other Indirect expenses incurred relating to project, net of income
earned during the project development stage prior to its intended use, are considered as pre-operative expenses and disclosed under Capital Work-in-Progress.

Depreciation
Depreciation commences when an asset is ready for its intended use, Depreciation is recognised based on the cost of assets {other than land) less their

residuat values over their useful ilves.

Reguilated Assets
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment of the Company covered under Part B of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, has been provided on the
straight line method at the rates specified in tariff regulations notified by the Maharastra Electricity Regulatory Commission (Regulator’).

Estimated useful lives of assets are as follows :-

Type of Asscts Useful llves
Building 3 - 60 Years
Plant and Equipment 5 - 25 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 3 - 15 Years
Office Equipment 3 -15 Years
Computer Equipment 5 - 6 Years

Vehicles 1-10 Years

Temporary structure Is depreciated 100% on the date of capitalisation.

Derecognition
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or less arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of prafit and loss.
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ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED

adani

Enargy Sakitions

Notes to financial statements for the yeor ended 31st March, 2024

(6)

Intangiblc Asscts

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Amartisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Uscful life

Intangible assets with finite {lves are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an Intangible asset with 3 finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of
each reporting pericd. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied In the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recagnised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure Forms part of carrying value of another asset,
Estimated useful lives of assets are as follows -

[Type of Assets |Usetul lives |

|Computer Software 13-5 years

Dcrecagnition of Intangible asscts

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or [osses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised
in statement of profit 3nd loss when the asset is derecognised.

Financial Instruments

All financial assets and liabllities are recognized at fair value on initlal recognition except Trade Receivables which are measured at Transaction Cost,
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or Issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Lass.

(A) Einoncia! assgts
Initial Recognition and measurement
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace
(regular way tradas) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurcment ;
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the
financial assets.

i) Classification and measurement of financial assets
a) Financial asscts at amoartised cost
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method if these financial assets are held within a business
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash fiows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are sotely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b) Financial asscts at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following criteria are met

- it Is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

- the contractual terms of the financtal asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and Interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

c) Financial assets at fair value through profit & {oss (FVTPL)

All financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOC( are measured at FVTPL. Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in Consolidated prafit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised In Consolidated profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset.

li} Impalrment of financial assets
The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a Group of financial assets is impalred. ind AS 109 requires expected
credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance, The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and/or all trade receivables
that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month
expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit (osses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition.

lif) Derecognition of financial asscts
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed
from The Company's balance sheet) when; :
= the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
» The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation te pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a "pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or {b) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

When The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, It evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, The Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of The Company's continuing
invalvermnent. In that case, The Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that The Company has retained.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the conslderation received and
receivable and the cumulative galn or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity is recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on
disposal of that financlal asset.
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ADAN! TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED e
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024
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@

(e)

(B) Einangial labilities and eguity instruments

I) Classificatlon as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by The Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial fiability and an equity instrument.

i) Financial liabilities

Inttial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognltion, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as

derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabiiities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction

costs.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

« Financial llabilities at fair value through profit or lass

« Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

=

Trade and other payables are recognisad at the transaction cost. which is its fair value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Similarly, interest
bearing loans (inter corporate deposits), trade credits and borrowings -{(including bonds) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective
{nterest rate method. Trade credits include Buyer's credit, Foreign Letter of Credit and Inland Letter of Credit,

Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon Initial recagnition as FVTPL.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if these are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Financial liabitities at FVTPL are
stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognlsed in the Consolidated Statement of Proflt and Loss

ili) Derecognition of Financial Liability
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, The Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange
with a lender of debt instruments with substantiaily different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability, Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Falr value measurement

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes inte account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset In its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

(i) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

(ii) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the iowest level input that is significant to the fair vaiue measurement is directly or indirectly observable;

{iii} Level 3 — valuation techniques for which the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as
per The Company's accounting policies. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, The Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Revenue rccognition
Revenue from contracts with customers is recagnised when contral of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the

consideration to which The Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

= Power Transmisslon Services

The Company as per the prevalent tariff regulations is required to recaver its Annual Revenue Requirement (ARR’) comprising of expenditure on account of
aperations and maintenance expenses, financing costs, taxes and assured return on regulator approved equity with additional incentive for operational
efficiencies, Any surplus/shortfall in the recovery is accounted as revenue based on the final tariff orders by the reguitatory authority.

Accordingly, the revenue from power transmission services is recognised aver time based on the transmission asset avaijlabilities and the tariff charges
approved under the respective tariff orders and includes unbilled revenues accrued up to the end of the accounting period. The payment is generally due
within 30 days upon receipt of monthly inveice by the customer.
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ADAN] TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
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Notes to financla!l statements for the yeor ended 31st March, 2024

(@

* Other Income

interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of incame can be
measured reliably, Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

* Interest on Overdue Receivables / Delayed Payment Chorges:

Revenue in respect of delayed payment charges and interest on delayed payments leviable as per the relevant contracts are recognised on actual realisation or
accrued based on an assessment of certainty of realization supported by either an acknowledgement from customers or on recelpt of favorable order from
regulator / authaorities.

Employee benefits

i) Defined bencfit plans:
The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees through Group Gratuity Scheme of Life
Insurance Corporation of India.The Company accounts for the liability for the gratuity benefits payable in future based on an independent actuarial
valuation carried out using Projected Unit Credit Method considering discounting rate relevant to Government,
Defined benefit costs in the nature of current and past service cost and net interest expense or income are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
in the pefiod in which they occur. Actuarial gains and losses on remeasurement is reflected immediately In the balance sheet with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur and is reflected immediately in retarned earnings and not reclassified to profit
or loss.

ii) Defined contribution plan:
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

ili) Compensated Absences:
Provision for Compensated Absences and its classifications between current and non-current liabilities are based on independent actuarial valuation. The
actuarial valuation is done as per the projected unit credit method as at the reporting date.

iv) Shert-term and other long-term employce benefits
A liability is recognised for henefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service, Liabillties recognised in respect of short-term
employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service. Liahilities recognised
In respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows axpected to be made by The
Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Taxation

Tax on Income comprises current tax and deferred tax. These are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss or in other comprehensive income.
I} Current tax

Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis on estimated taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions
of the relevant tax iaws and based on the expected outcome of assessments / appeals. Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations for
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and revises the provisions where appropriate.

) Deferred tax
Defarred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generaily recagnised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or lass is recognised in other comprehensive income. Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction in OCl.

The Company is eligible and claiming tax deductions avaitable under section 80!A of the Income Tax Act, 1961 for a period of 7 years w.e.f FY 2023-21. In
view of the Company availing tax deduction under Section 80IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, deferred tax has been recognised in respect of temporary
difference, which reverse after the tax haliday period in the year in which the temporary difference originate and no deferred tax (assets or liabilities) is
recognised in respect of temporary difference which reverse during tax holiday period, to the extent such gross total income is subject to the deduction
during the tax holiday period. For recognition of deferred tax, the temporary difference which originate first are considered to reverse first.

MERC and CERC tariff norms In respect of certain subsidiaries which operate under cost plus tariff regime, provide the recovery of Income Tax from the
beneficiaries by way of grossing up the return on equity based on effective tax rata for the financial year shall be based on the actual tax paid during the
year on the transmission income from certain subsidiaries . Accordingly, deferred tax liapility provided during the year which is fully recoverable fram
beneficiaries and known as "deferred assets recoverable / adjustable”. The same will be recavered when the related deferred tax liability forms a part of
current tax,

Recent accounting pronouncements
Ministry of Carporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments ta the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules
as issued from time to time. During the year ended 31st March, 2024 MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable to the Company.




*ajqeoldde j0u 51 /102 'S3INY (Uonenien

3 Janjep pasalsiBay) saluedwo) ayl Jo Z 3Ny JapUN Paulyap se Jan|ea pasalsibal Ag uonen|ea snYL (s1assy asn Jo 1y6sy Buipn|ou)) Juawdinb3 g Jue|d ‘Aradoid S1t panieas) Jou sey Auedwo)d ayL

*Auedwo) ay3
JO aweu ayl Ul awes ay3
Bupuaysuen jo ssasold
ut s1 Auedwao) ayl
‘JabBlawap 150d s5aU1sNQ
UOISSIWSURI] 0] Pa1e|al
Auedwod 8]1ymisia woly
pabiawap Bulag |1y

L0210y 351

oN

pajlwn
Jamog wepy

8.8

pue" pjoyasea

51355y @5M-40-1ubiy

Lp'se

(pIoy @314) pue)

juawdinb3 pue ueld ‘Ayjadold

Auedwoa
2Y3 J0 aweu 3yl ut pjay
fujaq Jou Joj uoseay

231ep YaIym aouls
pioy Avadoid

J01234p/s930w0d
3o aakojdwa Jo J03031p/Iarowoid
40 3ARIR|3J Jo J0IDAJ)P ‘Jaj0WoId
B 5§ JOpIOY Paap 33N J3YIAUM

J0 aweu ay3 ut
Pi3Yy spaap 3L

(sa1010 ui 2)
anjea
ButAuies sso0u9

Ayadoid
jJo vondusaq

133ysaoue|eg Ul Wal| U JUeA3|AY

(524019 Ul 2) :MO|24 UBAIE 318 Auedwo?) Jo aweu ay3 Uy JoU aJe Spasp a1l Ydlum 1oy $3111ad0Jd ajgeacww jo spie3aqd (Il
b 210U J2JaY 'S1a55€ PIESIIOSR UO pAIeaId abieyd io4 (I
1Sa0N
(s12 00'0 2 Se PaIoUap NO'000'0S 2 Mojag sainbig)
s8's8v'Z [ BO'O 00'¢ £€5°¢ 8v'0 8S'L9€'2 v8°'9S €09 202 'UdJeW I5L€ J@ se aneA buiAised 1aN
1G'62L'2 60°0 052 06’2 058’0 LL'€09'C £5'8% 88L& €202 'ydJeWw 151 Je se anjea Buidised JaN
[1: Ko ¢4 s0'0 oLt 85’0 980 BL'8L2'e 8L've - Y202 'YyaJew 15Lg e 5e aduejeq
(#0'0) (to'0) - (€0°0) - - - - 539558 40 |2S0d5IP UO paTeuIWI(]
0g’L9e 100 vs0 £e'0 2070 JA WATA 8l2 - 1234 33 Joj uontepasdag
65 vv02 SO0 gt BL'D &v'0 15°'020'2 oo'ze - £202 'Yyoiew I5ig Je se aduejeg
(£z0) (00°0) (90°0) (1z'0) - - - - 512558 40 [250dS1p UO paieuIwy3
8’092 100 [§0] 6L0 L00 £0L52 L2 - Jeak 3y Joj uoneldasdaq
sE'YELL $0°0 L8°0 ov'0o Zv'0 8v'e9L’L £2°61 - 2202 '1udy 15| 1e se asuejeg
uol18193Jd3Q PAIRINWNIY ‘)|
oL'L6L'Y £'o [e VAR 4 'y v0'L 9L°6£9'Y 29'L8 ¥£'09 202 'ydseyy I5LE Je se adsue|eg
{80°0) (l0'0) - (oo - - Jeak ayy Buunp sjesodsig
89'le - vOo’L 06°0 S0'0 PL'9L 60°L 9y2 Jeak ayl bupnp suonippy
oLou'y | vL0 99'¢c 8zt 660 29'€29'y €508 88'LS £20Z 'Y2JeW I51L€ e se aduejeg
(bv°0) (00'0) (90°0) (sg0) - - Jea A sy Buunp siesodsig
2z'8L - 2L £5°L 80'0 8Z'sL Lo Jea ayy Buunp suoppy
2eesl'y vL0 0s¢ gLe 6’0 v£°809'v 2v'o8 88°LS Z20oz '1idy 151 Je se adueleq
anjen 6ujAnes ssoJg |
awdinb juawdinb $3JNIxX uvawdinb
SAIAYAA ..uu:anuw 391330 m pue u..B_W_:u ’ 2 auveid m Suipiing (proy 33.4) pue
fern] $33s5Yy Jo uonduasag
53955y ajqibue]
(saJ04p W1 )

juawdinb3 pue jueid 'Al1adaid 's

$Z0Z 'ydJew 151§ papua Jeak a1yl Joj SJuailialels |[eldueuly 03 520N

a3.LWIT (VIONI) NOISSIWSNVYL INVOY

189



ADAN] TRANSMISSION (tNDIA) LIMITED
Nates to financial statemants for the year ended 31st March, 2024

5A Capital work-in-progress:

® in Crores)
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Qpaning Balance 23.02 5.54
Expenditure incurred during the year 25,87 36.05
Less : Capitalised during the year (21.00) (18.57)
Closing Balance 27.89 23.02
{a) Capital-wark-in progress ageing schedule:
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Tatal
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years
As at 31st March, 2024
- Projects (0 progress 19.40 8n Q.37 0.2 27.89
- Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 19.40 81 0.17 0.21 27.89
As at 31st March, 2023
- Projects in progress 22.61 0.7 0.07 0.17 23.02
- Projects temporarily suspended - - - hd ”.
Total 22.61 0.17 0.07 0.17 23.02

Note : There are no project whase completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its ariginal plan during the financial year.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

58 : Right-of-Use Assets

 in Crores)

Right-of-Use Assets

Particulars Leasehald Land Total
Gross carrying value
Balance as at 1st April, 2022
On Transition to Ind AS 116 8.78 8.78
Additions during the year - -
Disposals during the year - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 8.78 B.78
Additions during the year - -
Disposals during the year . -
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 8.78 8.78
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1st April, 2022 179 1.79
Depreciation Charge during the year 0.59 0.59
Eliminated on disposal of asset during the year - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 2.38 2.38
Depreciation Charge during the year 0.60 0.60
Eliminated on disposal of asset during the year - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 2.98 2,98
Net Carrying Value as at 31st March, 2023 6.40 6.40
Net Carrying Value as at 31st March, 2024 580 5.80
5C . Intangible Assets ® in Crores)

Particulars Intangible Assets

Computer Software Tatal

Grass carrying value
Balance as at 1st April, 2022 2.37 2.37
Additions during the year 0.52 0.52
Disposals during the year - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 2.89 2.89
Additions during the year 1.79 1.79
Disposals during the year - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 4,68 4.68
Accumulated Amortisation
Balance as at 1st April, 2022 0.89 0.89
Amortisation Charge during the year 0.47 0.47
Etiminated on disposal of asset during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 1.36 1.36
Amortisation Charge during the year 0.61 .61
Eliminated on disposal of asset during the year - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 1,97 1.97
Net Carrying Value as at 31st March, 2023 1.53 1.53
Net Carrying Value as at 31st March, 2024 2.7 2.7

Notes:
i) For charge created on aforesaid assets, Refer note 44

50 : Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Depreciation / Amortisation

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

(X in Crores) (X in Crores)
Depreciation on Tangible Assets 261,30 260.48
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 0.61 0.47
Depreciation of Right of Use Assets 0.60 0.59
Tatal 262.51 261.54
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ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

[

n

Non:-Current investments - At Amartised cost

investment in Gavernment Securities (Quoted) at amortised ¢ost
Cantingency Reserve Investments (Quoted)

Aggregate book value of quated investments
Aggregate market value of queted investments

Non Current Financial Assets - Loans - At Amortised Cost
(Unsecured, Considared Goad)

Loan to related party

Note : Non Current Loans to relatad party raceivable as per terms of agrreement within period of five years which carry an interest rate 6,92% p.a.

Nan Current Financlal Assets - Others

Unbilled Revenue

Far charge created on aforesaid assets, Refer note 44.

Income Tax Assets (Net)

Advance income tax (net of provision}

Other Nan-current Assets
a) Capitel Advaences

- Considered Good
b) Deferred Asset recoverable / adjustable (Refer note 23(i))

Inventories
{Valued at lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value)

Stores B spares

As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
@®in Crares) R in Crores)
13.92 13.98
Tatal 13,92 13.98
13.92 13.98
13,77 13.53
As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
@® In Crores) ® in Crares)
762.30 286.64
Total 762,30 286.64
As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
R in Crores) R in Crores)
21.46 32.62
Tatal 21,46 32,62
As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
@ in Crores) ® in Crores)
1537 15.29
Tora! 1517 15.29
As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
R in Crores) R in Crores)
11.43 377
441.97 446.09
Total = a+b 453.40 449.86
As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
@® in Crores) R in Crores)
36.36 36.20
Total 36.36 36.20

192



ADAN! TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

12

13

131

Investments

Investment in Government Securities {(Quoted) at amortised cost
Contingency Reserve Investments {Quoted)

Aggragate baok vatue of un-quoted investments
Aggregate market value of un-quated Investments

Trade Receivables
{Unsecured, otherwise stated)

Unsecured, Considered Good
Credit impaired
Less: Expected Credit Loss

Note:

Tatal

Totat

As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
{ in Crores) @in Crares)
178 0.10
1,78 0.10
178 0.10
178 010
As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
@ in Croras) R in Crores)
376.61 347.40
376.61 347.40
376.61 347.40
el

In case of transmission business, regulator approved tariff is receivabie from lang-term transmission customers (LTTCs) and Discoms that are highly rated campanies or government
parties, Counterparty cradit risk with respect to these receivables is very minimal.

Trade Receivables ageing Schedule

Outstanding for following periods from due date of receipt Total
Particutars Lessthan 6 6 months -1
- 2-3 years More than 3 years
Not Due months year 1-2 years Y y
As at 31st March, 2024
0] t:lndisputed Trade receivables - 12,43 264.05 0.07 0.03 0.01 Q.02 376.61
considered good
(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables - M
which have significant increase in - - - - - -
credit risk
(iti) Undisputed Trade Receivables - : B : N . -
credit impaired
{iv] Disputed Trade Raceivables . ; B - . -
considered good
{v) Disputed Trade Receivablas - which : R ; B . .
have significant increase in credit risk
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit 3 . : . . . -
impaired
Tatal 112.43 264.05 0.07 0.03 0.01 0.02 376.51
As ak 31st March, 2023
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -
considerad good 111.83 235.16 0.23 0.16 - 0.02 347.40
(i) Undisputed Trade Raceivables - - - - - - - -
which have significant increase in
credit risk
(iii) Undisputad Trade Receivables - - - - - - - -
credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Reaceivables - . - - - - -
considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which - - - - - - -
have significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit - - - - - - .
impaired
Tota) 111.83 235.16 0.23 0.16 - 0.02 347.40
As at As at
Gash and Cash Equivalents 31st March, 2024 315t March, 2023
& in Crores)  in Crores)
Balances with banks
In current accounts 152 715
Totat 1.52 7.15
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

15

16

17

Current Financial Assets - Loans {At Amortised Cost)

Loans to Emplayees

Current Financial Assets - Other

Interest Receivable
Unbliled Revenue
Security deposits

For charge created an afaresaid assets, Refer note 44,

Other Current Assets

Advance to Suppliers

Balances with Government Authorities
Prepald Expenses

Advances to Employees

As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
@ in Crores) ®in Crares)
0.12 0.08
Tatat Q.12 0.08
As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
® in Crores) {in Crures)
036 0.30
28.30 48.43
0.89 1.08
Total 29.55 49.81
As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
@® In Crores) ® in Crores)
078 139
4.61 3.68
3.98 110
0.02 0.1
Tatal 1539 6.18
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As at As at
18 Share Capltal 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
@® in Crares) (@ in Crores)
Authorised Share Capital
12,00,00,000 (As at 315t March 2023 - 12,00,00,000) equity shares of ¥ 10 each. 120.00 120.00
142,50,00,000 (As at 31st March 2023 - 142,50,00,000) preference shares of 10 aach. 1.425.00 1.425.00
Total 1.545.00 1,545,00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital '
11,00,50,000 (As at 31st March 2023 - 11,00,50,000) equity shares of T 10 each fully paid up 110.05 110.05
Totat 110.05 110.05
Issued Bonus shares during the year
instrument: entirely In the nature of equity
120,00,00.000 (As at 315t March 2023 - Nil) Optionally Canvertible Redeemabie Preference Shares of 10 1,200.00 -
each.
Total 1,200.00 -
=
a. Reconciliation of the shares gutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Equity Shares No. Shares Yin Crores No. Shares Yin Crores
At the beginning of the Year 11,00,50,000 110.05 11,00,50,000 110,05
Issued during the year . . . .
Outstanding st the end of the year 11,00,50,000 110.05 11,00,50,000 110.05
b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Y10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share, The dividend if proposed by the
Board of Directors is subject to approval of the share holders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. in the event of liquidation of the Company the holders af the equity shares
will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution af all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held
by the share holders,
¢. Terms/rights attached to Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS)
The Company has issued and alloted 120,00,00,000 - Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS) of Rs. 10/- each, aggregating Rs, 1200 Crore (Rupees
Twelve Hundred Crore only), as ‘Bonus Shares’ out of free reserves ta the existing Shareholders of the Company, i.e. Adani Transmission Step One Limited {ATSOL). After the end af
6th year from allotment, the issuer of OCRPS will have rights to either call for redemption in full or canversion of OCRPS inta Equity in fixed ratio, i.e. 1: 1. OCRPS holders shall have
the voting rights as per the provisions of section 47(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.
d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each fuily paid No. Shares % holding In the Na. Shares % hotding in the
class ciass
Adani Transmission Step-One Limited and its naminees 11,00,50.000 100% 11,00,50.000 100%
11,00,50,000 100% 11,00,50.000 100%
e, Details of Shareholding of Promoters
No, of % Change during the
Partleulars shares % of total shares year
As at 315t March, 2024
Adani Transmissian Step-One Limited and its nominees 11,00,50,000 100% -
11,00,50,000 100% -~
As at 31st March, 2023
Adani Transmissicn Step-One Limited and its nominees 11,00,50,000 100% 100%
11,00,50,000 100% 100%
19  Instrument entirely in the nature of equity As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
@® in Crares) ® in Crores)
120,00,00,000 {As at 31st March 2023 - Nil) Opticnally Convertible Redeemable bonus Preferance Shares of 10 each*, 1,200,00 -
*Refer note 18(c). _1.200.00 -
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20

21

22

Qther Equlty

a. Capital Redemption Resarve {Refer note (i) below)
Opening Balance
Closing Balance

b. Retained Earnings (Refer note (ii) below)
Opening Balance
Add : Profit far the year

Add/(Less): Other Comprehensive Income arising from remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans

Less: Transfer to Contingency Resaerve

Total {(a)

Add: Transfer from Retained Earning on issue aof Optionally Convertible Redeemabie Preference Shares {OCRP)

Closing Balance

¢, Contingency Reserve (Refer note (iii) below)
Opening Balance

Add: Transfer from Retained Earning

Closing Balance

Notes:

Tatal {b)

Total (c)

Tatal (a+b+c)

As at
31st March, 2024
R in Craras)

As at
31st March, 2023
@ in Crores)

1,425,00 1,425.00
1,425.00 1,325.00
1,273.85 958.01
300.43 317.64
(0.08) (0.02)
(1.79) (1.78)
{1,200,00) .
372.41 1,273.85
15,16 13.38
1.79 178
16.95 15.16
1,814.36 2,714.01

i) Capital Redemption Reserve was created due to transfer an redemption of optionally convertible redeemable preference shares from retained earnings.

ii) Retained earnings are the profits/(loss) that the company has earnad/incurred till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends ar other distributions paid to sharaholders.
Retained earnings include re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

ili) As per the provisions of MERC MYT Regulations read with Taritf orders passed by MERC, the Company being a Transmission Llcensee, makes an appropriation to the
Contingency Reserve fund to meat with certain exigencies. Investments in Gavernment Securities have been made against such reserve. In preceeding year, Investments in Mutual

Funds have been made against such reserve,

Barrowings Non-Current Current
As at As at As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
R in Crores) (R in Crores) ® in Crores) { in Crares)
Unsecured
From Related Party (Refer note 48) 487.99 417.23 - -
467.99 417.23 - .
Total 457.99 417.23 - .
Note: 1
Borrowings Security Terms of Repayment
Inter-carporate loan of ¥ 467.89 Crore (s at 31st March 2023 :-
¥417.32 Crore) from related party is unsecured and carries interest at
Inter Corporate Loan from refated Party Unsacured the rate of 13.25% p.a. repayable on 2nd May, 2027 as per ICO
addendum an 20 th March 2024,
Provisions Non-Curcent Current
As at As at As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2024 315t March, 2023
R in Crares) (® in Crares) ® in Crores) ®in Crores)
Net Empleyee Defined banefit liabilitles (Refer note 38 )
Provisian for Gratuity 1.68 0.87 0.09 0.13
Pravision for Compensated Absences 0.85 0.52 0.30 0.20
2.53 139 0.39 0.33
Provision for Stamp Outy - - 15.65 15,65
Total 2.53 1.39 16.04 15.98
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23

0]

(i)

24

. As at As at
T
Deferred Tax Liabillties 31st March, 2024 315t March, 2023
@ in Crores) & in Crores)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 441,97 446.09
Total 441.97 446.09

Deferred Tax Liabilitles

CERC / MERC tariff narms provide the recovery of income Tax fram the beneficiaries by way of grossing up the return on equity based on effective tax rate for the financial year
shall be based on the actual tax paid during the year on the transmission income. Accordingly, deferred tax liability provided during the period is fully recoverable from
beneficiaries and known as "Deferred Asset recoverable / adjustabie®. The same will be recovered when the related deferred tax liability forms 2 part of current tax.

As at
31st March, 2024
® in Crores)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2023
R in Crores)

Deferred Tax Liabilities

(451.56)

Difference Between Book Base and Tax Base of Property, Plant and Equipment (447.44)
Defarred Tax Liabilities (a) (447.44) {451.56)
Deferred Tax Asset
Provisions 5.47 5.47
Deferred Tax Asset (b) 5.47 5.47
Net Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) {a + b) (441.97) {446,09)
(2) Movement in Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) (Net) for the Financial Year 2023-24

@® in Crares)

Opening Balance as | Recognised in profit Recognised in OCI

Closing Balance 25 at

Particulars at ist April, 2023 and foss 31st March, 2024
Tax effect of itemns constituting deferred tax liabilities:

Difference between book base and tax base of property, plant and equipment {451.56) 4.1 - {447.44)
Total (451,56) 411 - (447.44)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax Assets:

Provisions 5.47 - - 5.47
Tetal 5.47 - - 5.47
Net Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liability) {446.09) 4,11 - {441.97)

(b) Movement in Deferred Tax Assets / {Liabilities) (Net) for the Financial Year 2022-23

(@ in Crores)

Opening Balance 3as | Recognised in profit Recagnised in OCI

Clasing Balance as at

Particulars at 1st April, 2022 and loss 31st March, 2023
Tax effect of items constituting defaerred tax liabilities:
Difference between book base and tax base of praperty, plant and equipment (447.49) {4.07) - (451.56)
Tatal (447.49) {4.07) - (451.56)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax Assets:
Provisions 5.47 - - 5.47
Total 5.47 - - 5.47
Net Daferred Tax Asset / (Liability) {442.02) (4.07} - (446.09)
Borrowings As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
® in Crores)  in Crores)
Secured Barrowings
Fram Bank
Cash Credit 2.38 98.95
Total 2.38 98.55
Note:
Borrawings Security Terms of Repayment
First charge on receivables and on Cash Credits from Banks carries an rate of
interest 9.05 %. As on 31st March 2024, it is

immovable and movable assets created
out of project an paripassu basis.

Cash Credit
2023 :-¥98.95 Cr)

having balance of ¥2.38 Crore-(as at 31st March

Note : The Company has submitted all requisite filing on quarterly basis and there is no mismatch between these quarterty submissions and books of accounts.
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25

26

a7

28

Trade Payables

Trade Payable
-Total outstanding dues of creditor micro enterprise and small enterprize
-Tatal outstanding dues af creditor ather than micro enterprise and small enterprise

As st
31st March, 2024
@ in Crores)

As at
31st March, 2023
{ in Croras)

0.73 1.03
64.47 62.47
Total 65.20 63.50

The Disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to Micro and Small Enterprises have been made in the standalone Financial Statements based on the information received and
available with the campany. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet date.

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
(X in Crores) R in Crores)
(a) the principal amount remaining unpaid to sny supplier at the end of each accounting year 0.73 1.03
(b} Interest due on principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year - -
(c) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Oevelopment Act, - -
2006 (27 of 2006). along with the amount of the payment made ta the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year
(d) the amount of interest due and payable far the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the - -
appointad day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small end Medium Enterprises
Davelopment Act, 2006;
{e) the amount af interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and - -
(f) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest - -
dues above are actually paid ta the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under sectian 23
af the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Note |; Trade Payables ageing schedule @® in Crores)
particulars Qut. ing for folt g periods from due date of payment Total
No due <1year 1-2years 2-3 years >3 years
As at 31st March, 2024
(a) MSME Q.13 0.60 - - - 0.73
(b) Others 12.25 38.54 12.31 112 Q.25 64.47
(c) Disputed duas - MSME - - - . - -
(d) Disputed dues - Others - - - . - .
Tatal 12.39 39.15 12,31 1.12 0.25 65.20
As at 31st March, 2023
(3a) MSME 0.03 1.00 - - - 1.03
{b) Others 16.27 35.59 10.54 Q.07 62.47
{c) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(d) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 16.30 36.59 10.54 0.07 - 63.50
. As at As at
Other Current Financial LiatHlities 315t March, 2024 31st March, 2023
@® in Crores) @®in Crores)
Refundable to customers on truing up 101.38 12,83
Payable on purchase of property, plant and egquipmant 3.42 B8.90
Other Payables 1.78 1.75
Total 106,58 123.48
As at As at
Income Tax Liabilitles (Net) 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
® in Crores) R in Crores}
Current Tax:
Current Tax Liabilities 2,96 -
Total 2.96 -
I As at As at
Other Current Llabilities 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
@® in Crores) @ In Crores)
Statutory liabilities 115 0.81
Advance from Customers 18.62 .83
Other Payables - 0.45
Total 19.77 11.09

(Figures below ¥ 50,000.00 denoted as T 0.00 Crs)
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22 Revenue from Operations

Income from Transmission Line
Sale of Services

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

® in Crores) ®in Crores)
716.84 784.06
0.85 0.64
Total 717.69 784.70

Details of Revenue from Contract with Customer
ont. alances:

(a) The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from the contracts with customers.

(T in Crores)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Receivables
Trade receivables (Refer note 13) 376.61 347.40
Unbilled Revenue for passage of time (Refer note B £ 16) 49.76 B1.05
Less : Advance from Customers (Refer note 28) 18.62 9.83
Net Receivables 407.75 418.62
Contract Assets - -
Contract liabilities
Refundable to customers on truing up (Refer nate 26) 101.38 112.83
Total Contract Liabilities 10138 112.83

Contract assets
Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract Assets are transferred

to receivables when the rights become unconditional.

Contract liabilites

A Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration {or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer, If the constomer pays contribution before the Company trasfers goods or services to
the customers, a contract liability is recoginised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilites
are recoganised as revenue when the perforance of obligation is satisfied.

(b) Reconciliation of the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:

(X in Crores)

Far the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Revenue as per contracted price 724.85 785.67
Adjustments :

Discounts on prompt payment (8.01) (1.61)
Revenue from contract with customers 716.84 784.06

For the year ended

For the year ended

30 Other Income 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
@® in Crores) in Crores)
Interest Income
- Contingency reserve investment 0.99 0.77
- Group companies 38.94 3.96
- Delayed Payment charges 17.90 5.23
- Others - 0.61
Other non-gperating Income
Uncialmed Liabilities / Excess provision written back 0.88 -
Service Income 0.06 0.03
Sale of Scrap 1.02 1.56
Insurance Ctaim received {net of loss on discard of asset of ¥ 5,50 Cr } 017
(PY:X4.77Cr) '
Line modification Service Charges 0.01 0.36
59,80 12.69
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32

33

34

Operating expenses

Repairs and Maintenance

- Plant & Equipment

- Building

- Others

Consumption of Stores and spares

Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries, Wages and Bonus
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

Finance costs

Interest Expense
-Long Term Loan
-Working Capital Loan
-Arrears to regulator
Bank Charges & Other Borrowing Costs

Other Expenses

Short Term Lease Rental

Rates and Taxes

Legal & Professional Expenses
Directors’ Sitting Fees

Payment to Auditors (Refer Note Below)
Communication Expenses

Travelling € Conveyance Expenses

Loss on sale of fixed Assets

Corporate Social Responsibility expenses (Refer note 41)
Electricity Expenses

insurance Expenses

Miscelianeous Expenses

Payment to auditors

As auditor:
Statutory Audit Fees (Including GST)

(Figures below ¥ 50,000.00 denoted as T 0.00 Crs)

Total

Total

Total

Total

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

® in Crores) ®in Crores)
37.63 36,52
0.05 0.04
- 0.08
9.94 5,37
47.62 42.01

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

R in Crores) ® in Crores)
9.35 6.45
0.76 0.52
0.27 0.51
10.38 7.48

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

® in Crores) ® in Crores)
54.99 48.46
8.70 7.19
- 17.72
0.10 0.09
63.79 73.46

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

R in Crores) R in Crores)
2.06 0.40
Q.02 0.02
7.87 9,74
0.00 0.00
0.13 0.16
0.25 0.29
2.16 2.13
0.04 0.18
7.20 7.15
3,57 4.25
3.51 2.53
2.37 115

29.18 28.00

For the year ended
31st March, 2024
® in Crores)

Far the year ended
31st March, 2023
% in Crores)

0.13

0.16

0.13

0.16
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35 Income Tax

Tax Expenses

Current Income Tax Charge (MAT)
Deferred Tax

Accounting Profit Before Tax
Income tax using the company’s domestic tax rate @ 34.944%
Tax Effect of :

i} Non deductible Expenses

i) WDV of depreciable assets
iii) MAT Credit not recognised
iv) BOIA Claim

v) Leases

vi) Others

Tax Expense

Tax provisions :

Current tax for the year (MAT)

Net Deferred Tax Liability recognised during the year

Income tax recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss at effective rate

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

& in Crores) X in Crares)

63.58 67.26
(4.1 4.07
Total 59.47 71.33
364.01 384.90
127.20 134.50
2.52 2.50

(4.89) -
63.58 67.25
(129.12) (136.99)

0,21

(0.03) 4.07
59.47 71.33
63.58 67.26
(4.11) 4.07
59.47 7133

The Gavernment of India inserted Section 115BAA in the Income Tax Act, 1961 which provides domestic companies a non-reversible option
to pay corporate tax at reduced rates effective from 01 April, 2019 subject to certain canditions. The Company has not adopted the said

scheme, as the company is availing the tax deduction u/s 80-1A of Income Ta

X Act, 1961,

Unrecognised deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits
Deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised are

attributable to the following:

Unrecognised unused tax credits As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
®in Crores) % in Crores)
Unused tax credits (MAT Credit not recognised) 691.85 642.47
691.85 642.47
The expiry of unrecognised unused tax credits is as detailed below:  in Crores)
As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Within one year - -
Greater than one year, less than five years - -
Greater than five years 691,85 642.47
No expiry date - -
Total 691.85 642.47

For the year ended

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

S

36 Earnings Per Share (EPS) 31st March, 2024
Prafit attributable to Equity Sharehalders ® in Crores) 300.43
Number ofWelghted Average Equity Shares, outstanding during the No. 11,00,50.000
year for Basic EPS
Nominal Value of Equity Shares e 10.00
Basic Earnings per Share T 27.30
Number of Weighted Average Equity Shares, outstanding during the
year for Diluted EPS (OCRPS into 1 equity share of ¥ 10 each) No. 1.31.00.50,000
Diluted Earnings per Share T 2,29

317.64
11.00,50,000

10.00
28.86

1,31,00,50,000
2.42

Note : Diluted EPS figures for the current year and previous year are adjusted (i.e. retraspective application) for potential equity shares on
account of optionally convertible preference shares issued by way of bonus shares issued during the current year.
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38

Canting iabitities and comml s

(i) Contingent tiavilities :

Ciaims against the Company not prababie and hence not acknowladged as dabts

(a) Related to Direct Tax and Indirect Tax

(i) Commitmeants :

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and nat pravided for (net of Advance)

As per Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits”, the disclosures are given below:
{a) Defined Benefit Plan

As at
313t March, 2024
(Zin Crores)

As at
31st March, 2023
(in Crores)

5.54

41.46

0.14

81.96

The Company operates 3 defined benefit plan (the Gratuity plan) cavering eligible employees, which provides a lump sum payment to vested empfoyees at cetirement, death, Incapacitation

or termination of emplayment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment.

The status of gratuity plan as required under fnd AS-19:

As 3t As at
Particutars 315t March, 2024 31st March, 2023
@® ln Crores) @® in Crores)
i. Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of defined benefit obligation
Prasent V3lue of Deflned Benefit Obligations at the beginning of the Year 1.00 1.37
Current Service Cost 0.19 0.13
Past Service Cost - -
interast Cost an 0.06
Re-measurement {or Actuarial) (gain) / lass arising fram:
- Changa in demagraphic assumptions 0.18 0.03
- Change in financials assumptions (0.10) (0.04)
- Experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs. assumptions) (0.00) 0.04
Liability Transfer In - Out {0.12) (0.46)
Benefits paid 0.50 (0.13)
Nat Actuarial loss / {gain) Recognised - -
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obiigatians at the end of the Year 178 100
ii. Raconclliation of Qpening and Closing Balancas of the Falr valua of Plan assats
Fair Value of Plan assets at the beginning of the Year -
Expected return an plan assets . -
Contributions -
Benefits paid - -
Actuarial gain/{oss) on plan assets -
Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of the Year - -
Iii, Reconciliatian of the Presant vatue of defined benefit obligation and Fair value of plan assets
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the end of the Year 176 1.00
Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of the Year - -
Net Asset / (Liability) recagnized in balance shest as at the end of the year (1.76) (1.00)
iv. Gratuity Cast For the Year
Current service cost 0.19 0.13
Past service cost - -
Interest cost on 0.06
Expected return on plan assets . -
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) - -
Net Gratuity cast recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss 0.30 0.18
v, Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial {gains) / losses
- change in demagraphic assumptions 0.18 0.03
- change in financial assumptions (0.10} (0.04)
- experience variance {i.e, Actual experiences assumptions) {0.00) 0.04
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense - -
Compaonents of defined benefit costs recognised in ather camprehensive Incame 0.08 0.02
vi. Actuarial Assumptions
Discount Rate (per annum) 7.20% 7.50%
Annualincrease in Salary Cost (per annum) 9.00% 10.00%
Attrition/Withdrawal Rate (per annum) 0.70% 7.69%
Mortality Rates as given under indian Assured Lives Martality Ultimate 2012-2014 100.00% 100.00%

vii. Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions canstant.

The results of sansitivity analysis Is givan belaw:

As at As at
Partlculars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
R in Croras) ®in Crores)
Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) 176 1.00
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As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Particulars X
@® in Crores) ®in Crores)
Decrease Increase Decrease increase

Discount Rate (- / + 1%) 2.04 1.54 1.09 0.92
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity 15.4% -12.8% 9.1% -7.9%
Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%) 1.55 2,04 0.92 1.09
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -12.7% 15.0% -7.8% 8.8%
Attrition Rate (- / + 50%) 1.78 1.76 1.07 0.96
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 0.8% -0.7% 6.8% -4.5%
Mortality Rate (- / + 10%) 177 177 1.00 1.00
(% change compared ta base due to sensitivity) 0.1% -0.1% 0.0% 0.0%

Please note that the sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur inisolation of ena anather as some of the assumptions may be correlated,

There is no change in the method of valuation for the priar period. For change in assumptions piease refer ta section above, where assumptions for prior period, if applicable. are
given,

viil. Asset Liabillty Matching Strategies
The scheme is managed on unfunded basis. The Scheme has been funded on a group basis and accordingly the fund baiance appears in the financial statements of the Parent.

ix. Effect of Plan an Entity's Future Cash Flows
a) Funding arrangements and Funding Palicy
The holding company has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity to the employees of the group.

b) Expected Cantribution during the next annuai reparting periad
The Company's best estimate of Contribution during the next year is Nil,

c) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
Weighted average duration (hased an discounted cash flows) - 15 years.

Expected cash flows aver the next {valued on undiscounted basis): (@ in Crores)
1year 0.09
2 to 5 years 0.22
6 to 10 years 0.48
More than 10 years 4.97

The discount rate is based on the pravailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.
The expected cantributions for Defined Benefit Plan for the next financial year will be in line with FY 2023-24
The actuarial liability for laave encashment and compensated absences (including Sick Leave) as at the year ended 31st March, 2024 is ¥ 1.16 Crares (31st March 20232 0.73 Crores.)

{b) Defined Contribution Plan

Contribution ta Defined Contribution Plans. recognised in Stacement of prafit and loss and Project Devetopment Expenditure, for the year is as under:
As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
(2in Crores ) (X in Croras)
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 0.46 0.32
Employer's Contribution to Superannuation Fund - 0.00

Central Electricity Regulatary Cammission (“CERC") vide it's order dated January 21, 2022, has partly disallowed certain expenses (interest and depreciation) in relatlan to truing up tariff
petitian for the control period 2015-19 and tariff derermination petition for the control period 2020-24 filed by Adani Transmissian (India) Limited ("ATIL"). The Management has, basis an
external legal opinian, assessed that it has reasonably good case on merits in the light of the prevailing Tariff Regulations, settled principles of law as per earlier judicial precedence and, is
in the process of preferring an appeal in Appellate Tribunal for Electricity against such CERC order. Having regard to the above, the disallowances aggregating to ¥ 112.07 Crore (P.Y. ¥
108.11 Crore) up to 31st March, 2024 are nat recagnized with in the financials Statements,

During the year 2022-23, Maharashtra Electricity Reguiatory Cammission { MERC) vide its order dated 31st March, 2023 has approved i) truing-up of the tariff for the period fram the
financial year 2019-20, 2020-21 & 2021-22, (i) for Pravisional truing up of financial year 2022-23 and (iii) Aggregate Revenue Requirement (ARR) for FY 2023-24 and FY 2024-25.
Accordingly, based on the MERC order, the company has recarded additional revenue of ¥ 15.76 Crares.

Financial instruments and Risk Overview

{a) Capital Managemant

The Company's abjectives when managing capital is to safeguard cantinuity and healthy capltal ratigs in order to support its business and pravide adequate return to shareholders through
continuing growth, The Campany's averall strategy remains unchanged from previous year,

The Company sets the amount of capital required an the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which include capital and other strategic invastments.

The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund generation, borrawings. The Company's palicy Is to use borrowings to meet anticipated funding requirements.

As at As at
Particulars Refer Nate 315t March, 2024 31st March, 2023
@® in Crores) @ in Crores)

Total Barrowings 21824 470.37 516.18
Less: Cash and Bank balance 14 152 715
Less : Current Investments 12 1.78 Q.10
Net Debt (A) 467.Q07 5Q8.93
Tatal Equity (8) 18,19 & 20 3,124.41 2,824.06
Tatal Equity and Net Debt C={A+8) 3.591.48 3,3532.99
Gearing Ratlo (A)/(C) 0.13 0.15

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or pracesses for managing capital during the years ended as at 31st March, 2024 and as at 31st March, 2023.




adani

Enargy Selutions

ADAN| TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

{b) Financial Risk Management Objectives
The Cempany's grincipal financial liabilitles camprise barrowings, trade and other payables, The main purpase of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s aperations/prajects
.The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivabies, and cash and cash aquivalents that derive directly from its operations.

In the ordinary caurse of business, the Company is exposed to Market risk, Credit risk, and Liquidity risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises two types of risk: intarest
rate risk and farelgn currency risk.

1) Interest rate rlsk
The company is exposed to changes in market interest rates due to financing, investing and cash managemant activities. The Company is funded by the Holding Campany. The Company is

rat exposed to any interest rate risk as borrawing availed by the Company is at fixed rate.

2) Foraign currancy risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or Future cash flows of an expasure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Campany's exposure tg the risk of
changes in fareign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities, The Company manages its foreign currency risk by hedging transactions that are expected to
realise in future. Accordingly, as at period end the Company does nat have any unhedged qutstanding foreign exposure and hence the Company is not exposed to any foreign currency risk
as at period end.

Tha datails of fareign currancy exposures not hedged by darivative [natruments are as undar :

As 3t 315t March, 2024 | As at 315t March, 2023

Nature
FCY in Millions | T in Crores EUR in Millions | T in Crores
Trade Paybles EUR . - 0.00] 0.03
Faraign Currency Risk Sansitivity
A change of 1% in Foraign currency would have fsllowing Impact on profit befora tax
{ In Craras)
Particulars For the Year 2023-24 For thg Year 2022-23
1% Incroase 1% Dacrease 1% Incraase 1% Dacreazs

Risk Sensitivity
Rupee / EUR - {Increase) / Decraasa (0.00) 0.00

(Figures below ¥ 50,000.00 denoted as ¥ 0.00 Crs}

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default an its contractual abligations resulting in a loss to the company. The Company has adepted the policy af only dealing with

creditwarthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial losses from default, and generally does not obtain any collateral or other security an trade receivables.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements represents the Company's maximum exposure ta credit risk.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financlial statements represents the companies maximum exposure to credit risk. Since the comganies is an ISTS licensees, the
responsibility for billing and callection on behalf of the Group lies with the CTU. Based on the fact that the collection by CTU is fram Designated ISTS Customers (DICs) which in majarity of
the cases are state government organisations and furcther based on an analysis of the past trends of recovery, the management is of the view that the entire receivables are Fully
recoverable. Accordingly, the Group does not recognize any impairment {oss on its receivables,

Liquidity risk

The Campany monitors its risk of shortage of funds using cash flow forecasting models, These models consider the maturity of its financial investments, commltted funding and projected
cash flows from operations. The Company's objective is to pravide financial resources to meet its business objectives in a timely. cost effective and reliable manner and to manage its
capital structure. A balance between continuity of funding and flexibility is maintained through the use of various types of borrowings.

The table betow analysis derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity graupings based on the remalning period from the reporting date to the
contractual maturity date, The amounts disclesed in the table are the contractual undlscounted cash flows.

{®in Croras)
As at 31st March, 2024 Less than 1 year 1-5 years Mora than 5 years Total
Barrowings™# 64.39 597.27 - 651,66
Trade Payatles 65.20 - - 65.20
Other Financial Liabilities** 106.589 - - 106.58

{T In Crores)
Ag at 315t March, 2023 Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Tatal
Borrowings™# 154.38 477.21 - 631,59
Trade Payables 63.50 - . 63,50
Other Financlal Liabilities** 123.48 - - 123.48

* Includes Non-current barrowings. current barrowings, committed interest payments on borrowings.

**Includes current financial liabilities..

# The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities af the financial liabilities including interest that will be pald on those liabilities upto the maturity of the
instruments, ignoring the call and refinancing options available with the Group. The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-derivative liabilities is
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to thase astimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.
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41 Corporate Social responsibility:  In Craras)

Particulars For the year ended Far the year ended

31st March, 2024 I1st March, 2023
(i) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 718 714
(il) Amount of expenditure incurred 720 7.5
(iii} Shortfall at the end of the year - -
(iv) Total of previaus years (shortfall) f Excess spent - -
(v) Reason for shortfalt NA NA
(vi) Nature of CSR activities As per Note ; 1 As per Note: 1
(vii) Oetails of related party transactions, e.g. contribution ta a trust contralled by the company in relation to CSR a5
expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard ' :
(viii} where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the NA NA
movements in the provision during the year shali be shown separately

! Represents contribution to Adani Foundation a controlled teust, to be utitised for Education, Sustainabie Livelihood, Environment Sustainability, Community Heaith, Support ta Poor. (PY ;
Primary Education, Community Health, Sustainable Livelihood Development and Rural Infrastructure Oevelopment)
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42 The carrying value of financial instruments by categorics as an 31st March, 2024

43

® in Crores)
Fair Value through Fair Value
Particulars Other Camprehensive | through Profit or Amortised Cost Total ::a;rylr:(g Value Fair Value
Income Loss n Saoks

Financiol Assets
Investments in Government Securities - - 15.70 15.70 15.55
Trade Receivables - - 376.61 376.61 376.61
Cash and Cash Equivatents - - 1.52 1,52 1.52
Loans - - 762.42 762.42 762.42
Qther Financial Assets - - 51.01 51.07 51,01
Total - - 1,207.26 1,207.26 1,207.11
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - - 47037 47037 470.37
Trade Payables - - &5.20 65.20 65.20
Other Financial Liabilities - - 106.58 106.58 106.58
Total - - 6§42.15 642.15 64215
The carrying value of financial instruments by categorles as an 31st March, 2023

® in Crores)

Fair Value thraugh Fair Value
Particulars Other comprchcn:ivc through Profit or Amortised Cost Tatat Ic.a;ryi:g Value Fair Value
Income Loss n Baoks

Financlal Assets
Investments in Government Securities - - 14.08 14.08 13.63
Trade Receivables - - 347.40 347.40 347.40
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 715 715 7.15
Loans - - .08 0.c8 0.08
Other Financial Assets - - 82.43 82.43 82.43
Total - - 451,14 451,14 450.69
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings {Inciuding current maturities) - - 516.18 516,18 516.18
Trade Payables - - 63.50 &3.50 63.5Q
Qther Financial Liabilitles - - 123.48 123.48 123.48
Total - - 703.16 703.16 703.16

(i) The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other balance with banks, trade receivables, loans, trade payables, other financial

assets and liability approximate their carrying amount largeiy due to the shart term maturities of these instruments.

(i) The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the ameunt at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair vaiues.
{iii) Fair value of mutual funds and Government Securities are based on the price quotations of the reporting date.

Fair Value hierarchy

® in Crores)

Particulars As at As at As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2023
Level 1 Leve! 2 Level 1 Level 2
Assats
Investment in Government Securities 15.55 - 13.63 -

- Fair value of Loans is equivalent to amortised cost.
- Fair value of Investment in Gavernment securities are based on the price guotations of the reporting date.

——,

C’\,\AHD
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44

45

46
0}

@ii)

Asscts Pledged as Sccurity

The Company has pledged all the assets (movable and immovable) including its current assets as security for secured borrowings availed by the Intermediate
holding company {(Adani Transmission Step-One Limited } aggregating 4%, 500 million USD Bands ¥ 4,170.25 Crores (PY - 500 million USD Bonds ¥ 4,108.50
Crores), 4.25 %, 392.50 million USD 8ond ¥ 3,273.65 Crores (PY - 422.50 miilion USD Bond ¥ 3,471.68 Crores). Apart fram this, the (ntermediate Hoiding
Company has also pledged the entire share capital of the Company, held by it, as a security for such borrowings availed,

(i) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either fram borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other persan(s) or entity(ies), inciuding foreign entities (*Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shail, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behaif of the Funding Party ("Uitimate Beneficiaries*) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Other Disclosure :

During the year ended March 31, 2023, a short seller report (*"SSR”) was published alleging certain issues against Adani group entities, Adani Energy Solutions
Limited {(AESL) {formerly known as Adani Transmisslon Limited ("ATL")) and its subsidiaries. On 3rd January 2024, the SC disposed off all matters of appeal in
varioys petitions in relating to the allegation in SSR and stated that the SEBI should complete the investigation on batance two pending matters preferably
within 3 months and take investigations to their logical canclusion in accordance with law,

Pending final conclusion of the SEB! investigations and adjudication, the Company continues to hold good its position as regards the comgpliance of applicable
laws and regulations.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
inserted by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall
use only such accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the
books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannaot be disabled.

The Company uses an accounting software for maintaining its boaks of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recarded in the accounting software. However, the audit trail feature is not enabled at database level
far accounting software SAP S/4 HANA to log any direct data changes for users with certain privileged access rights. Further there is no instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with in respect of the accounting software where such feature Is enabled.

Presently, the log is enabied at the application level and the privileged access to HANA database continues to be restricted to limited set of users who
necessarily require this access for maintenance and administration of the database.
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47 Ratio Analysis
Remark - Any change in
. . As at As at % change in the ratio by > 25% as
na | Rat
Financlal Ratios Particutars Numeratar / Denominator taken 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023 Ratio compared to the preceding
year.
Ratio (In times) 217 1.43 Increased due to
Current Ratio Numerator Current Assets 46133 446.92 51.74%|repayment of short term
Denaminator |Current Liabilities 212.93 313.00 foans during the year.
Ratio {In times) 0.15 0.18
Total Borrowings
Debt- Equity Ratio Numerator {Including Current Maturities of Long 470.37 516.18 -17.64%|NA
term barrowing)
Denominator |Tatal Equity 312447 2824.06
Ratio (In times) 10,15 5.94
Numeratar Profit befare Tax + ODepreciation + 690.31 719.89 Increased due to lower
Finance Cost i ) inci
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 70.94% Long term Lean Frmcnple
Fi Cost + Prinicical P ts repayments during the
Denominator |, '2nee Los rimicipal Payments 68.00 121.22 year.
(Long Term)
Ratlo {In %) 10.10% 11,92%
Return on Equity Ratto Numerator Profit for the year after tax befare OC! 300.43 317.64 -15.24%|NA
Denominatar .Average Tatal Equity 2,974.23 2,665.25
Ratio {lo times) - R
. Numerator Revenue from Traded Goods NA NA
Inventory Turnover Ratia - - Q.00%|NA
Denaminator Averag.e Tradeld inventaries excluding NA NA
stores inventaries
Ratia (In times) 168 2.55
Numerator Total Revenue from Contract with 717.69 784.70 Decrease primarily due to
Trade Receivables turnover ratio Customers -34.92%(increase in average trade
wvabl ¥ . receivables,
Denominator Avaltage Trade receivables (including 427.41 307.89
Unbilled revenue)
Ratio (In times, 1.35 177
. Operating Expesnes, Employment
A 77.5 .
Trade payavles turnover ratio Numarator Benefit Expense and other expenses 8719 o] 23.53% |NA
Denaminator |Average Trade payables 64,35 43.74
Ratio {In times) 2.97 7.50 On  accout of lower
revenue, which ls as per
R ith tariff charges approved
Neat capital turnover ratio Numerator Zotal evenue from Contract wit 717.69 784.70 -60.44%|under the respective tariff
ustomers orders, being regulated
Average Working Capital (Current Assets entity under Section 62 of
Denominator |- Current Liabilities {Excluding Current 241.83 104.59 Electricity Act, 2003
Barrawing})
Ratio {In %) 368.64% 39.83%
. Numerator Proflt after Taxes 300.43 317.64
Net profit ratio -3.00%[NA
Deneminator |Total Income 777,43 797.39
Ratio (In %) 12.00% 13.73%
Numerator Profit befare tax and interest expense 427.80 458.36
Return on Capital employed -12.62%[NA
Capital Employed
Denominator [(Capital Employed = Tangibie Net Worth 3,566.05 3338.71
+ Total Debt - Intangible Aset}
Ratio (In %) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Return on Investment Numerator Income Fram Investment NA NA NA
Denominatar |Cost of investment NA NA
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48 Related party disclosures :

As per the Ind AS 24, disclosure of transactions with related parties are given below:

Name of related parties & description of retationship

> Uitimate Controlling Entity

S, B. Adanl Family Trust (SBAFT)

> Holding Company

Adanl Energy Solutions Limlted { Formerly known as “Adani Transmission Limited®)

> Intermadiate Holding Company

Adani Trar 1 Step-One Limited

> Fellow Subsidiary Companies (with

the year}

whom transaction have taken place during

Western Transco Power Limited
Chhattlsgarh-WR Transmission Lim(ted
Adan! Transmissian (Rajasthan) Limited
Mary Transmisslon Service Company Limited
Thar Power Transmisslon Service Limlted
Lakadia Banaskantha Transco Limited

Jam Khamballya Transco Limited
Fatengarh-Bhadia Transmission Limited
North Karanpura Transco Limited

Warora Kurnoal Transmission Limited
Western Transmission (Gujarat) Limited
Sipat Transmission Limited

Maharashtra Eastern Grid Power Transmisslon Company Limited.

> Key Managarial Personnel

Krutarth Thakkar, Company Secretary

Kandarp Patel, Director

Mr. Chaitanya Sahoo, Director

Rohit Soni, Whole-time Director

Blrva Patel, iIndependant Director

Katalkuruchi Jairaj, Independent Director (Resigned w.e.f. 01.01.2024)

Or. Ravindra Dholakia, Independent Dirgctor (Appainted w.e.f. 01.01.2024)

Mr. Kinjal Sejpal, Chlef Financial Offlcer (Appointed w.e.f. 27.09.2022 and Resigned w.e.f. 21.03.2023)
M. Nitin Patel, Chief Financial Officer (Appainted w.e.f, 29,05.2023)

> Entities under cantral / significant
influance of Ultimate Controlling Entity
{with whom transaction have taken place
during the year)

Adani Infrastructure Management Servica Limited

Adant Parts And Special Economic Zone Ltd

Adani Digital Labs Pyt Ltd

Adani Wind Energy Kutchh One Limited (Formerly knawn as Adani Green Enargy (MP) Limited)
Adani Power (Mundra) Limited (Amalgamated with Adani Power Limited)

Adani Power Limited

Adant Foundation

Adani Enterprises Limited

Adani Wind Enargy Kutchh One Limited (Formerly known as Adani Green Energy {MP) Limited)
Adani Green Enargy Limited

Mundra Salar PV Limited

Adani Vizhinjam Port Pvt Ltd

{A) Transactions with Related Parties

(¥ in Craras)

Nature of Transaction Nama of Related Party 315t M:::r: 2024 T8t M::::, 2023

Loan Given Adanl Energy Soiutions Limited { Formally known as “Adani 805.53 322.00
Loan Given received back Transmission Limited?) 346.31 37.42
Loan Taken - 51.47
Laan Taken pald back - 224.87
Rendering of Secvices 112 1.01
Interest Expense - 24.06
interest income 38.94 3.96
Gratuity Q.10 0.13
Loan Taken Adani Transmission Step-One Lim(ted - 100.50
Loan Taken pald back 4.21 86.64
Interest Expense 54.99 26.11
Q& M Charges Adani Infrastructure Management Service Ltd 27.34 EIRR
Purchase of inventary Adani Ports And Special Economic Zone Ltd - 0.05
Purchase aof Inventory Adanf Infrastructure Management Seqvice Ltd - 2.76
Purchase of Inventory Adanl Oigital Labs Private Limited - 0.03
Receiving of Services Adani Ports And Speclal Economic Zone Ltd 1.38 0.05
Receiving of Services Adani Power {Mundra) Limited (Amalgamated with Adanl Power B 0.21

Limlted)
Recelving of Services Adani Power Limited Q.21 -
Receiving of Services Chhattisgarh-WR Transmission Limited - 0.00
Receiving of Services Adani Transmission {Rajasthan) Limited B 0.00
Recelving of Services mary Transmission Service Campany Limited Q.00 0.00
Raceiving of Services Thar Power Transmission Service Limited - 0.00
CSR Expense Adan| Foundation 4.35 4.15
Rendering of Services Lakadia Banaskantha Transco Limited 0.00 0.00
Rendering of Servicas Jam Khambaliya Transco Limited - 0.00
Rendering of Services Maru Transmisslon Service Campany Limited - 0.01
Rendering of Services Fatehgarh-Bhadla Transmission Limited - 0,01
Rendering of Services Sipat Transmission Limited 0.00 R
. Adani Wind Energy Kutchh One Limited (Formerly known as Adani

Rendering of Services Green Energy (MP) Limited) 0.00 -
Professional 8 Consultancy Fees Adani Enterprises Limited 4.27 4.60
Employee Balance Transferred Adani Green Energy Limited - 0.04
|Employee Balance Transferred Maharashtra Eastern Grid Power Transmission Company Limited 0,81 0.07
Employee Balance Transferred Gt;:;:le:)ower (Mundra) Limited (Amalgamated with Adani Power i 0.09
Empioyee Balance Transferred Mundra Sotar PV Limited - 0.85
Employee Batance Transferred Adanl Vizhinjam Port Private Limlted - 0.04
Employee Balance Transferred Adan! Infrastructure Management Services Limited 0.01 -
Employee Balance Transferred Lakadia Banaskantha Transco Limited 0.0 -
Employee Balance Transferred Jam Khambailya Transco Limited 0.09 -
Employee Balance Transferred Warora Kurnool Transmission Limited 0.01 -
Employee Balance Transferrad North Karanpura Transco Limited 0.04 -
Director Sitting Fees Diractor Sitting Fees 0.00

Remuneration to KMP Short Term Benefit 0.16

Remuneratlan to KMP Post Employmant Benelit 0.01

Note:

The Holding company has pledged shares of the company against its Borrowing (Refer Note 44).
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(B) Balances with Related Parties

{ in Crores)
As at As at
Naturae af Transaction Name of Related Party 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Loan Glven Closing Balance Adani Energy Siolt.Jticr_\s Limited ( Formally known as "Adanl 762.30 286.64
Transmisslon Limited?)
Accounts Recelvable - Closing Balance 0.44 -
Accounts Payable - Closing Batance 4,52 4.87
Loan taken Closing Batance Adanl Transmission Step-One Limited 467.99 417.23
Accounts Payable - Closing Balance Adani Enterprises Limited 8.73 5.89
Accounts Payable - Clasing Balance Adanl Ports And Special Economic 2one Ltd 1.22 Q.05
Accounts Payable - Closing Balance Adani Infrastructure Management Service Ltd 45,98 45,46
Accounts Payable - Closing Balance S’:?:;;;uwe( (Mundra) Limited (Amalgamated with Adani Power R 0.09
Accounts Payable - Clasing Balance Chhattisgarh-WR Transmission Limited Q.00 0.00
Accounts Payable - Closing Balance Maru Transmission Service Company Limited 0.00 0.00
Accounts Payable - Closing Balance Thar Powaer Transmission Service Limited - Q.00
Accounts Payable - Clasing Balance Western Transco Power Limited Q.79 0.79
Accounts Payable - Closing Balance Wastern Transmisslon (Gujarat) Limited - 0.58
Accounts Payabie - Closing Balance Adani Power Limited 0.11 -
Accounts Payable - Closing Balance Mundra Salar PV Limited 0.85 0.85
Accounts Payable - Closing Baiance Adani Digital Lags Private Limited - 0.01
Accounts Payable - Closing Balance Lakadla Banaskantha Transco Limlted 0.08 -
Accounts Payable - Closing Balance Warara Kurnoo! Transmlission Limited 0.01 R
Accounts Receivable - Closing Balance Lakadla Banaskantha Transco Limitad 0.01 0.00
Accounts Receivable - Closing Balance Jam Khambaliya Transco Limited 0.09 0.00
Accounts Receivable - Closing Balance Sipat Transmission Limited 0.00 -
Accounts Receivabie - Closing Balance North Karanpura Transcao Limited 0.04 -
Accounts Receivable - Closing Bafance ;_ZZI: g}g;:rz:nrg)yg::iszg)one Limited (Formerly known as Adani 0.00 -
Accounts Receivable - Closing Balance ADANI GREEN ENERGY LIMITED - 0.04
Accounts Receivable - Closing Balance Maharashtra Eastern Grid Power Transmission Company Limited 0,85 0.4
Accaounts Receivable - Clasing Balance Maru Transmission Service Company Limited 0.02 0.02
Accounts Receivable - Closing Balance Fatahgarh-Bhadla Transmission Limited 0.01 Q.01
Accounts Recelvable - Closing Balance Adanl Vizhinjam Port Private Limited 0.03 0.03

{Transactions below ¥ 50,000.00 denoted as ¥ 0.00 Crs)

Note:

Tarms and eonditions of transactions with related parties ;
The sales to and purchases from related partles are made on terms equivalent to those that prevall in arm's length transactions, Qutstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and
Interest free and settlement accurs in cash, There have been no guarantees provided or recejved for any ralated party recelvables or payables, For the year ended 31 March 2024, the
Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties {31 March 2023: INR Nil), This assessment Is undertaken each financlal year

through examining the flnancial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

The chief operating decision maker evaluates the Company's performance and applies the resources to whole of the Company business viz. “Transmission Income® as an Integrated
utility. Hence the Company does not have any reportable segment as per ind AS- 108 "Operating Segments™.

There Is no transaction with struck off companies during the year,
The Company evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the approval of flnancial statements to determine the necessity for
recognition and/or reporting of any of these events and transactions In the financial statements. As of 29 April, 2024, there are no subsequent events to be recognized or reported that

There are no proceedings [nitlated or pending agatnst the company under section 24 of the Prohibitlon of Benami Property Transactlons Act, 19B8 and rules made there under for

The company has not been declared a wilful Defaulters by any bank or financial institution or consortium thereof in 3ccordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters Issued by the

There Js na charge or satisfaction of charge which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The company does not have any transaction not recorded In the books of accounts that has been surrendered or not disclosed as Income during the year in the tax assessments under

The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause {(87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

49 Segment Reporting
50 Other Disciasures
0]
(i)
are not already disclosed.
[db)
holding any benami property.
(iv)
RBI.
)
(vi)
the Income Tax Act, 1961,
{vii)
(v}

The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement n terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companles Act. 2013,
(Ix) The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the reporting perlods.

(x} The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024 have been approved by the Board of Directors at thelr meetings held on 29 April, 2024,

As per our reparts attached of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 001PYEN/NSO0Q13

\

Ne )

Neeraj Gael
Partner
Membership No. 99514

Place : Gurugram
Date : 29 April 2024

Far and on behaif of the Board of Directors
AOAN! TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED

NS
Rah|:|‘i/6‘

Whale Time Dlrector
DIN 093361B6

Nitin Patal
Chlef Financial Officer

Place : Ahmedabad

Dat\e/woza

Prole

Director
DOIN: 06860381
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Krutarth Thakkar
mpany Secretary




Annexure 3

H 19 floor, Shapath-V,
DEIOltte S.G. Highway,

H : Ahmedabad ~ 380 015
Haskins & SellsLLP

Tel: +91 79 6682 7300
Fax: +91 79 6682 7400

REF: HS/ATIL/2022-23/04

To,

The Board of Directors,

Adani Transmission (India) Limited
Adani Corporate House,

Shantigram, Near Vaishnav Devi Circle
S.G. Highway, Khodiyar,

Ahmedabad -382421

Gujarat

INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONER'S CERTIFICATE CERTIFYING BALANCE SHEET
("ANNEXURE 1"), PROFIT AND LOSS ("ANNEXURE 2") AND CASH FLOW
STATEMENT ("ANNEXURE 3") OF THE 400 KV TIRODA-WARORA TRANSMISSION
LINE (MERC LINE) AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated
May 29, 2023.

2. We, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number
117366W/W-100018), the Statutory Auditors of Adani Transmission (India) Limited
(“the Company”) for the year ended March 31, 2023, having its registered office at
“Adani Corporate House", Shantigram, Near Vaishnav Devi Circle, S.G. Highway,
Khodiyar, Ahmedabad 382421, Gujarat, India, have examined the trial balance of MERC
Lines, other relevant records and documents of the Company as at and for the year
ended March 31, 2023, in the normal course of its business for the purpose of confirming
that the particulars mentioned in Annexure 1, Annexure 2 and Annexure 3 including the
related schedules and notes (“the Statements") of the MERC line forming part of the
Company are appropriately extracted from the trial balance of MERC Line and other
relevant records and documents maintained by the Company. The
Statements are attached to this certificate and are initialed by us for identification
purpose,

3. We have been requested by the management of the Company to provide a certificate
on the attached Statements for submission to Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory
Commission (MERC), which have been prepared by the Company based on the audited
books of account including the trial balance of MERC line and other relevant records and
documents maintained by the Company as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Management’'s Responsibility

4. The management of the Company is responsible for preparation of the attached
Statements from the audited books of accounts including the trial balance of MERC Line
and other relevant records as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023 and for ensuring
compliance with the requirements of MERC regulations and other applicable laws. This
responsibility includes collecting, collating and validating data and presentation thereof
in the said Statements and the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
controls suitable for ensuring compliance with the above. Management is also
responsible for determining the basis of allocation of account balances and transactions
to the MERC Line.

Regd Office; One International Centre, Tower 3, 32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, India

(LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)
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Practitioner’s Responsibility

5. Our responsibility, for the purpose of this certificate, is limited to certifying that the
information contained in the Statements have been appropriately extracted from the
trial balance of MERC Lines and other relevant records and documents maintained by
the Company as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023.

6. The financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023,
have been audited by us, on which we issued an unmodified audit opinion vide our
report dated May 29, 2023.

Our audit of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023, was conducted
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Those Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. Our audits were not planned and performed in connection with any
transaction to identify matters that may be of potential interest to third party.

7. Nothing contained in this Certificate, nor anything said and done in the course of, or in
connection with the services that are subject to this Certificate, will extend any duty of
care that we may have in our capacity of the statutory auditors of any financial

statements of the Company.

8. We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or
Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016), issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“the ICAIL"), in so far as applicable for the purpose of this
certificate. This Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of
the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

9. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality
Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Service Engagements.

Opinion

10. On the basis of our examination of the trial balance of MERC Line, other relevant records
and documents, representations received from the management, information and
explanation given to us, and subject to notes to the Statements, we confirm that the
information contained in Annexure 1, Annexure 2, and Annexure 3 (including related
schedules) have been appropriately extracted from the trial balance of MERC Line and
other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company as at and for the
year ended March 31, 2023.

While, the trial balance of MERC line forms part of the audited financial statements of
the Company for the year ended and as at March 31, 2023, the audit procedures have
been done on the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

Page 2 of 3

212



Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

Restriction on use

11.This certificate is being issued at the request of the Company to be submitted to
Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission and shoul not be used for any other
purpose or to be distributed to any other parties. Accordingly, we do not accept or
assume any liability or any duty of care or for any other purpose or to any other party
to whom it is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in
writing.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

Hard s

« Sutaria
13.10.27

Sutar _ 205730

Hardik Sutaria

Partner

(Membership No.116642)

Ahmedabad, October 27, 2023 (UDIN: 23116642BGWGGE4566)
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Annexure 1

ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMTED

400 KV TIRODA WARORA TRANSMISSION LINE
Bajance Shest as at 31st March, 2023

adani

[ in Crores)

As at

Particulars Notes 31st March, 2023
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Praperty, Plant and Equipment 1 36177
Intangible Assets 1A 0.16
Capital Work-In-Progress 0.14
Financlal Assets
() Investments 2 13.98
(i) Loans 3 59.78
(i)} Other Financial Assets 4 32.62
Other Non-current Assets S 59.21
Total Non-Current Assets 527.66
Current Assets
Inventories 6 116
Financial Assets
() Investments 7 0.10
(i) Trade Receivables 8 11.00
(it} Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 117
(v) Loans 10 0.01
(v) Other Financial Assats " 48.73
Other Current Assets 12 0.49
Total Current Assets 62.66
Total Assets 590.32
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Head Office Account (Adjusted against Loan to Helding Company) -
Other Egquity 13 408.70
Total Equity 408.70
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
() Borrowings 14 54.15
Pravisions 15 0.20
Deferred Tax Liabllities (Net) 16 59.21
Teotal Non-Current Liabilities 113,86
Current Liabilities
Financial Liablities
() Borrowings 17 49.48
() Trade Payabies
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises 18
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 8.80
enterprises and small enterprisas
(i} Other Financial Liabilities 19 159
Income Tax Liabilities (Net) 20 5.31
Provisions 15 2.85
Qther Current Liabilities 21 0.03
Total Current Liabilities 68.06
Total Liabilities 181.62
590.32

Total Equity and Liabilities

iee accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

\DANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED

Rohit
Whole Time Director

Place ; Ahmgdabad

Date : Q7). 1010 =
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Annexure 2
ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED

400 KV TIRODA WARORA TRANSMISSION LINE
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023

c 3

Enargy Solutions

X in Crores)

For the year ended

Particulars Notes 31st March, 2023
Income
Revenue from Operations 22 129.42
Other Income 23 7.18
Total iIncome 136.60
Expenses
QOperating Expenses 24 9.66
Employee Benefits Expense 25 1.09
Finance Costs 26 10.14
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 181A 36.34
Other Expenses 27 3,80
Total Expenses 61.03
Profit Before Tax and Deferred Asset recoverable / adjustable for the 75.57
year
Tax Expense: 28
Current Tax 13.20
Deferred Tax (0.04)
Total Tax Expenses 13.16
Profit After Tax but before Deferred Asset recoverable / adjustable 62.41
for the year
Deferred Asset recaverable / adjustable (0.04)
Profit After Tax for the year 62.37
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)
items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
- Remeasurement of the Defined Benefit Plans (0.01)
-Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss -
Total Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year (Net of Tax) (0.01)
62.36

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

ADANI TRANSMISSI

Rohit Soni
Whole Time Director

Place ;: Ahmardahag

Date : ' 9-3
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Annexure 3

ADAN] TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED

400 KV TIRODA WARORA TRANSMISSION LINE

Statement of Cash flows for the ycor ended 31st March, 2023

adani

Energy Sotusisng

(X in Crores)

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

A Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Finance Costs
Interest income
Operating profit before working capital changes
Movement in Warking Capital:
(increase) / Decreasa in Assets :
Loans, other financial assets and other assats
Inventories
Trade Receivables
Increase / (Decrease) in Liabilities :
Other financial labilities, other liabilities and provisions
Trada Payables
Cash generated from operations
Taxes paid {net of Refunds)
Net cash generatad from operating activities (A)

B, Cash flows from investing activities

Payment for acquisition of property plant and equipment
(including capital advance and CWiP)

Interest received

Sala / (purchase) of Investmencs (Contingency Reserve) (Net)
Loan to Employee

Non Current Loan given

Non Current Loan received back

Nat cash from/(used in) investing activities (8)

[ Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from Long-term borrowings
Repayment of Long-term borrowings
Increase/(Decrease) In HO Account balance
Proceeds/ (Repayment) from Short-term borrowings(Net)
Finance Costs pald
Nat cash used in financing activities (C)

Net Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash squivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash aquivalents at the end of the year (Refar note 9)

Cash and Cash Equivalents includes

Balances with Banks
-in Current Accounts
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

ANI TRANSAISSION (INDIA) LINITED

Rohit sont
Whole Time Oiractor

Place : Ahmadabad

Date ;03100 ] 9.5
A

A

75.57

36.34

1014
(7.18)

114.87

161
(0.03)
10.69

(0.16)
7.00
134.18

(10.34)
123.84

(c.18)

6.13
(2.26}
(0.01)

(46.55)

5.41

(37.46)

As at
31st March, 2023

117
197

e e —:
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ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED

400 KV TIRODA WARORA TRANSMISSION LINE
Notes Lo Annexures

adani

Enargy Solutions

1. Praperty, Plant and Equipment

® in Crores)
Tangible Assets
Descripti f Assets )
eription o Piant & Equipment |Computer Equipment| Office Equipment Total
I. Gross carrying value
Balance as at 1st April, 2022 650.21 0.21 - 650.42
Additions during the year 0.06 0N 017
Disposals during the year . . .
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 650.27 0.21 0.1 650.59
1i. Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1st April, 2022 252.51 0.06 - 252.57
Depreciation for the year 36.22 0.03 36.25
Eliminated on disposal of assets . - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 288.73 0.09 288.82
Net Carrying Value ;
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 361.54 0.12 a.n 361.77
(Fig. .- Jelow T 50,000,00 denated as ¥ 0.00 Crs)
1A : Intangible Assets  in Crores)
Intangible Assets
" v
Particulars Computer Softwars Total

Gross carrying value
B8alance as at 1st April, 2021 0.42 0.42
Additions during the year - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 0.42 0.42
Accumulated Amortisation
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 0.17 0.17
Amaortisation Charge during the year 0.09 0.09
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 0.26 0.26
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 0.16 018

217




ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
400 KV TIRODA WARORA TRANSMISSION LINE
Notes to Annexures

adani

P RPN

2 Non Current Financial Assets - At Amortised Cost

Investment in Government Securities (Quoted)
Contingency Reserve Investments

3 Non Current Financial Assets - At Amortised Cost
{Unsecured, Considered Good)

Loan to holding company
Less: Head Office Account

4 Other Financial Assets - At Amortised Cost

Unbilled Revenue

5 Other Non-current Assets

Deferred Asset recoverable / adjustable

6 Inventories
(Valued at lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value)

Stores & spares

7 Current Investments

Quoted Investments

investment for Contingency Reserve
Investments in Government Securities {(Quoted)

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

As at
31st March, 2023

@® in Crores)

13.98

13.98

As at
31st March, 2023
(T in Crores)

41.44
-18.34

59.78

As at
31st March, 2023

(X In Crores)

32.62

32.62

As at
31st March, 2023
(T in Crores)

59.21

59.21

As at
31st March, 2023
(T in Crores)

1.16

1.16

As at
31st March, 2023
R in Crores)

0.10

0.10
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ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
400 KV TIRODA WARORA TRANSMISSION LINE
Notes tc Annexures

10

1

12

Trade Receivables
(Unsecured, otherwise stated)

Unsecured, Considered Good
Credit impaired

Less: Expected Credit Loss

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with banks
In current accounts

Loans - At Amortised Cost

Loans to Employees

Less : Allowance for bad and doubtful ioans

Other Financial Assets

Interest Recelvable
Unbilled Revenue

Other Current Assets

Advance to Suppliers
Prepaid Expenses

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

As at
31st March, 2023
( in Crores)

11.00

11.00

11.00

As at
31st March, 2023
(Z in Crores)

1.17

117

As at
31st March, 2023
 in Crores)

0.01

0.01

0.01

As at
31st March, 2023

 in Crores)

0.30
48.43

48,73

As at
31st March, 2023
X in Crares)

0.18
0.31

0.49
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ADAN! TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
400 KV TIRODA WARORA TRANSMISSION LINE
Notes to Annexyres

adar

Enargy Jotutiens

13

14

15

16

Other Equity

A.Retained Earnings
Opening Baiance
Add : Profit for the year

Add/(Less): Other Comprehensive Income arising from remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans

Less: Transfer to Contingency Reserve
Closing Balance

B. Contingency Resarve

Opening Balance

Add: Transfer from Retained Earning
Closing Balance

Borrowings

Unsecured
From Related Party
Total

Provisions

Net Employee Defined benefit
liabilities
Pravision for Gratuity
Pravision far Compensated Absences

Provision for Stamp Duty
Total

Deferred Tax Liabllities

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Deferred Tax Liabilities

As at
31st March, 2023
@ in Crores)
332.96
62.37
(0.0m)
(1.78)
Total (A) 393.54
13.38
1.78
Totat (8) 15.16
Total (A+8) 408.7D0
Non-Current Current
As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2023
®in Crores) (X in Crores)
54,15
54,15
Non-Current Current
As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2023
® in Crores) R in Crares)
0.12 0.02
0.08 0.03
0.20 0.05
- 2.80
0.20 2.85
As at
31st March, 2023
@®in Crores)
59.21
Taral 59.21
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ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED adar
400 KV TIRODA WARORA TRANSMISSION LINE AL
Notes to Annexures
17 Borfowings As at
31st March, 2023
(Z in Crores)
Secured Borrowings
From Bank
Cash Credit 49.48
Total 49.48
As at
18 Trade Payables 315t March, 2023
(X in Crores)
Trade Payable
-Total cutstanding dues of creditor micra enterprise and small
enterprise
-Total outstanding dues of creditor other than micro enterprise and 8.80
small enterprise
Total 8.80
As at
19 Other Financial Liablilities 31st March, 2023
{® in Crores)
Payable on purchase of property, plant and equipment 1.59
Total 1.59
- As at
u
20 Incaome Tax Llabllities (Net) 31st March, 2023
® in Crores)
Current Tax:
Current Tax Liabilities 5.31
Total 5.31
" As at
21 Other Current Liabilities 31st March, 2023
R in Crores)
Statutory liabilities 0,03
Total 0.03
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ADAN! TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
400 KV TIRODA WARORA TRANSMISSION LINE
Notes to Annexures

adani

Enarpy Solutions

22 Revenue from Operations

Income from Transmission Line

23 Other Income

{nterest Income
- Contingency reserve investment
- Others
- Delayed Payment charges

24 Operating expenses

Repairs and Maintenance

- Plant & Equipment

- Others

Consumption of Stores and spares

(Figures below ¥ 50,000.00 denated as ¥ 0.00 Crs)

25 Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries, Wages and Bonus
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

26 Finance costs

Interest Expense
-Long Term Loan
-Working Capital Loan
Bank Charges & Other Borrowing Costs

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

For the year ended
31st March, 2023
{® in Crores)

129.42

129.42

For the year ended
31st March, 2023
(T in Crores)

0.77
118
5.23

7.18

For the year ended
31st March, 2023
® in Crores)

9.56
0.01
0.09

9.66

For the year ended
31st March, 2023
® in Crores)

0.97
0.08
0.04

1.09

For the year ended
31st March, 2023
@® in Crores)

6.51
3.60
0.03

10.14
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400 KV TIRODA WARORA TRANSMISSION LINE
Notes to Annexures

adani

Enargy Soluciens

27

28

Other Expenses

Short Term Lease Rental

Legal & Professional Expenses

Payment to Auditors (Refer Note Below)
Communication Expenses

Travelling & Conveyance Expenses
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses
Miscellaneous Expenses

Payment to auditors

As auditor:
Statutory Audit Fees (Including GST)

(Figures below ¥ 50,000.00 denoted as T 0.00 Crs)

income Tax

Tax Expenses

Current Income Tax Charge (MAT)
Deferred Tax

Total

Total

For the year ended
31st March, 2023
(X in Crores)

0.02
1.54
0.03
0.03
0.24
1.40
0.54

3.80

For the year ended
31st March, 2023
(Z in Crores)

0.03

0.03

For the year ended
31st March, 2023
(X in Crores)

13.20
(0.04)

13.16
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ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to Accounting Statement for 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission Line

Notes to Annexure-1

1. The above information has been extracted from the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission Line
of Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission Licensed Area ~ Transmission trial
balance and other relevant records of the Company as at and for the year ended 31% March
2023,

The above Transmission lines' trial balance’s forms part of the audited financial statements

of the Company for the year ended and as at 31 March 2023 which have been prepared in

accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified under the Companies

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended read with Section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013, the audit procedures have been done on the financial statements as a

whole,

2. The assets and liabilities of the Company that are directly allocable/identifiable to a 400 KV
Tiroda Warora Transmission line are allocated by the Management to 400 KV Tiroda Warora
Transmission Line. In respect of the following assets and liabilities the same have been
allocated by the Management as indicated below, no specific audit procedures have been
performed by the Auditors and such basis of allocation has been relied upon by the Auditor:
a. Contingency Reserve Investment has been allocated to 400 KV Tiroda Warora

Transmission line as on 31 March 2023, being entirely for 400 KV Tiroda Warora
Transmission line as certified by Management.

b. Long term borrowings, Short term borrowing & Interest Accrued but not due on borrowing
have been allocated to the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line in the proportion of
the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line Debt as at 01% April 2022 to the total Debt of
the Company as at 01 April 2022 based on auditor's previous year certificate dated

September 22, 2022.
c. Closing balance of Working Capita! Loan have been equally allocated to 400 KV Tiroda

Warora Transmission line (50%) ar "7 7 7 Mundra to Mohindergarh & 400 KV
Ira -~ Sami - Dehgam Transr )%), which has been certified by the
gement.
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Energy Solutio.ns

d. Provision for Gratuity and Compensated absences forming part of Long Term and Short-
Term provisions have been allocated to the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line based
on Employee expenditure ratio as determined for the year ended 31* March 2023 to the
total Employee Expenditure of the Company as at 31 March 2023,

e. Employee loans/advances are directly allocable/identifiable to the 400 KV Tiroda Warora
Transmission line are allocated by the Management to 400 KV Tiroda Warora
Transmission line and Common Employee loans/advances are allocated in the ratio of
revenue of the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line to the total revenue of the
Company.

f. Deferred tax is the adjusting balance between the deferred tax asset/liability as at 31t
March 2023 and 315 March 2022,

Reguiatory tariff norms provide the recovery of Income Tax from the beneficiaries by way
of grossing up the return of equity based on the effective tax rate for the financial year
shall be based on the actual! tax paid during the year on the transmission income.
Accordingly, deferred tax liability provided during the period is fully recoverable from
beneficiaries and known as “Deferred Asset Recoverable/adjustabie”. The same will be
recovered when deferred tax liability forms a part of current tax.

Deferred Asset recoverable/adjustable is the balance between the deferred Asset
recoverable/adjustable as at 31% March 2022 and 31t March 2023. These are calculated
based on WDV block of the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line to the total WDV of
the block of the Company.

g. Income tax assets/liabilities are allocated to 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line in
the ratio of profit before tax for the respective years of the transmission line to the total
Profit before tax of the Company for that year, Income Tax Refunds received during the
year are adjusted based on the actual receivable pertaining respective businesses.

h. Cash & Cash Equivalents have been allocated in the ratio of revenue of the 400 KV Tiroda
Warora Transmission line to the total revenue of the Company.

i. Prepaid expenditure has been allocated to the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission Line

based on insurance expenditure allocated to the fine.

j. Loans given to related parties have b« - " the ratio of opening balance of
retained earnings of 400 KV Tiroda sion Line to the total opening
ce of retained earnings of the Com wril, 2022.




En;féy Solutions

k. Common Trade payables are allocated to the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission Line
based on the Turnover ratio or employee expenditure ratio, as the case maybe.
3. Head Office Account is a balancing figure between total assets, total liabilities and total
other equity and is adjusted against Loan to Holding Company.
4. The above Annexure does not consider effects of any subsequent events if any, which would

have occurred post issuance of independent auditor's report on the audit of the financial

statements dated 29™" May 20?2
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ADAN! TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED (“the Company”)

Notes to Accounting Statement for 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission Line

Notes to Annexure-2

1. The above information has been extracted from the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission Line
of Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission Licensed Area - Transmission trial
balance and other relevant records of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 March
2023. |
The above Transmission lines' trial balance forms part of the audited financial statements of
the Company for the year ended and as at 31 March 2023 which have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (ind AS) as notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended read with Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the audit procedures have been done on the financial statements as a
whole.

2. Depreciation and Amor'tisation Expenditure are directly allocabie/identifiable to a 400 KV
Tiroda Warora Transmission line, based on Gross fixed asset block of 400 KV Tiroda Warora
Transmission line.

3. Operating Expenses, 0&M Agreement charges, consumption of stores and spares / others,
are directly allocable/identifiable to a 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line based on
separate contract executed/profit centre for 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line. While
common operating expenditure is allocated to 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line in the
ratio of revenue to the total revenue of the Company., which has been certified by
Management.

4. The income earned and expenditure incurred by the Company that are directly identifiable to
400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line is allocated by the Management and relied upon by
the auditors. In respect of the following classes of income and expenditure, the same have
been allocated by the Management as indicated below, no specific audit procedures have
been performed by the Auditors and such basis of allocation has been relied upon by the
Auditor:

a. Income in respect of Contingency Res: and forming part

her Income, has been allocated to nission line based
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on the balance of Contingency Reserve as on 31 March 2023 being entirely for 400 KV
Tiroda Warora Transmission Line.

Bifurcation of Employee Benefit Expenses between Salaries, Bonus and Other Allowance
has been done by Management based on SAP report and Common Employee Expenses are |
allocated in the ratio of revenue of the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line to the
total revenue of the Company.

Interest on Long-Term Borrowing and Short-Term Borrowing forming part of Finance Cost
have been allocated to 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line in the proportion of the
Debt as at 015 April 2022 to the total Debt of the Company as at 01 April 2022 based on
auditor's previous year certificate dated 22" September, 2022.

interest on Working Capital Loan have been equally allocated to 400 KV Tiroda Warora
Transmission line (50%) and 500 KV HVDC Mundra to Mohindergarh & 400 KV Mundra -
Sami - Dehgam Transmission Lines (50%), which has been certified by the Management.
Audit Fees is allocated to in the ratio of revenue of the 400 KV Tiroda Warora
Transmission line to the total revenue of the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure is allocated 400 KV Tiroda Warora
Transmission line based on profit of respective business (before CSR).

Tax expenses are allocated to 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line in the ratio of
profit before tax of the respective business to the total Profit before tax of the Company.
Deferred tax is the adjusting balance between the deferred tax asset/liability as at 31*
March 2023 and 315 March 2022,

Regulatory tariff norms provide the recovery of Income Tax from the beneficiaries by way
of grossing up the return of equity based on the effective tax rate for the financial year
shall be based on the actual tax paid during the year on the transmission income.
Accordingly, deferred tax liability provided during the period is fully recoverable from
beneficiaries and known as "Deferred Asset Recoverable/adjustable”. The same will be
recovered when deferred tax liability forms a part of current tax.

Deferred Asset recoverable/adjustable is the balance between the deferred Asset
recoverable/adjustable as at 31t March 2022 and 31* March 2023. These are calculated
based on WDV block of the 400 K\ fransmission line to the total WOV of

of the Company.




i. Corporate Expenses have been allocated to 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line, in
the ratio of revenue of the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line to the total revenue of
the Company, which has been certified by Management.

5. The above Annexure does not consider effects of any subsequent events if any, which would

have occurred post issuance of independent auditor's report on the audit of the financial
statements dated 29" May 2023.




ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to Accounting Statement for 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission Line

Notes to Annexure-3

Energy Salutions

1. The cash flow has been prepared based on the balance sheets and statements of profit and

foss of 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission Line of Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory

Commission Licensed Area Licensed Area as at and for the years ended 315 March 2023 and

315 March 2022.

2. Head Office Account is a balancing figure between total assets, total liabilities and total

other equity and is adjusted against Loan to Holding Company and difference of Head Office

Arrnunt harween two balance sheets have been considered as financing activities.




Annexure 4

Walker Chanc ok &CoLLP

vaiKer Lnanaiok & Lo LLY

RE 11, 1st Floor,

Near Vikramnagar, Iscon,
Ambli Road, Ambli,
Ahmedabad - 380 058
Gujarat, India

Independent Auditor’s ertificate on Balance Sheet (‘Annexure 1°), Statement of Profit and Loss
(‘Annexure 2’') and Statement of Cash Flows (‘Annexure 3’) of 400 KV Tiroda-Warora Transmission
Lines (‘MERC line’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

To

The Board of Directors

Adani Transmission (India) Limited
Adani Corporate House,

Shantigram, Near Vaishnav Devi Circle
S.G. Highway, Khodiyar,

Ahmedabad -382421

Guijarat

1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 5 September 2024
with Adani Transmission (India) Limited (hereinafter the Company’).

2. The accompanying Balance She (“Annexure 1"), Statement of Profit and Loss (“Annexure 2") and
Statement of Cash Flows (“Annexure 3) including the related schedule and notes (“the Statements") of
MERC line forming part of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024 has been prepared
by the Company’s management in accordance with the requirements of Maharashtra Electricity
Regulatory Commission (*“MERC") (Multi Year Tariff) Regulations, 2019 issued by MERC (hereinafter
referred as “MERC regulations  We have initialed the Statements for identification purposes only.

Management’s Responsibility for the Statements

3. The preparation of the Statements, including the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and
other relevant supporting records and documents, is solely the responsibility of the management of the
Company. This responsibilit icludes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statements and applying an appropriate basis of
preparation; and making estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

4. The Management is also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the requirements of
the MERC regulations and provides all relevant information to MERC.

Auditor’s Responsibility

5. Pursuant to the requirements stated in paragraph 2 above, our responsibility is to express reasonable
assurance in the form of an opinion as to whether the particulars contained in the Statements have
been accurately extracted from the audited financial statements, trial balance of MERC line, underlying
books of accounts and other records and documents maintained by the Company as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2024 and the computations thereof are arithmeticaily accurate.

6. The audited financial statements referred to in paragraph 5 above for the year ended 31 March 2024,
have been audited by us, on which we issued an unmodified audit opinion vide our report dated 29 April
2024. Our audits of these financial statements were conducted in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable authoritative
pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI"). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. Such audit was not planned and performed in connection
with anv transactions to identifv matters that mavbe of potential interest to third parties.

) e sy e LU0 @I 1D 13 ITRIBENEU VILE ac LY,
Connaught Circus, Quter Circle, New Delhi,
110001, india

Noida and Pure
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

7. We conducted our examination, of the Statements in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports
or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) (‘Guidance Note'), issued by the ICAl. The
Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by
(CAL

8. We have complied with the relevant appficable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC)
1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and
Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements issued by ICAL

Opinion

9. Based on our examination as above, evidences obtained, and the information and explanations along
with the representations provided by the Management and subject to the notes to the Statements, in
our opinion the particulars forming part of Annexure 1, Annexure 2 and Annexure 3 including related
schedules to the Statements have been accurately extracted from the audited financial statements, trial
balance of MERC line, underlying books of accounts and other records and documents maintained by
the Company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, and that the computation(s) thereof is
arithmetically accurate.

Restriction on distribution or use

10. Our work was performed solely to assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation to your
con “ance with the MERC regulations. Our obligations in respect of this certificate are entirely separate
fror, and our responsibility and liability is in no way changed by, any other role we may have as statutory
auditors of the Company or otherwise. Nothing in this certificate, nor anything said or done in the course
of or in connection with the services that are the subject of this certificate, will extend any duty of care
we may have in our capacity as statutory auditors of the Company.

11. The certificate is addressed to and provided to the Board of Directors of the Company solely for the
purpose of enabling it to comply with the requirements of the MERC regulations which requires it to
submit the certificate with the accompanying Statements to the MERC, and should not be used, referred
to or distributed for any other purpose or to any othe  arty without our prior written consent. Accordingly,
we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other party
to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For Walker Chandick & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 001076N/N500013

Digitally signed |
N E E RAJ NEERAJ GOEL
Date: 2024.09.05
GOEL 20:39:52 +05'30'
Neeraj Goel
Partner

Membership No.: 99514
UDIN: 24099514BKCMZV4434

--Place: Gurugram
Date: 5 September 2024
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Annaxura 1

ADAMI TRANSNISSION (IMD1A) LIMITED

400 K/ TIRODA WARQRA TRANSMISSION LINE
Bafanca Shaat a3 at 315t March, 2024

EATeyy S st

X in Crores)

. . As at
Particulars Matas 31sc Mareh, 2024
ASSETS

Man-Curreant Assets
Property, Plant and 2guipmant 1 325.51
Intangible Assats 1A 0.08
Capital Work-ln-Pragrass Q.14
Financial Assats
(i) Investments 2 13.92
(i) Other Financial Assecs 3 21.45
Other Mon-currant Aszers 4 57.69
Tatal Mon-Current Assats 418.80
Currant Assets
inventories 5 1.28
Financial Assets
(i} Investments 6 1.78
(i} Trade Receivables 7 9.85
(ili) Cash and Cash Squrvalents 8 0.22
{iv) Other Financial Assars 9 2B.66
Other Currant Assets 13 0.36
Totasl Currant Assets 42.15
Total Assats 450.95
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES _—
£quity
Head Office Account 1.1 30543
Other Equity 1.2 16.95
Totai Equity 322.38
Liabilities
Mon-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
{i) Borrowings 12 60.74
Provisions 13 0.39
Deferrad Tax Liabilities (Net) 14 57.69
Total Non-Current Liabilities 118.82
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 119
(i) Trade Payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises 16 )
- Total outstanding dues of creditars other than micro 10.80
anterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 17 Q.07
Income Tax Liabilities {Net) 18 4.79
Provisions 13 2.85
Other Current Liabllities 19 0.05
Totat Currant Liabilities 19.75
Total Liabiiities 138.57

Total Equity and Liabilities

See accompanying notes farming nart of tha financial statemeants

ADS T TT 7T SSION (IMDIA) LIMITED

Rokh
Whoie Time Director

Place: Ahmeadabsd
T NLaTs
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Annaxur2 2
ADANI TRAMSMISSION (IMDIA) LIMITED
400 KXY TIRODA WARORA TRAMSMISSION LiNz

Statamant of Profit and Loss for the y2ar andad 31st March, 2024

For tha year endad

Particulars Motas 313t March 2024
incoma

Revznue from Operations 20 108.69

Otner tncome 21 1.03
Toialincoms 109.72
Exp2nses

Cperating Expanseas 22 9.66

Employze B2anefits Expanse 23 1.01

Finance Costs 24 11.56

Deonreciaticn and Amortisacion Expenses 121A 36.35

Other Expanssas 25 3.75
Totai Expenses 52.33
Profit Befora Tax and Deferrad Assst racoverabls / adjustadla for the 47.39
yaar
Tax Expensa: 28

Currant Tax 8.28

Deferred Tax (1.52)
Total Tax Expanses 8.75
Profit After Tax but befora Dafarrad Asset racovarabla / adjusiable for 10.63
thea year
Defarred Asset recovarable / adjustanle (1.52)
Profit After Tax for the y2ar 39.11
Otner Comprahansive Incoma/{Loss)

items that will not be reciassified to Profit or Loss

- Remeasurement of the Defined Benefit Plans
(0.01)
Total Other Comprenensive Incoma / {Loss) for the year (Net of Tax) (0.01)
39.10

Total Comprehensive income fos the year

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

ADANI TRANSAISSION (INDiIA) LIMITED

Rohit Sond
Whote Tim2 Director

Plane + Anmadahad

ili’
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Annaxure 3

ADANI TRAMSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED

400 K TIRO0A WARCEA TRAMIAMUSSION LipE

Staramant of Cash flows For che year andad 375t March, 2024

(% in Crorss)

Particulars

Far tha year endad
313t March, 2024

Cash flows from sperating activitias
Profit bafore tax

Adjustments for

Degracianien 3nd Amartisation Zxg2nsa

Finance Costs
Jnglaimad Liabilicies / Eqzess provision wiitien D3ck

Interast inceme

Qozrating profit batorz working 2apital changas
Movement in Working Capital:

(Incr2as2) / Decr2as2 in Assats .

Loans, other financial 3ss2ts 3nd other assets
Invantories

Tradz Receivables

incraase / (Dacreasa) in Liabifities :

Othear financial liabilities, acher fiabilitias 3ad grovisions
Trade Pay3oles

Cash ganeratad from oparations

Taxas paid {ne of Rzfunds)

Net cash gena@rated from operating activities (A)

Cash fiows from investing sctivities

Payment for acquisition of grogerty plant and aquipment

{including cagital advance and CWIP)
Interest received

Sate / {purzhase) of Invastments {Contingency Resarve) (Net}

Loan to Empigyee

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities
Repaymant of Long-tarm borrowings
increase/(Decrease) in HO Account balance

Proceeds/ (Repayment) from Shore-term oorrawings{Met)

Finance CosZs caid
Net cash used in financing activities (C)

Net Dacresse in cash and cash equivaients (A+B+C)
Cash and cash 2quivalants at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash aquivalents at the snd of the ysar (Refer note 38)

Cash and Cash Equivalents includes

Balances with Banks
-ln Cyrrent Accounts
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of th2 year

ADAN == TS S1OM (IMNDIA) LIMITED

Rohit som

Whole Time Diractor

Binna » Anmadshad

24

a7 33

.
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{399}
94.27

31.42
012y

-
\n

020
2.04
123.96
(3.80)
128.15

(1.53)

0.9%
(1.68)
0.01

{2.21}

(0.54)
(65.64)
(48.29)

{4.43)

{113.90)

(0.935)
117

0.22
T

A3 at
31st March, 2024

0.22
0.22
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ADAN! TRAMSMISSION {INDIA) LIMITED
400 2 TIRODA WARC PA TRANSMISSION LIME

Mokzs to Annanuras

1. Progerty, Plant and Squipmsant

ey Eniu o

{ in Croras)

Tangible A3sats

Dascription of Aszats 2
np . Plant & gquipment fan:aputw Office £quipmant Tokal
Cquipment
1. Bross carrying valua
Balance as at 1st Aprii, 2023 §50.27 0.21 o1 850.59
Additions during the ye3r 0.02 0.02
Disposals during the yeas . - .
Balang2 as at 31st March, 2024 650.27 0.21 013 6850.81
. Accumuiated Depraciation
Balance as at 15t Apcil, 2023 293.73 0.09 - 2883.82
Depreciation for the y2ar 38.22 0.04 D.02 35.28
Eliminated on disposai of assacs B . . .
Balance as a3t 31st March, 2024 324.95 0.13 0.02 325.10
Net Carrying Vailuz :
Balance as 3t 31st March, 2024 325.32 0.08 0.1 325.51
(Figures betow ¥ 50.000.00 denotad as 2 0.00 Crs)
1A : intaagible Assats @® in Crores)
Intangible Assets
Particulars .
Computer Software Totai
Gross carrying value
Balance as at 1st April, 2023 0.42 0.42
Additions during the year - .
Salance as at 313t March, 2024 0.42 0.42
Accumulated Amortisation
8atance as at st April, 2023 0.26 0.26
Amortisation Charge during the y2ar 0.08 0.08
Bajance as at 31st March, 2024 0.34 0.34
Balance as at 315t March, 2024 0.08 0.08
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ADAMI TRAMSMISSION (INDIA) L ‘ED

400 XY TIRODA WARORA TRAMSMISSION LiN:

[113

Matas Lo Annexuras

Feresege Ailulinne

2

(V1)

Ut

don Currant Finaacial Assels - Az Amoctisad Cost

invastmant in Govzramant Securitizs [Quoted)
Contingancy Resarve invesimants

Othar Financial Assats - AX Amortisad Cost

Uncilied Ravenue

Other Non-currant Assets

Deferrad Assar recovarable / adjustabie

inventories
(Valued at iower of Cast and Net Raalisabiz Value)

Steres 2 spares

Current Investments

Quotad Investments
tnvestment for Contingency Reserve
investments in Government Securities (Quoted)

Total

Tocai

Total

Total

Total

As at
31st March, 2024
(T in Croras)

13.92

13.92

As 3t
31st March, 2024
®in Croras)

21.46

21.46

As at
31st March, 2024
R in Crares)

57.69

57.69

As at
31st March, 2024
(% in Crores)

1.28

1.28

As at
31st March, 2024
& in Crores)

1.78

1.78
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ADAN! TRAMSMISSIONM (INDIA; LIMITED
300 KV TIRODA WARDRA TRANSMISZION LIME
Motgs to Annaxuras

A3 3%

7 Tradez Racaivabies 315 March, 2024
{Unsecured, ctherwisa 53724 T 'r Zroras)
Unsacurad, Considerad Good 9.85

Total $.83
As at
8  Cash and Cash Equivalznts 313 Marsh, 2024

% in Crores)

Balances with banks

In currant ascounts 0.22
Toral .22
. . As at
9  Othar Financial Ass2is 315¢ March, 2024
®in Crores)
Interast Receivable 0.35
Unbilied Revenue 28.30
Total 28.56
As 3t
.y -
1Q Othar Current Assats 15t March, 2024
®in Crores)
Prepaid Expanses 0.36
Total 0.36
111 Head offica Acecount As at
31st March, 2024
@ in Crores)
Head offica Account
(125.42)
Retainad Earnings
Opening Balance 393.54
Add ; Profit for the year 39.11
Add/(Less): Other Comprehensive Income arising fram remeasurement of Definad Benefit Plans (.01
Less: Transfer to Contingency Reserve (1.79)
Net Head office Account balance Totai (A) 305.43
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ADAMN! TRANSMISSIONM (INDIA) LIMITED
400 KV TIRODA WARDRA TRAMNSMISSION LIMNE
Motes to Ar turas

14

Othar Equity

Contingancy Rasarva

Opening Balarica

Add: Transfer fram Recained Earning
Closing Balancs

Borrowings

Unsacured
From Related Party
Total

Provisions

Net Empioyea Definad benelit
liabilities

Provision for Gratuity

Provision for Compensatad Absences

Pravision for Stamp Duty
Total

Deverrad Tax Liabilities

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Deferrad Tax Liabilities

Total (8)
Total (A+B)

Non-Currant

As at
315t March, 2024

(Tin Crores)

As 3t
March, 2024

315t
{%in Croras)

13.15
1.79
16.93
322,38
Currant
As at

31st March, 2024
(T in Crores)

60.74
80.74 .
Non-Current Currant
As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2024
(T in Croras) {8 in Croras)
0.26 0.01
0.13 0.04
0.39 0.05
- 2.80
0.39 2.85
As at
31st March, 2024
® in Crores)
57.65
Totai 57.69
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ADAMI TRAMSAMISSION [IMNDIA) LIMITED
400 KV TIRODA WARQAA TRAMSMISSION LINZ
Mat3s to Annsuuras

15 Borrowings

Securad Berrowings
From Bank
Cash Cradic

15 Trade P3yabias

Trade Payable
-Total outstanding dues of crediter micro antarprise and small
antarprise
-Total cutstanding dues of creditor sther than micro encerprise and
smail enterprise

17 Other Financial Liabiiitias

Payable on purchase of property. plant and equinmant

13  Incomea Tax Liabliities (Met)

Current Tax:
Current Tax Liabilities

19  ©Qther Current Liabilities

Statutory liabilities

Total

Totai

Totai

Totat

As 3%
315t Maren, 20
T in Crores)

10.80

10.80

As at
31st March, 2024
(T in Crores)

0.07

0.07

A3 at
31st March, 2024
(T in Crores)

4.79

4.79

A3 3t
31st March, 2024
(R in Crores)

0.05

0.05
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ADAMI TRAMSMISSION (IMDIA) LIMITED
400 KV TIRODA WARQRA TRAMSMISSH  .IME
Motes to Annaxures

20  Ravenuz from Operations

income from Transmission Ling

21 Othar Incoma

fnterest income
- Contingency ras2mve invastmen:
Unciaimed Liabilities / Excass provision writtan back

22 Operating 2xpansas

Repairs and Maintenance
- Plant & Equipment
Consumption of Stores and spares

23 Employe2e Benafits Expense

Saiaries, VWages and Barnus
Caontribution to Provident and Othar Funds
Staff Weifare Expenses

24 Finance costs

interest Expensa
-Long Term Loan
-Working Capital Loan
Bank Charges & Othar Borrowing Costs

Total

Total

Totaj

Total

Total

For tha yaar ended
31st March, 2024
®in Crores)

108.63

108.59

For tha y2ar 2ndad
31st March, 2024
Zin Crores)

0.3%
0.C4

1.03

For the yaar anded
315t March, 2024
® in Crores)

9.2¢6
0.40

9.68

For the year ended
315t March, 2024
& in Crores)

0.88
6.08
0.05

1,01

For the year ended
315t March, 2024
®in Crares)

7.14
4.33
0.03

11.56
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ADAN] TRANSAMISSION (IMD1A) LlMlTéD
400 KV TIRODA WARORA TRAMSMISSION LidE
MNotas to Apnaxures

Epogrryy Felones

25 Other Expenses

Short Term Leasz Rencal

Legal & Professional Expanses

Paymant £o Auditors (Refer Nora Below)
Communication Expansas

Traveiling & Conveyance Expanses
Corporate Social Responsibility expensas
Miscellaneous Expensas

Payment to auditors

As auditor:
Statutory Audit Fees (including GST)

(Figures below T 50,000.00 denoted as ¥ C.00 Crs)

26 Income Tax

Tax Zxpa2nses

Current Income Tax Charge (MAT)
Defarrad Tax

Total

Total

For tha year andad
31st March, 2024
(Fin Croras)

0.02
1.84
0.02
0.01
0.22
C.54
0.70

3,75

For the year anded
31st Mareh, 2024
Zin Crores)

0.02

0.02

For the year ended
31st March, 2024
¥ in Crores)

8.28
(1.52)

8.76
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ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to Accounting Statement for 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission Line

Notes to Annexure-1

1. The above information has been extracted from the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission Line
of Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission Licensed Area - Transmission trial
balance and other relevant records of the Company as at and for the year ended 31% March
2024.

The above Transmission lines’ trial balance’s forms part of the audited financial statements

of the Company for the year ended and as at 31 March 2024 which have been prepared in

accordance with indian Accounting Standards {ind AS) as notified under the Companies

(indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended read with Section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013, the audit procedures have been done on the financial statements as a

whole.

2. The assets and liabilities of the Company that are directly allocable/identifiable to a 400 KV
Tiroda Warora Transmission line are allocated by the Management to 400 KV Tiroda Warora
Transmission Line. In respect of the following assets and liabilities the same have been
allocated by the Management as indicated below, no specific audit procedures have been
performed by the Auditors and such basis of allocation has been relied upon by the Auditor;
3. Contingency Reserve Investment has been allocated to 400 KV Tiroda Warora

Transmission line as on 31** March 2024, being entirely for 400 KV Tiroda Warora
Transmission line as certified by Management.

b. Long term borrowings & Interest Accrued but not due on borrowing have been allocated
to the 400 V Tiroda Warara Transmission line in the proportion of the 400 KV Tiroda
Warora Transmission line Debt as at 015t April 2023 to the total Debt of the Company as at
01t April 2023 based on auditor's previous year certificate dated October 27, 2023.

¢. Closing balance of Working Capita! Loan have been equally allocated to 400 KV Tiroda
Warora Transmission line (50%) and 500 KV HVDC Mundra to Mohindergarh & 400 KV

Mundra ~ Sami - Dehgam Transmission Lines (50%), which has been certified by the

Management.
d. Provision for Grat C sated absences forming part of Long Term and Short-
Term provisions h 13 drnrha a00 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line based
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Zrargy 30U

on Employee expenditure ratio as determined for the year ended 31¥ March 2024 to the
total Employee Expenditure of the Company as at 31 March 2024,

e. Empioyee loans/advances are directly allocable/identifiable to the 400 KV Tiroda Warora
Transmission line are allocated by the Management to 400 KV Tiroda Warora
Transmission line and Common Employee ioans/advances are allgcated in the ratio of
revenue of the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line to the total revenue of the
Company.

f. Deferred tax is the adjusting balance between the deferred tax asset/liability as at 31*
March 2024 and 31* March 2023.

Regulatory tariff norms provide the recovery of income Tax from the beneficiaries by way
of grossing up the return of equity based on the effective tax rate for the financial year
shall be based on the actual tax paid during the year on the transmission income.
Accordingly, deferred tax liability provided during the period is fully recoverable from
beneficiaries and known as “Deferred Asset Recoverable/adjustable’. The same wiil be
recovered when deferred tax liability forms a part of current tax.

Deferred Asset recoverable/adjustable is the balance between the deferred Asset
recoverable/adjustable as at 31% March 2023 and 31 March 2024. These are calculated
based on WDV block of the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line to the total WDV of
the block of the Company.

g. Income tax assets/liabilities are allocated to 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line in
the ratio of profit before tax for the respective years of the transmission line to the total
Profit before tax of the Company for that year. income Tax Refunds received during the
year are adjusted based on the actual receivable pertaining respective businesses.

h. Cash & Cash Equivalents have been allocated in the ratio of revenue of the 400 KV Tiroda
Warora Transmission line to the total revenue of the Company.

i. Prepaid expenditure has been allocated to the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission Line
based on insurance expenditure allocated to the line.

j. Common Trade payables are allocated to the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission Line
based on the Turnover ratio or employee expenditure ratio, as the case maybe.

3. Head Office Account is a balancing figure between total assets, total liabilities and total

other equity.




4. The above Annexure does not consider effects of any subsequent events if any. which would
have occurred post issuance of independent auditor’'s report on the audit of the financial

statements dated 29" April 2024,
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ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED (“the Company*)

Notes to Accounting Statement for 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission Line

Notes to Annexure-2

1.

The above information has been extracted from the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission Line
of Maharashtra Electricity Reguiatory Commission Licensed Area - Transmission trial
balance and other relevant records of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 March
2024

The above Transmission lines’ trial balance forms part of the audited financial statements of
the Company for the year ended and as at 31* March 2024 which have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) as notified under the Companies
(indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended read with Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the audit procedures have been done on the financial statements as a
whole.

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenditure are directiy allocable/identifiable to a3 400 KV
Tiroda Warora Transmission line, based on Gross fixed asset block of 400 KV Tiroda Warora
Transmission line.

3. Operating Expenses, O&M Agreement charges, consumption of stores and spares / others,
are directly allocable/identifiable to a8 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line based on

separate contract executed/orofit centre for 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line.




Zewrgy Setutions

b. While common operating expenditure other than point (3) is aliocated ta 400 KV Tiroda
Warora Transmission line in the ratio of revenue to the total revenue of the Company, which
has been certified by Management.

. The income earned and expenditure incurred by the Company that are directly identifiable to

400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission iine is allocated by the Management and relied upon by

the auditors. In respect of the following cilasses of income and expenditure, the same have

been aliocated by the Manageme as indicated below, no specific audit procedures have
been performed by the Auditars and such basis of allocation has been relied upon by the

Auditor:

3. Income in respect of Contingency Reserve investment - Rs. 0.99 Crores and forming part
of Other Income, has been allocated to the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line based
on the balance of Contingency Reserve as on 31 March 2024 being entirely for 400 KV
Tiroda Warora Transmission Line.

b. Bifurcation of Employee Benefit Expenses between Salaries, Bonus and Other Allowance
has been done by Management based on SAP report and Common Employee Expenses are
allocated in the ratio of revenue of the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line to the
total revenue of the Company.

c. Interest on Long-Term Borrowing forming part of Finance Caost have een allocated to
400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission {ine in the proportion of the Debt as at 01 Apri! 2023
to the total Debt of the Company as at 015t April 2023 based on auditor's previous year
certificate dated 27*" October 2023,

d. Interest on Working Capital Loan have been equally allocated to 400 KV Tiroda Warora
Transmission line {(50%) and 500 KV HVDC Mundra to Mohindergarh & 400 KV Mundra -
Sami - Dehgam Transmission Lines {50%). which has been certified by the Management.

e. Audit Fees is allocated to in the ratio of revenue of the 400 KV Tiroda Warora
Transmission line to the total revenue of the Company.

f. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure is allocated 400 KV Tiroda Warora
Transmission line based on profit of respective business (before CSR).

g. Tax expenses are allocated to 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line in the ratio of
profit before tax of the respective business to the total Profit before tax of the Company.

h. Deferred tax is the adiustina balance between the deferred tax asset/liability as at 31%

March 2024 072?




Regulatory tariff norms provide the recovery of Income Tax from the beneficiaries by way
of grossing up the return of equity based on the effective tax rate for the financial year
shall be based on the actual tax paid during the year on the transmission income,
Accordingly, deferred tax liability provided during the period is fully recoverable from
beneficiaries and known as "Deferred Asset Recoverable/adjustable”, The same will be
recovered when deferred tax liability forms a part of current tax.

Deferred Asset recoverable/adjustable is the balance between the deferred Asset
recoverable/adjustable as at 31%* March 2023 and 31 March 2024. These are calculated
based on WDV block of the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line to the total WDV of
block of the Company.

i. Corporate Expenses have been allocated to 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line, in
the ratio of revenue of the 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission line to the total revenue of
the Company, which has been certified by Management.

5. The above Annexure does not consider effects of any subsequent events if any, which would
have occurred post issuance of independent auditor's report on the audit of the financial

statements dated 29" April, 2024.
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ADANI TRANSMISSION (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to Accounting Statement for 400 KV Ticada Waroca Transmission Line
Notes to Annexure-3

1. The cash flow has been prepared based on the balance sheets and statements of profit and
joss of 400 KV Tiroda Warora Transmission Line of Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory
Commission Licensed Area Licensed Area as at and for the years ended 31* March 2024 and
31t March 2023.

2. Head Office Account is a balancing figure between total assets, total liabilities and total

other equity
















Annexure 6
Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Waiker Chandiok & Co LLP

RE 11, 1st Floor,

Near Vikramnagar, iscon,
Ambli Road, Ambili,
Ahmedabad - 380 058
Gujarat, india

Independent Auditor’'s Certificate on the Statement of investment towards contribution to
contingency reserves as on 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023

To

The Board of Directors

Adani Transmission India Limited
Adani Corporate House,

Shantigram, Near Vaishno Devi Circle,
S.G.Highway, Khodiyar,

Ahmedabad - 382421, Gujarat, india

1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 6 November 2024
with Adani Transmission India Limited (the '‘Company’).

2. The accompanying statement of investment towards contribution to contingency reserves as on 30
September 2024 and 30 September 2023 (‘the Statement’), has been prepared by the Company’s
management in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 35.1 of Maharashtra Electricity
Regulatory Commission (MERC) Muiti Year Tariff Regulations, 2019 (hereinafter referred as ‘MYT
Regulations’). We have initiaied the Statement for identification purposes only.

Management’s Responsibility for the Statement

3. The preparation of the Statement, including the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and other
relevant supporting records and documents, is solely the responsibility of the management of the
Company. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal contro!
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statement and applying an appropriate basis of
preparation; and making estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

4. The Management is also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the requirements of
the MYT Regulations and provides all relevant information to MERC.

Auditor's Responsibility

5. Pursuant to the requirements of the MYT Regulations, our responsibility is to express limited assurance
that nothing has come to our attention that cause us to believe that the amounts in the statement that
form part of the accompanying Statement have not been accurately extracted from the unaudited
financial information, underlying books of accounts and other records and documents maintained by
the Company for the period ended 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023, which have not been
subjected to audit and the computation thereof is arithmetically inaccurate.

6. We conducted our examination, of the Statement in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or

Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) (‘Guidance Note'), issued by the ICAI. The Guidance
Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI

7 WA/A haun aamanlinAd with thAa rAlauAant Aannlinahla ramtiiramnants Af tha Clandard Aan Mualibgy PDanbeal IQQC)

Noids and Pune . ) . V registéred office at L-41, Connaught Circus, Quter Circle,
New Cethi, 110001, india
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial information, and
Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements issued by ICAf.

8. The procedures performed in a limited assurance engagement vary in nature and timing from, and are
less in extent than for, a reasonable assurance engagement; and consequently, the leve!l of assurance
obtained in a limited assurance engagement is substantially lower than the assurance that would have
been obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement been performed. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of areas where a material misstatement of
the subject matter information is likely to arise. We have performed the following procedures in relation

to the Statement.

a) Obtained the unaudited financial information for the period ended 30 September 2024 and 30
September 2023.

b) The figures given in the statement has been traced to the above-mentioned financial information,
underlying books of accounts and other records and documents maintained by the Company.

¢) Obtained necessary representations from the Management of the Company.

Conclusion

9. Based on our examination as above, evidences obtained, and the information and explanations,
along with the representations provided by the Management, nothing has come to our attention that
cause us to belfieve that the amounts that form part of the accompanying Statement, have not been
accurately extracted from the unaudited financial information, underlying books of accounts and other
records and documents maintained by the Company for the year ended 30 September 2024 and 30
September 2023, which have not been subjected to audit and that the computation thereof is

arithmeticaily inaccurate.
Restriction on distribution or use

10. Our work was performed solely to assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation ) your
compliance with the MYT Regulations. Our obligations in respect of this certificate are entirely separate
from, and our responsibility and liability is in no way changed by, any other role we may have as statutory
auditors of the Company or otherwise. Nothing in this certificate, nor anything said or done in the course
of or in connection with the services that are the subject of this certificate, will extend any duty of care
we may have in our capacity as statutory auditors of the Company.

11. The certificate is addressed to and provided to the Board of Directors of the Company solely for the
purpose of enabling it to comply with the requirements of MYT Regulations which requires it to submit
the certificate with the accompanying Statement to MERC, and should not be used, referred to or
distributed for any other purpose or to any other party without our prior written consent. Accordingly,
we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other party
to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 001076N/N500013

Digitally
NEERAJ GOEL 3%
+05'30'
Neeraj Goel
Partner

Membership No.: 99514
UDIN: 24099514BKCNCQ6078

Place: Gurugram
Date: 15 November 2024
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Line®) (ATIL)
Statement of investment towards contribution to contingency reserves as on 30

eptember 2024 and

Regulation 35.1 of Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (MERC) MYT

Regulations, 2019 provides for investment towards contribution to contingency

reserves.

e As on 30" September 2023, ATIL's investment towards contribution to

contingency reserve in Government Securities is Rs. 15,82 Crore.

e As on 30" September 2024, ATIL's investment towards contribution to

contingency reserve in Government Securities is Rs. 18.62 Crore,

For, Adani Transmission (India) Limited

»
i

) A
LT

- (

Authorised Signatory

Date: 15-11-2024

Adani Transmission (India) Limited
Adani Corporate House,
Shantigram, Nr. Vaishno Devi Circle
S. G. Highway, Khodiyar,
Ahmedabad - 382421

Gujarat, India

CIN: U40101GJ2013PLCO77700

For, Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 001076N/N500013

Digitally signed by NEER/

NEERAJ GOEL Eg;;e}:éozmnjsw;m:m

Neeraj Goel

Partner

Membership No.: 99514

UDIN: 24099514BKCNCQ6078
Place: Gurugram

Date: 15 November 2024

Tel #9179 2555 7555

Fax +9179 2555 7177
info@adani.com
www.adanienergysolutions.com

Registered Office: Adani Corporate House, Shantigram, Nr. Vaishno Oevi Circle, S. G. Highway, Khodiyar, Ahmedabad -

382421
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Annexure 7

Transmission

To,

HDFC Bank Ltd
CSGL Operations
Treasury Dept
Kanjumarg East

Kind Attn: Unit Head, CSGL Desk Fax No 022 30752576/ 30752421

We hereby confirm tha e following outright buy/sell transactions in the Government Securities
have been undertaken by us 1d request you to process the same on NDS OM Reporting

system.
Security Nomenciature 9.23% GOI 2043
Maturity Date 23-12-2043
Buy/Sel! Buy
ISIN No | IN0020130079
Interest dates 23-June ,23- December
Deal Time 11.30 AM
Face Value {Rs.) 8,50,00,000
Deal Date 24-03-2021
Value Date 25-03-2021
Rate (Rs.) 127.55 .
Principal amount (Rs.) 10.84,17,500.00
Accrued Interest (Rs.) 20,04,961.11
Net Consideration (R¢® 11,04,22,461.11
Counterparty _ ADFC Bank Limited
Counterparty SGL wit HOFC Bank Limited
Broker (if any) JM Financial Products Limited
Brokerage (if any) N.A.
Contact Number of person Jay Ambani - 9089900275 |
handling the Operations

DECLARATION:

Kindly DEBIT / CREDIT our current account No: 00060310006673 with you for the settiement
proceeds and DEBIT / CREDIT our CSGL a/c with you.

For, Adani Transmission (India) Limited

VKA hah S 0ol
Tis-forhin - CR2E
~yn P
Authorised Signatory

Adani Transmission (india) Ltd Tel +9179 2555 7555
Agani Corporate House Fax +8179 2555 7177
Adani Shanti Gram. Opp. Vaishandevi Circle info@adani.com
Gandhinagar - 382 421 wwiv.adani.com

Gujarat, India
CIN: U40101GJ2013PLLCA77700

Registered Office: Adani House, Nr. fithakhali Six Roads, Navrangpura. Anmedabad 280 D09. Gujaral, India
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Transmission

7-09-

To,

HDFC Bank Ltd
CSGL Operations
Treasury Dept
Kanjumarg East
Mumbai

Kind Attn: Unit Head, CSGL Desk

Dear Sir/ Madam,

Sub: 1 (x] rgh r i h r Gilt A nt wi
at Mumbai

We hereby confirm that the following outright transactions in the Government Securities
have been undertaken by us and request you to process the same on NDS OM Reporting

system.

Nomenclature

5.63 GOVT. STOCK 2026

Deal Time 12:34

Deal Type Buy

Maturity Date 12-Apr-2026
ISIN No. INO020210012
Interest dates 12-Oct-2022
Face Value (Rs.) 3,50,00,000/-
Purchase Price 94.9850

Deal Date 27-Sep-2022
Value Date 28-Sep-2022
Rate (Rs.) 94.9850
Principal amount (Rs.) 3,32,44,750.00/-
Accrued Interest (Rs.) 9,08,619.44/-

Net Consideration (Rs.)

3,41,53,369.44/-

Counterparty HDFC Bank Ltd
Counterparty SGL with Reserve bank of india
Broker (if any) N.A,

Brokerage (if any) N.A.

Contact Number of person handling
the Operations

DECLARATION:
Kindly DEBIT our current account No: 00060310006673 with you for the settlement proceeds and
CREDIT our CSGL a/c with you.

For, Adani Transmission India Limited )
3.,4,@,,\19&%*
Authorised Signatory /

Tel +91 79 2555 7555
Fax +9179 2555 7177
info@adani.com

www.adanitransmission.com

Adani Transmission Ltd

Adani Corporate House

Shantigram, Near Vaishno Devi Circle,
S. G. Highway, Khodiyar,

Ahmedabad 382 421

Gujarat, India

CIN: L40300GJ2013PLCO77803

Registered Office: Adani Corporate House, Shantigram, Near Vaishno Devi Circle, S. G. Highway, Khodiyar, Ahmedabad - 382 421
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26-5ep-2023

To,

HDFC Bank Ltd
CSGL Operations
Treasury Dept
Kanjumarg East
Mumbai

Kind Attn; Unit Head, CSGL Desk

Dear Sir/ Madam,
Sub: Settlement of Qutright Purchase/Sale Transactions through our Gilt A

N!U![!le

We hereby confirm that the following outright transactions in the Government
Securities have been undertaken by us and request you to process the same on NDS OM

Reporting system.

Nomenciature

364 DTB 20062024

Deal Time 12:33

Deal Type Buy

Maturity Date 20-Jun-2024
ISIN No. IN0020232133
Interest dates T Bl

Face Value (Rs.) 1,86,60,000/-
Purchase Price 95,1951

Deal Date 26-Sep-2023
Value Date 27-Sep-2023
Rate (Rs.) 95,1951
Principal amount (Rs.) 1,77,63,405.66
Accrued interest (Rs.) 0

Net Consideration (Rs.)

1,77,63,405.66

Counterparty

HDFC Bank Ltd

Counterparty SGL with

Reserve Bank of India

Broker (if any)

N.A.

Brokerage (if any)

N.A,

the Operations

Contact Number of person handling

Sunii Shah 9426600435

DECLARATION:

Kindly DEBIT our current account No: 00060310006673 with you for the settlement proceeds and
CREDIT our CSGL a/c with you.

For AdaRi Transmission India Li

e
Author
v

Adani Transmission {India) Ltd
Adani Corporate House

Adani Shanti Gram, Opp. Vaishandevi Circle

Gandhinagar - 382 421
Guijarat, India
CIN: U40101GJ2013PLCQO77700

Registered Office: Adani Corporate House, Shantigram opp Vaishnodevi Circle Gandhinagar Gujarat India

ised Signatory W

N

Tel +91 79 2555 7555
Fax +9179 2555 7177
info@adani.com
www.adani.com
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To, 30-Sep-2024
HDFC Bank Ltd
CSGL Operations

Treasury Dept
Kanjumarg East
Mumbai

Kind Attn: Unit Head, CSGL Desk
Dear Sir/ Madam,

Sub: Settlement of Qutright Purchase/Sale Transactions through our Giit

Account with you at Mumbai

We hereby confirm that the following outright transactions in the
Government Securities have been undertaken by us and request you to
process the same on NDS OM Repaorting system,

Nomenclature 365 DTB 21082025
Deal Time 10:26

Deal Type Buy

Maturity Date 21-Aug-2025

ISIN No. . IN0020247214

Interest dates NA

Face Value (Rs.) 5,00,00,000/-
Purchase Price 84,5290

Deal Date 30-Sep-2024

Value Date 01-Oct-2024

Rate (Rs.) 94.5290

Principal amount (Rs.) 4,72,64,500

Accrued Interest (Rs.)

Net Consideration (Rs.) 4,72,64,500
Counterparty HDFC Bank Ltd
Counterparty SGL with Reserve Bank of india
Broker (if any) N.A.

Brokerage (if any) N.A,

Contact Number of person .

handiing the Operac?ons Sunil Shan 9426600435

DECLARATION:
Kindly DEBIT our current account No: 00060310006673 with you for the settiement

proceeds and CREDIT our CSGL a/c with you

For, Adani Transmission India Limited

MV/XL\* -

Authorised Signatory

Adani Transmission (India) Limited Tel +9179 2555 7555

Adani Corporate House, Fax +9179 2555 7177
Shantigram, Nr. Vaishng Devi Circle info@adani.com

S. G. Highway, Khodiyar, www.adanienargysolutions.com

Ahmedabad - 382421
Gujarat, India
CIN: U40101GJ2013PLCO77700

Registered Office: Adani Corporate House, Shantigram, Nr. Vaishno Devi Circle, S. G. Highway, Khodiyar, Ahmedabad -
382421
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Classification - Internal
HDFC Bank Limited
HDFC BANK | Think Techno Campus,

we understand your world 3‘;‘:3",;9&,‘;';';;',‘;’;;;° Kanjur

(East), Kanjur Marg (E)
Mumbai - 400042,
LEI No.; 335800ZQ6I4E2JXENC50

30 September 2024

To whomsoever it may concern

We hereby confirm that, we have blocked Rs 4,72,64,500/- {Four Crore Seventy two Lakh Sixty four Thousand
Five hundred) in current account 00060310006673 held in the name of ADANI TRANSMISSION INDIA LIMITED
for the transaction done on 30™ September 2024

This amount will be debited from account towards the purchase transaction of T-Bills executed by the

Company
Regards
For, HDFC Bank Ltd )
. X
( | p
Signatory

wven hdfchankigom
Regd. Office: HOFC Bank Ltd., HDFC Bank House, Senapati Bapat Mart, Lower Parel (West), Mumbaij 400 013.

Corporate Indentity No.: L65920MH1994PLC080618



Annexure 8

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

RE 11, 1st Floor,

Near Vikramnagar, Iscon,
Ambli Road, Ambli,
Ahmedabad - 380 058
Guijarat, India

Independent Auditor’s Certificate on Statement of rate of interest on actual long-term loan for the
financial year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

To

The Board of Directors

Adani Transmission {ndia Limited
Adani Corporate House,

Shantigram, Near Vaishno Devi Circle,
S.G.Highway, Khodiyar,

Ahmedabad - 382421, Gujarat, India

1.

This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 24 August 2024
with Adani Transmission India Limited (the ‘Company’).

The accompanying statement of rate of interest on actual long-term loan for the financial year ended 31
March 2024 and 31 March 2023 (‘the Statement’) has been prepared by the Company’s management for
the purpose of its submission along with this certificate to Maharashtra Eastern Regulatory Commission
(‘MERC') pursuant to the requirements of filing tariff petition for truing up for FY 2022-23 and 2023-24.
We have initialled the Statement for identification purposes only.

Management's Responsibility for the Statement

3.

The preparation of the Statement, including the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and other
relevant supporting records and documents, is solely the responsibility of the management of the
Company. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statement and applying an appropriate basis of
preparation; and making estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Management is also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the MERC
requirements and provides all relevant information to the MERC.

Auditor’s Responsibility

5.

Pursuant to the MERC requirements, our responsibility is to express limited assurance that nothing has
come to our attention that cause us to believe that particulars in the Statement have not been accurately
extracted from the audited financial statements, underlying books of accounts and other records and
documents maintained by the Company for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 and the
computation thereof is arithmetically accurate.

The audited financial statements, referred to in paragraph 5 above for the year ended 31 March 2024
have been audited by us, on which we have issued an unmodified audit opinion vide our audit report
dated 29 April 2024. The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023
have been audited by predecessor auditor, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, who have expressed an
unmodified audit opinion vide their audit report dated 29 May 2023. The audit of these financial statements
were conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘ICAI'). Those Standards require that the auditor plans and performs

fiability with identification number AAC-2085 and hasits

Offices in galuru, Chardigarh, Chennal, Cenradun, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Koct, Koikala, Mumba, New Dethi, registered office at L-41, Connaught Circus, Outer Circle,
Noida and Purg New Dethi, 110001, india
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the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

We conducted our examination of the Statement in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or
Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘ICAI’). The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical
requirements of the Code of Ethics, issued by the ICAI.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard of Quality Control (SQC}) 1,
‘Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial information, and Other
Assurance and Related Services Engagements’, issued by the ICAI

The procedures performed in a limited assurance engagement vary in nature and timing from, and are
less in extent than for, a reasonable assurance engagement; and consequently, the level of assurance
obtained in a limited assurance engagement is substantially lower than the assurance that would have
been obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement been performed. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of areas where a material misstatement of
the subject matter information is likely to arise. We have performed the following procedures in relation

to the Statement.

a) Obtained the audited financial statement and underlying books of accounts for the years ended 31
March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

b) Obtained agreements executed between the Company and Adani Transmission Step-One Limited
for loans taken by the Company.

c) Tested the numbers included in the Statement from the audited financial statements and
underlying books of accounts and other records and documents maintained by the Company
and recomputed the weighted average rate of interest on actual long-term loans for FY 2022-23
and 2023-24.

d) Obtained necessary representations from the Management of the Company.

Conclusion

10. Based on our examination as above, evidences obtained, and the information and explanations, along

with the representations provided by the Management, nothing has come to our attention that cause us
to believe that the particulars that form part of the Statement, have not been accurately extracted from
the audited financial statements, underlying books of accounts and other records and documents
maintained by the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, and that the

computation thereof is arithmetically inaccurate.

Other matters

11.

The audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 have been audited by the predecessor
auditor, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, who have expressed an unmodified audit opinion vide their audit

port dated 29 May 2023 and whose report has have been furnished to us by the Management and
which haves been relied upon by us for the purpose of our examination. Our conclusion is not modified

in respect of this matter.

Restriction on distribution or use

12. Our work was performed solely to assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation to your compliance

with the MERC provisions. Our obligations in respect of this certificate are entirely separate from, and our
responsibility and liability is in no way changed by, any other role we may have as statutory auditors of
the Company or otherwise. Nothing in this certificate, nor anything said or done in the course of or in
connection with the services that are the subject of this certificate, will extend any duty of care we may
have in our capacity as statutory auditors of the Company.
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13. The certificate is addressed to and provided to the Board of Directors of the Company solely for the
purpose of enabling it to comply with the MERC requirements which require it to submit the certificate
with the accompanying Statement to MERC, and should not be used, referred to or distributed for any
other purpose or to any other party without our prior written consent. Accordingly, we do not accept or
assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose for which or to any other party to whom this
certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Digitally sigs
GOEL
NEERAJ GOEL ;. 2024
+05'30"
Neeraj Goel
Partner

Membership No.: 99514
UDIN: 24099514BKCNCS8284

Place: Gurugram
Date: 15 November 2024
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Annexure 9

CERTIFIED COPY OF RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AT THEIR MEETING HELD ON 16™ OCTOBER 2024 AT ADANI
CORPORATE HOUSE SHANTIGRAM, S G HIGHWAY AHMEDABAD 382 421

"RESOLVED THAT in supersession of all earlier resolution (s) passed in earlier meeting of
Board of Directors, Mr. M. R, Krishna Rao or Mr. Ajit Barodia or Mr. Akshay Mathur or Mr.
Malay Kumar Maitra or Mr. Tanmay Vyas or Mr. Praveen Tamak or Mr. Narendra Ojha or
Mr. Bhavesh Kundalia or Mr. Prashant Kumar or Mr, Naresh Desai or Mr. Afak Pothiawals,
Mr. Matulya Shah and Mr. Rajesh Sirigirisetty, Authorised Signatories of the company be
and are hereby severally autharised to sign and submit petitions, affidavits, agreements,
declarations, undertaking, deeds, bills, availability certificate and other documents in
connection therewith or incidental thereto before Central Electricity Regulatory
Commission (CERC), Maharashtra Eiectricity Regulatory Commission (MERC), Appellate
Tribunal for Electricity (APTEL), Power Grid Corporation of India Limited(PGCIL), Power
System operation Corporation Limited (POSOCO), Regional Power Committees and
Regional Load Dispatch Centre and other regulatory authorities for and behalf of the
company.”

Certified True Copy
For Adani Transmission India Limited

KRUTARTH Digitally signed by KRUTARTH
AVINASHBHA! THAKKAR
AVINASHBHAI THAKKAR opie: 2024.10.17 12:40:20 +0530°

Krutarth Thakkar
Company Secretary
Membership No. A39568

Adani Transmission (India) Ltd Tel +9179 2555 7555

Adani Corporate House, Fax +9179 2555 7177
Shantigram, Nr. Vaishno Devi Circle info@adani.com

S. G. Highway, Khodiyar, www.adanienergysolutions.com

Ahmedabad - 382421
Gujarat, India
CIN: U40101G6J2013PLCO77700

Registered Office: Adani Corporate House, Shantigram, Nr. Vaishno Devi Circle, S. G. Highway, Khodiyar, Ahmedabad -
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